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Darryl Cotton | ‘ DEC 2 3 2019
6176 Federal Blvd.
San Diego, CA 92114 . CLERK JS JISTRICT COURT
Telephone: (619) 954-4447 Ay e “hri’/g*‘“”
Fax: (619) 229-9387 )
Plaintiff Pro Se
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
DARRYL COTTON, an individual, Case No. 18-CV-0325-\GP}3 (MDD)
Plaintiff, PLAINTIFF’S EX PARTE
vs APPLICATION FOR (1) LIFT OF
' STAY OF THIS PROCEEDING,
LARRY GERACI, an individual; (2) APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL,
REBECCA BERRY, an individual; AND (3) INJUNCTIVE RELIEF;
{|GINA AUSTIN, an individual; MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND
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{support of my request as “Dec Exhibit” which are true and correct copies of original

{Geraci and Darryl Cotton (“Plaintiff”) in November of 2016 (the “November

o8 e

Pursuant to this Court’s Order entered May 14, 2019, Plaintiff hereby submits the
following Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of his Ex Parte
Application for Lift of Stay of this proceeding, appointment of counsel to represent
Plaintiff, and explaining the changed circumstances that warrant lifting the stay in this
action,

Additionally, I ask that pursuant to the equitable doctrine of “fraud upon the
court” and the bias and bad faith exceptions to the Younger doctrine, this Court
immediately enjoin the related state action. If not, I will be forced to sell what little
equity [ have left in my real property (the “Property”). Also, I remain under the pressure
of an award of damages to Larry Geraci (“Geraci”) as a result of a sham trial. Please
help cease my unjust suffering and the ever-increasing mental and emotional harm that

these Defendants have caused me. I have attached relevant exhibits to my declaration in

documents.
INTRODUCTION

The origin of this action arises from a three-sentence document executed by

Document”). Cotton is the owner-of-record of the real Property that is at the nexus of
this action. Neither Geraci nor Cotton dispute that they met on 11/02/16 and executed
the November Document.

In his original complaint, Geraci v. Cotton (Case No. 37-2017-00010073-CU-BC-
CTL), Geraci alleges the November Document is a fully integrated sales agreement for
his purchase of the Property from Cotton. Cotton alleges they reached an oral joint
venture agreement (the “JVA™) and the November Document was executed with the
intent that it be a receipt for $10,000 in cash received that day towards a total agreed
upon $50,000 non-refundable deposit reached as part of the JVA.

The Property qualifies for a Marijuana Outlet (“MO”) which requires a
conditional use permit (“CUP”) with the City of San Diego (“City”) Development
Services Department (“DSD”) for that type of for-profit marijuana retail store (“The:
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Business™). If the CUP were approved at the Property, the Property would be worth no
less than $5,000,000. The value of the Property and the potential high profits from the
Business were the original drivers behind this litigation.

As described below, the conspiracy to deprive me of the Property is only one
illegal action among many others in furtherance of an unlawful scheme by a small group
of wealthy individuals, their many agents outside the law, and finally their unethical
attorneys (the “Enterprise”) seeking to establish an unlawful monopoly in the marijuana
market within the City of San Diego (the “Antitrust Conspiracy”). The litigation now is
driven by a desperate desire of all defendants (including those previously unknown to be
a part of the conspiracy) to avoid the compensatory, consequential and punitive damages
they are liable for.

I know that this introduction reinforces the established “conspiracy nut”
perception of me — I am alleging a conspiracy by the City and numerous other parties
after a jury verdict has been entered against me.! But [ am stating what I believe to be
true because I wish to always be honest and transparent so that at no point in the future
can my credibility be impugned or attacked as a result of choosing “smart” litigation
tactics.

It is clear to me that Judge Joel R. Wohlfeil (“Judge Wohlfeil”) did not, in fact,
exercise sound legal judgement and instead, for whatever reason, whether it be for
convenience or because he viewed me as a “conspiracy nut,” relied solely on the
representations of his friends and longtime-colleagues, attorney Gina Austin (“Austin™),

attorney Michael Weinstein (“Weinstein”) and attorney David Demian (“Demian™).

'1 would also like to apologize to the Court for my original complaint filed at a point in time in which I was not completely
mentally or emotionally stable. Since the time of that filing I have become more familiar with professional legal pleadings
and the deduction of legal conclusions based on facts. I hope the Court can appreciate that 1 was under severe emotional,
financial, and mental distress throughout that period of time. As reflected by the IPA submitted by Dr. Ploesser, Dec.
Exhibit 1, this is not just a fagade for an emotional appeal to the Court. It is the simple truth. 1 understand the perception of
me that I created with my allegations, but I am trying to do my best now and keep the issues strictly factual and legal,
however sometimes that is difficult to do even in my current state.
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Either way it has directly corrupted the impartial function of the court and has subverted
the integrity of the court itself,

MATERIAL FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY
I. Relevant Background

A. Material City and State Cannabis Laws and Regulations’

General City CUP Requirements. Since August 8, 1993, San Diego Municipal
Code (“SDMC”) § 11.0401 has prohibited the furnishing of false or incomplete
information in any application for any type of permit from the City. See SDMC §
11.0401(b) (*No person willfully shall make a false statement or fail to report any
material fact in any application for City license, permit, certificate, employment or other
City action under the provisions of the San Diego Municipal Code.”). Also, SDMC §
11.0402 provides that “[w]henever in this Code any act or omission is made unlawful, it
shall include causing, permitting, aiding or abetting such act or omission.” Thus,
applying for an MO CUP or aiding a party to apply for same from the City and willfully
making a false statement in the application is illegal.

State Law. In 2003, the State enacted the Medical Marijuana Program Act (the

.“MMPA”'), which established certain requirements for Medical Marijuana Consumer

Cooperatives (“MMCC”). On October 9, 2015, Senate Bill No. 643 (“SB 643”) was
enacted and added § 19323 to the Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code (“BPC”), which mandated that

an application for an MMCC be denied if the applicant did not qualify for licensure. SB
643 at § 10 (adding BPC § 19323).

? I note there are many other laws and regulations that apply to make the actions described here illegal, but T am attempting
to focus on the easiest issues to prove to make my case, For example, there are RICO and antitrust laws that make the
actions described herein illegal, but I don’t know how to explain them clearly and succinctly and 1 still don’t understand
them all. See, e.g.. Clipper Exxpress, v. Rky. Mount. Motor Tariff (9th Cir. 1982) 674 F.2d 1252, 1258 (“the Walker Process
doctrine... extends antitrust liability to one who commits fraud on a court or agency to obtain competitive advantage.”); id.
at 1263 n.17 (“Conspiracy with a licensing authority to eliminate a competitor may also result in an antitrust
transgression,™),
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BPC § 19323 was amended by 2016 Cal SB 837, effective June 27, 2016, and
read in relevant part as follows when the MO CUP at issue in this case was filed on
October 28, 2016:

(a) A licensing authority shall deny an application if the applicant or the
premises for which a state license is applied does not qualify for licensure
under this chapter or the rules and regulations for the state license.

(b) A licensing authority may deny an application for licensure or renewal of a
state license, or issue a conditional license, if any of the following conditions

apply:

(1) Failure to comply with the provisions of this chapter or any rule or
regulation adopted pursuant to this chapter...

(2) Conduct that constitutes grounds for denial of licensure pursuant to
Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 480) of Division 1.5.

(3) The applicant has failed to provide information required by the
licensing authority.

(7) The applicant, or any of its officers, directors, or owners, has been
sanctioned by a licensing authority or a city... for unlicensed
commercial medical cannabis activities... in the three years immediately
preceding the date the application is filed with the licensing authority.

A review of the enacting and amending legislation make clear that at this point in
time the “applicant” could be an individual, in which case the mandatory provisions of
subsection (a) applied. Or, if a non-profit or other type of entity was the applicant, the
discretionary language of subsection (b) applied.
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[last settlement agreement he entered into was on May 29, 2015 which prohibited him
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B. Geraci has been sanctioned at least three times for owning/operating illegal
marijuana dispensaries and is therefore barred as a matter of law from owning
a cannabis CUP.

Geraci has been sued and settled at least three lawsuits with the City related to his

owning/management of illegal marijuana dispensaries (the “Geraci Judgments”).? The

from owning a marijuana business until at least May 29, 2018, if at all.

C. Gina Austin has provided knowingly false testimony to the State Court.

During the state trial in this matter, Attorney Austin testified with respect to her
involvement as the drafter of the various agreements between myself and Geraci which
were supposed to reflect my 10% interest in the resulting business which was to be
created on the Property. However, those agreements never reflected those terms,
instead of an equity interest the latest draft only including a 10% net profits provision
which are substantially different in kind. More important than that Austin provided her
legal opinion regarding relevant Business and Profession Codes related to Marijuana.

She states:
Cotton Attorney: Are you familiar with this code [BPC § 26057]?
Austin: Yes.
Cotton Attorney: So in subsection (a), it states that the licensing authority
shall
deny an application if either the applicant or the premises for which the
state license
applied do not qualify for the license under this division. Correct?
Austin: Correct.
Cotton's Attorney: All right. So although you're |allegedly] not aware of
any
sanctions against Mr. Geraci, if such a thing were in existence, would he be
barred
from having a license issued in his name?

3 The three cases are: (i) City of San Diego v. The Tree Club Cooperative, Case No. 37-2014-
00020897-CU-MC-CTL, (ii) City of San Diego v. CCSquared Wellness Cooperative , Case No. 37-
2015-00004430-CU-MC-CTL and, (iii) City of San Diego v. LMJ 35th Street Property LP, et al., Case
No. 37-2015-000000972.
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Austin: No.
[....]

Cotton's Attorney: So if the State had an issue with Mr, Geraci's name [not
being

on the application], what would that process be to try and ensure that he
could

acquire the license?

Weinstein: Objection. Your Honor. Vague, irrelevant, since we' re not
talking about

a state license. That's ...

Judge Wohlfeil: Sustained

Dec Exhibit 2 pg. 3 In. 18- pg.4 In. 17.

As an alleged expert Austin should know that Geraci does not qualify for a CUP because
(1) he has been previously sanctioned for illegal marijuana activity and (2) they have
purposefully hidden his interest in the CUP as to avoid the scrutiny of the licensing

entity of his prior sanctions.

IL. Material Factual and Procedural History
First and foremost, I would like to express to the Court that though I have learned a

lot through this process I am by no means an attorney or able to express complex legal
issues. I would ask that the Court please review my motion for new trial, Geraci’s
opposition, and my response attached to my declaration as a single exhibit. Dec Exhibit
3. This along with the transcript from the hearing on that motion and the Verified
Statement of Disqualification will confirm much of what I state below. Dec Exhibit 4
Transcript of the hearing on the Motion for New Trial, Dec Exhibit 5 Verified Statement
of Disqualification. |

A. Judge Wonhlfeil is Biased

On September 12, 2018, I, through counsel, filed a Verified Statement of
Disqualification (“DQ”) seeking to disqualify Judge Wohlfeil form further presiding

over the proceeding in state court. The basis for the motion was primarily on the fact that
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he had a favorable bias towards Geraci’s attorney Michael Weinstein. The evidence for
this bias was in the form of statements made from the bench by Judge Wohifeil,

The DQ outlined that Geraci was using his attorneys to acquire an interest in a
Marijuana Outlet despite the fact that he was ineligible because he had been previously
sanctioned on three separate occasions for his involvement in illegal marijuana
dispensaries in San Diego, California.

On January 25, 2018, after Plaintiff made a clear allegation against Geraci and his
Attorneys acting unethically to deprive him of his Property in order to obtain an illegal
interest for Geraci, Judge Wohlfeil commented from the bench that he has known
Weinstein for decades wince early in their careers and that he does not believe they
would act unethically.

B.  Specific Acts by Judge Wohlfeil

a. Judge Wohlfeil Lied About Being Personally Served with the Statement
of Disqualification.

As mentioned above on September 12, 2018 through my attorniey Jacob Austin we
filed the DQ. On September 17, 2018 Judge Wohlfeil struck the DQ. The first ground
for striking the DQ cited by Judge Wohlfeil in his order is failure to personally serve him
or his clerk as required by the California Code of Civil Procedure § 170.3(C)(1). Judge
Wohlfeil maintains that the DQ was not properly served. Dec Exhibit 6 at pg 2 In 22-27.

This is a lie. My attorney Jacob Austin personally served Judge Wohlfeil’s clerk
while Judge Wohlfeil was in chambers. In fact, Attorney Andrew Flores (‘Flores™)
called, and has a call log record, Judge Wohlfeil’s department just before Jacob Austin
arrived at the courthouse to confirm that Judge Wohlfeil was in fact in chambers.
According to Flores he spoke with a male clerk who relayed that he was substituting for
Judge Wohlfeil’s regular clerk and that Judge Wohlfeil was in fact in chamber. That
clerk came out to meet Mr. Austin and accepted the Motion from Mr. Jacob Austin. Why
Judge Wohlfeil would lie is unknown.
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b. Judge Wohlfeil Lied About His Statements Being the Court Expressing

its Views About Legal and Factual Issues Before it is also False.

On September 17, 2018 Judge Wohlfeil issued an order striking the Verified
Statement of Disqualification. Judge Wohlfeil’s second claim is that statements he
made, regarding his beliefs related to Weinstein’s ethics, are comments related to legal
and factual issues before the court. Id. at pg. 5 In. 22-25. The problem is that his
statement is extra judicial. It does not rely on fact presented to the court; it relies on his
personal experience with Weinstein since they were young attorneys. This is clearly a
misrepresentation of his comments to me in open court when I raised the issue of the
unethical acts of Geraci and his attorneys.

c. Judge Wohlfeil Claimed 1 Never Raised and Therefore Waived the
1llegality Argument.

On September 13, 2019, I, through counsel filed a motion for new trial in state
court. The premise of the motion was that the alleged contract, despite the jury verdict,
at its core, sought to enforce and illegal object, mainly that Geraci acquire an interest in
a Marijuana Outlet even though he was barred from doing so because of his prior
sanctions for illegal marijuana activity. {See, fn. 3).

On October 25, 2018 the state court held a hearing on my Motion for New Trial.
During that hearing, Judge Wohlfeil on several occasions suggested that I had failed to

| bring up this issue of illegality and therefore waived the issue. Dec Exhibit 4 Transcript

at pg 4 In 28- pg. 5 In. 6, pg 5 In. 20-22, pg. 7 In. 2-3. However, these facts were
brought up specifically in the DQ. Dec Exhibit 5 at pg 5 §16-pg 32. This outlines the
entire factual scenario regarding Geraci’s illegal purpose. Though not qualified as an
illegal contract argument all the facts are presented and presented a sua sponte duty to
refuse to entertain an action that seeks to enforce an illegal contract. (See, May v.
Herron, (1954) 127 Cal.App.2d 707, 710-12 (internal citations and quotations omitted).

d. Judge Wohlfeil did Not Allow Flores to Intervene,

9
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On March 21, 2017, shortly after cancelling the joint venture with Geraci because
he failed to adequately respond to several requests for assurances with respect to having
his attorney memorialize our agreement I entered into a contract for the purchase and
sale of the Property with Richard Martin (“Martin”). Throughout the litigation Martin
made it clear that he did not want to be part of the litigation even though my former
special appearance attorney Flores made it clear that he had a cause of action for
intentional interference in a contract because of the fact that Geraci filed his lawsuit with

the specific intention of stopping the transfer of the Property to Martin. Flores offered to

| purchase his contractual right which he did in March of 2019.

On June 26, 2019 Flores filed a motion to intervene in Geraci v. Cotton, included

in that motion was his declaration describing his prior purchase of Martin’s contractual
rights, his discovery of evidence of an anti-trust conspiracy, and he attached his purchase

agreement. Geraci v. Cotton, 37-2017-00010073-CU-BC-CTL, ROA 572.

At the ex parte hearing on Flores’ motion to intervene Judge Wohlfeil summarily

denied the request claiming that Flores showed no good cause for the relief requested.
Id at ROA 590. It is clear that Flores is an indispensable party, without his intervention
the parties cannot fully adjudicate the dispute. For one if what he has alleged is true then
it would subject all parties to further, and inconsistent litigation, because Flores will file
a federal complaint.

C. Defendants have Perpetuated a Fraud Upon the Court.

a. Austin’s Testimony at Trial- Misrepresentation and Lies.

As outlined above Austin’s testimony at trial, which Judge Wohlfeil allowed as an
undesignated “cannabis expert” is clearly false and intended to defraud the state court in
to believing that Geraci is able to acquire an interest in a Marijuana Outlet and not
disclose said interest in the CUP application. As mentioned, this issue is outlined in Dec
Exhibit 2 at pg 3 In. 18- pg 4 In 24.

b. Demian and his attorney Ken Feldman (“Feldman”) failed to inform the

court of all the implications of his client’s actions in regard to this case.

10
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In Cotton et al v. Geraci et al 18CV02751-GPC-MDD, Feldman’s response to the

complaint were objections made only on procedural grounds. On September 07, 2019 1

sent an email to Demian and Feldman putting them on notice, inter alia, that as Officers
of the Court they had a duty to inform the court that this case was an attempt to enforce

an illegal contract. Dec Exhibit 7.

c. Judge Wohlfeil’s Bias has allowed the Fraud to Continue.

Judge Wohlfeil’s inability to resolve the issue due to his bias towards Geraci and
his attorneys. He has stated in open court to me directly, when I was pro per and told
him there was evidence of a conspiracy involving said attorneys, that he did not believe

that the attorneys would act unethically because he has known them since they were

|“young lawyers.” If this is not an indication that I have not gotten a fair shake in this

13- . .
||process I don’t know what is. In fact, when confronted with these facts by Flores at a

later hearing, he says “I may have made those comments.” He then strikes a well written
Statement of Disqualification, which outlines the prior sanctions of Geraci, his own
statements, the perception of bias. He does so, not on the merits, but rather saying he
was improperly served and that the request is untimely. He was properly served by my
former attorney personally served his clerk in chambers. Additionally, just before the
service Flores called to confirm that he was in chambers and spoke to his stand in court

clerk as his regular court clerk was not in.

D. The City has Conspired with Defendants to Mitigate Their Liability to Plaintiff
a. City Filed Unlawful Lis Pendens.

On April 18, 2017 the City filed an illegal lis pendens on the Property. It was
illegal because they knew that the Property was not subject to forfeiture because the
Property was also being used for a lawful purpose and there was a tenant living on the

Property.

11
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b. City was Required to Cancel the CUP on the Property but Failed to Do
So.

On March 21, 2017, Plaintiff asked the City of San Diego to terminate the CUP
application on the Property because the contract between he and Geraci was never
memorialized and after many requests for assurances Geraci failed to provide a final
memorialization of their agreement, as he was required to do.

The City did not cancel the application and instead told me that there could only
be one application submitted at the time. In response to my request to have the CUP
cancelled, DSD Project Manager, Firouzeh Tirandazi stated via an email that since [ was
not the “Financially Responsible Party” it would have to Rebecca Berry, (Geraci’s proxy
for the Application) who was listed as the “Financially Responsible Party” would be the
only one eligible to withdraw the CUP application. I, as the property owner, could not
do so. This response wsa a knowing deception by the City as is proven by the Court of
Appeals decision in Engebretsen v. City of San Diego, Case No. D068438 (attached as
Dec Exhibit 8). The COA affirmed a writ of mandate against the City specifically

because the City to failed to transfer a CUP application on the property to the owner-of-
record when the applicant could not establish ownership or right to use the property. The
COA specifically informed the City failing to do so violated a property owner’s
constitutional rights. Therefore, the City had actual and direct guidance that it needed to
cancel the CUP application submitted by Geraci in the name of Berry when I demanded
that it do so. Any opposition by the City on this issue just proves that it is acting
maliciously by helping Geraci obstruct me equal protection of the laws. The CITY
knows Geraci can’t own a MO CUP applied for under fraud and because Geraci has
been sanctioned BY the City!!
c. City Allowed a Competing CUP application to Be Granted Despite the
Fact that the Property Did Not Qualify for Such, In Order to Deprive
Plaintiff of a CUP on His Property.

12
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On March 14, 2018 a competing CUP application was made on a property located
at 6220 Federal Blvd (the “Competing CUP”). This property is located within 300 ft of
my Property and if granted would bar my Property from having a CUP because of the
rules related to the distances between Marijuana Outlets, The Competing CUP had not 1,
but 2 childcare businesses wif_hin 1,000 without granting variances, which was raised at
the public hearing on the approval of the Competing CUP which the City willfully and
intentionally ignored.

E. Due to the Continual Fraud by the Enterprise 1 am Unable to Afford the

$200,000 Needed to Mount an Appeal of the Fraudulently Obtained Jury
Verdict.

After trial in state court, I borrowed $5k to have noted appellate attorney Kelly
Woodruff (“Woodruff”) review my case for her opinion on how to proceed with an
Appeal. Dec Exhibit 9. Woodruff was of the opinion that the November Document was
not a contract but that if I were to engage her services, she would require $200k to
represent me on that appeal given the large number of ROAs and difficulty unraveling
the fraud. Even though I always believed [ was in the right on the November Document
not being a contract and numerous attorneys have agreed with that observation,
including now Woodruff, that $200k is money I do not have. Nor do I have any way of
borrowing it anymore. I am also currently in default in my appeal of the jury verdict on
account of my not being able to properly designate a record for appeal, with my limited.

legal understanding is difficult to complete. Dec Exhibit 10.
LEGAL STANDARD

“A plaintiff seeking a preliminary injunction must establish [1] that he is likely to
succeed on the merits, [2] that he is likely to suffer irreparable harm in the absence of
preliminary relief, [3] that the balance of equities tips in his favor, [4] and that an
injunction is in the public interest.” Winter v. Nat. Res. Def. Council, Inc., 555 U.S. 7,
20, 129 S. Ct. 365,374, 172 L. Ed. 2d 249 (2008).

ARGUMENT

13
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I. Likelihood of Success on the Merits

A. The Judgement Entered by Judge Wohlfeil Enforces an lllegal Contract

I humbly and respectfully request that this Court allow me to incorporate by
reference the arguments by my counsel who argued this issue before Judge Wohlfeil as
shown in Dec Exhibit 3, are the motion for new trial, Geraci’s opposition, and my reply.

My contention is that since the very inception of our agreement, Geraci and his
attorneys knew that he could not qualify for a conditional use permit for a marijuana
outlet because of his prior sanctions. This is why he chose to use a proxy, which
circumvents the disclosure laws and transparency policy of applicable state law
regarding legal marijuana industry. Though Geraci claims he used a proxy because of
his status as a Tax Professional, he has provided no legal reason he is allowed to
continue to violate the law and not disclose his ownership interest in the CUP
Application. His attomey Austin testified at trial that proxies are a common practice..
First, though Austin holds herself out as a “marijuana expert” she was never qualified as
an expert but Judge Wohlfeil allowed her to testify to the jury to “common practice”
with absolutely no foundation. Additionally, even if it is “common practice” does not
mean it is legal to do. Austin has in fact admitted her fraud in open court, but due to his

bias and or corruption, Judge Wohifeil cannot see it.

IL. Irreparable Harm
A.  Mental Health. As 1 have already mentioned, my mental health is clearly at

issue here. If the Defendants are not brought to justice either financially or criminally, I
cannot even imagine what type of toll this will take on me. This case has led me
mentally down dark paths in which I have considered taking the law into my own hands
or stoop to their level to address my grievances. Though I am attempting to represent
myself and have drafted this motion, I am constantly under the pressure of anxiety and
fear as to what these criminals are willing to do to shut me up, but the principle of the

matter is what will not allow me stop seeking justice.

14
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B.  Financial Harm. Financially, I cannot afford to move forward on an appeal.
1 simply do not have the legal acumen or financial resources to do so. As [ mentioned
above, I have borrowed $5,000 to retain an appellate specialist who informed me that
there is merit to the appeal but that it will cost over $200,000, money that [ do not have
as 1 have exhausted every resource, I have access to. I have even borrowed from family
and friends, and not been able to pay back, without being turned down at this point.

C.  Public Policy/Public Good,

Meanwhile the Enterprise is developing the competing 6220 site and getting ready
to open up a dispensary it has been procured by fraud. The property owner of the 6220
site, a Mr. John Ek (“EK”), is an innocent party and like me, another victim of the
Enterprise conspiracy. If the request 1 seek here is not granted, the development of the
competing dispensary is set to begin (which I believe has already started) and if later it is |
found to be an illegally obtained CUP the development will have to be stopped and
returned to its original condition which will bring financial harm to Ek and those current
tenants on that 6220 property who have been displaced by the illegally approved CUP
being granted at Ek’s property.

IIIl. Balance of Equities

The judgement entered against me enforces an alleged contract that has an unlawful
object and was procured by a fraud upon the court. All equitable considerations lie

solely in my favor.

1IV.  Public Interest.
“There 1s an nrrefragable linkage between the courts' inherent powers and the

rarely-encountered problem of fraud on the court. Courts cannot lack the power to

|{defend their integrity against unscrupulous marauders; if that were so, it would place at

risk the very fundament of the judicial system.” doude v. Mobil Qil Corp. (1st Cir. 1989)
892 F.2d 1115, 1119. This issue is one of the most important public interest issues there
could be. On the one hand the State is implementing a law that by its very own makes

transparency the central focal point, in order to root out the criminal element in the

15
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marijuana industry. To allow these criminals to use the judiciary to effectuate their
illegal purposes because they hire attorneys who are willing to fabricate evidence and
perjure themselves in open court should be the most important issue before any court.
They simply cannot get away with this, otherwise what precedent does that set for other,

attorneys, marijuana entrepreneurs, and the public in general.

V.  Issues Regarding Defendant City of San Diego have Not Been Address.

The City of San Diego, named herein as a defendant, was not a party to the State
Trial in Geraci v. Cotton. There are two specific issues yet to be addressed against this
defendant. These issues are regards to violation of my constitutional rights related to my

Property. As can be seen in the City of Engebretson, the City had a responsibility to

cancel the application on my property when I requested. They continued to allow Geraci
and the Enterprise to control the CUP on my Property, when they were required to
cancel the application by their own regulations.

The City also, in order to sabotage the application on my Property and to cover up
their own malfeasance, issued a CUP on a property a short distance away from mine
which was (1) made by a member of the Enterprise with clear ties to Geraci’s attorneys ,
(2) which was within the 1,000 ft of a daycare in violation of their own regulations
explicitly requiring that no dispensary be within 1,000 ft of a daycare, and (3) this is in
spite of the fact that the application on my property was filed over a year before the
competing CUP. In doing so they have in effect terminated my application.

In this instant the Enterprise was required to seek a variance from the City.
However, the City did not require the Enterprise Applicant Aaron Magagna to file for a
variance, they simply ignored their own ordinance and state law in order limit their own
liability.

Recently there have been actions by other local governments that have come to
discover a licensed MO business were found to be in violation of the state mandated
600’ minimum setback rules and, as shown in Dec Exhibit 11, have ordered those MO

businesses to move.

16
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CONCLUSION

I hope I’ve given the court enough reasons to unstay my case, prove the urgency

in issuing a Temporary Restraining Order and expose these people for who they are and
what they’ve done. As I prepared this motion, just weeks before Christmas, I found
myself continuously asking myself; why is it that Weinstein, an Officer of the Court, has
been able to use the law to crush me, my friends, family and investors? Why does he and
everyone else in the Enterprise, get to have a Merry Christmas with their families when
they are criminals who help other criminals achieve their illegal goals through their cozy
relationships and knowledge of the law when I do not?

Although I just had a judgment issued by a jury against me in state court, I still
steadfastly maintain my enemies are the ones that are “really dumb.” Defendants have
taken easily proven illegal action in their desperate attempts to avoid liability. This is the
driver now for all the litigation — everyone wants to avoid financial liability for their
grossly unethical and unlawful actions.

“Genérally, [punitive damages] cases fall into three categories: (1) really stupid
defendants; (2) really mean defendants; and, (3) really stupid defendants who could have
caused a great deal of harm by their actions but who actually caused minimal harm.”
TXO Production Corp. v. Alliance Resources Corp. (1993) 509 U.S. 443, 453 n.15,

Although there is a lot of parties overlap to consider in this complaint, for which I
attempt to show in the List of Parties Flowchart, Dec Exhibit 12, attorney Gina Austin is
the really stupid defendant for testifying that Geraci can own a Marijuana Qutlet CUP
despite filing the Berry CUP Application under fraudulent pretenses and the fact that he
ha-s. been sanctioned for illegal marijuana activities in the three years prior to the
submission of the Berry CUP Application. She also testified that such is her “common
practice”!!

In order to avoid liability on one CUP application, she testified that she has
violated the law as to her other 23 approved CUP applications. That means all of her

applications have to be reviewed to determine the actual owners are not criminals, like

17
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Geraci, with a history of illegal marijuana operations, who were not disclosed in the
CUP applications to the city. Her own testimony provides evidence of the existence of
the Enterprise and the Antitrust Conspiracy.

Weinstein, Toothacre, Demian, Witt, Feldman and all the City attorneys are the
truly unethical defendants. They are not unaware; criminals can’t own marijuana
business that they seek to acquire with applications to government agencies containing
knowing false information.

Feldman in particular, 1 assume, must offend this Court. He is a partner at an
international law firm, and he markets the fact that he teaches ethics to federal judges
even as he takes unethical actions to protect his client’s unethical actions in perpetuating
a fraud upon both the state and federal courts. I used to think higher profile law firms

somehow were more ethical, they are not. They are still ethically ambulance chasing

{|attorneys who will do anything for money so long as they don’t get caught, not whether

their actions are illegal.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court grant him the

following relief:
1. That this Court issue an order enjoining the State Action as Plaintiff’s

appeal is currently in default;

2. Lifi of the stay in this action, appointment Plaintiff counsel, and grant leave
for appointed counsel to amend the Complaint to conform to the facts now known;

3. An order enjoining further development of the Marijuana Qutlet at 6220

Federal Boulevard, San Diego as it is within 1,000 feet of two daycares in violation of

the SDMC and State law;

4. And for the issuance of a subpoena for attorney Nguyen to immediately
present herself at the hearing on this TRO application and explain why she should not be

sanctioned for failing to provide the testimony of Corina Young, her client, and an that

18
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she provide the promised testimony. (I note that in the amended complaint I will be
naming Nguyen for knowingly violating my civil rights by failing to provide Young’s

deposition as promised and therefore obstructing justice).

DATED:  January 23, 2019 Yoy
/ & DARRYL COTTON
' Plaintiff Pro Se
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Darryl Cotton
6176 Federal Boulevard
San Diego, CA 92114

' Telephone: (619) 954-4447

Fax: (619) 229-9387
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FILED
DEC 23 2019 {
o

CLERK 8 D15 THICT 1§ U’ 1T

‘SOU‘F A HN")I‘W/F}) AL EP("I %N!A
k

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

DARRYI. COTTON, an individual,
Plaintiff,

VS.

LARRY GERACI, an individual;
REBECCA BERRY, an individual;
GINA AUSTIN, an individual;
AUSTIN LEGAL GROUP, APC, a
California corporation; MICHAEL R.
WEINSTEIN, an individual; SCOTT
TOOTHACRE, an individual; FERRIS
& BRITTON, APC, a California
corporation; CITY OF SAN DIEGO, a
public entity and DOES 1 through 10,
inclusive,

Defendants.

Case No. 18-CV-0325[GPC/(MDD)

DECLARATION OF DARRYL COTTON
IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFF’S EX
PARTE APPLICATION FOR (1) LIFT
OF STAY OF THIS PROCEEDING,

(2) APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL,
AND (3) INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

ORAL ARGUMENT RESPECTFULLY

REQUESTED

Date:

Time:

Dept:

Judge: The Hon. Gonzalo P. Curiel
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I, Darryl Cotton, declare:

1. T am the Plaintiff in this action and have personal knowledge of each fact
stated in this declaration.

2. The facts stated herein are true and correct of my own personal knowledge;
except those facts which are stated upon information and belief; and, as to those fact, I
believe them to be true.

4. I am the owner of 6176 Federal Blvd Property (‘the Property’) which is
located in an area which the City of San Diego has zoned appropriate for a Marijuana
Outlet.

5. On November 2, 2016, I reached an oral agreement with defendant Larry
Geraci for the sale of my property.

6. The terms of our agreement included but were not limited to the following:

A.  $50,000 non-refundable deposit towards the purchase of the property

B.  Geraci to pursue and pay all costs associated with the Conditional Use
Permit (CUP) 1icensing of a Marijuana Outlet (“MO”) with the City Qf
San Diego Devel_opment Services Department (“DSD”).

C.  Upon the granting of the CUP license Geraci was to pay the remaining
balance of $750,000‘ for the purchase of the -Property.

7. On November 2, 2016, I met with Geraci and we executed a document
(*November Document™) for the purposes of reflecting my receipt of $10,000 cash as a
good faith partial payment by Geraci toward the a_greed-upqn $50,000 non-refundable

2
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deposit as he advised he would not be making the $50,000 non-refundable deposit
payment until he had managed to have the San Diego Municipal Code updated to reflect
that the Property was located in a zone that allowed for a MO to be operated.

8. Later that same day I received an email from Geraci with the November |
Document as an attachment in which he had titled it “Contract.”

9.  TIresponded with an email asking Geraci to confirm by a response email from
him that the document that he had titled a ‘contract’ in his email to me, was not a completé
and total representation of what we had orally agreed to earlier that day in his office. My
email went on to say that, among other things I expected to me in a contract that
memorialized the terms and conditions in our oral agreement would be my 10% equity
interest in the newly licensed dispensary, which was a factored element in my decision I
had decided to sell my property to Geraci in the first place. |

10. Geraci confirmed in the affirmative that the additional terms we had
discussed and agreed would be memorialized in a final contract form with his email
response — “No, No Problem at All.”

11. At trial, Geraci raised for the first time that the “No, No Problem at All”
response was a mistake and that he had intended to respond with “No Problem at All”.

12.  Attrial Geraci raised for the first time that he felt he was being “extorted” by
what was tantamount to my requests for written assurances.

13.  During that time, I had other offers for the purchase of the Property.
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14.  Between 11/02/16 and 03/17/17 I continued to reach out to Geraci through
phone calls and text messages to see how the rezoning issue was coming along since once
the rezoning issue was resolved I expected the $40,000 balance of the $50,000 non-
refundable deposit was due to be paid.

15.  On 3/21/16, I inform Geraci via email that after having reached out to DSD
regarding the status of the rezoning I was informed by DSD that the property had been
rezoned back in February 2017 and now the property was located in a zone that was
compliant for a MO business. I told Geraci that I now knew the level of his deceit and
would no longer have any further communication with him. 1 informed Geraci that I
would be entering into an agreement with a third party to_sell the property.

16.  On 03/21/17, I sold the property to Martin.

17. On 03/25/19, Martin sold the property to Flores.

18.  During the course of this litigation I have been forced to sell off any
remaining interest I have in the property or joint venture revenues that would have come
from the operation of a licensed MO. I have relied on friends and family to help with
whatever finances they could provide to assist me in keeping the property while the
litigation is ongoing. If it were not for their help and belief in me and the underlying
principles based on tﬁe facts of this case they would not have offered this support, nor

would I have ever asked them for it had I known then what I know now.
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21.  Thadto hire out-of-state counsel, Attorney Evan Schube, to file a Motion for
New Trial because, not only did Judge Wohlfeil not “get it,” no local attorneys were
willing to take the case. Judge Wohlfeil denied that motion.

22.  For the appeal, T borrowed $5,000 at 20 percent interest, to hire appellate
specialist attorney Kelly Woodruff (“Woodruff”) to review the case. Upon her review,
she told me that there were merits to my case that could overturn the lower court ruling,
and estimated “fees to do so would run around $200K in costs. This is money I don’t have
nor do I have anyway to borrow that kind of money anymore.

23.  Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of Dr. Ploesser’s Evaluation of
Cotton 3/4/18 as Exhibit 1.

24.  Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the Reply to Opposition Re: Jury
Verdict as Exhibit 2.

25.  Attached hereto are true and correct copies of the Motion for New Trial,
Opposition and Response, as Exhibit 3.

26.  Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the Transcript of the Motion for
New Trial Hearing 10/25/19 as Exhibit 4.

27. Attaéhed hereto is a true and correct copy of the Verified Statement of
Disqualification 9/12/18 as Exhibit 3.

28.  Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the Order Striking Verified

Statement of Disqualification 9/17/18 as Exhibit 6.
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29. Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of my email to Demian and

Feldman as Exhibit 7.

30. Attached hereto is a true and correct copy Engebretson v. City of San Diego

Opinion as Exhibit 8.

31.  Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of an Email from appellant
specialist Kelly Woodruff 11/06/19 as Exhibit 9.

32.  Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the Notice of Default 12/05/19
as Exhibit 10.

33.  Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the News Paper Article for the
Modesto Bee dated 12/11/19 as Exhibit 11.

34.  Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of Flow Chart as Exhibit 12,

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration was executed on December 23, 2019

at San Diego, California.

y f; ’/}f:’/ / ,
" VPARBXT COTTON
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she provide the promised testimony. (I note that in the amended complaint I will be
naming Nguyen for knowingly violating my civil rights by failing to provide Young’s
deposition as promised and therefore obstructing justice).

'
A

/ (7 DARRYL COTTON
l Plaintiff Pro Se

DATED: January 23, 2019
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{ [|T, Marlus Ploesser, MD, LLM, DABPN, FRCP(C), declare:
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‘:.duty_,: I will provide tesfimony in conformity with thet duty if I am called upon to

1.  On March 4; 2018, T interviewed Mr. Darryl Cotton for an Independent
Psychiatric Assessment. At the beginning of the assessment, I informed Mr, Cotton
that the assessment was being prepared to-assist the Court and not to act as an advocate
on his behalf. Mr. Cotton expressed his understanding, agreement and proceeded with.:

the interview and assessment,

2. I certify that I am aware of my duty as anexpert to assist the Court and

not to be an advocate for any party. [ have prepared this report in-.conformity with that

provide oral or written testimony.
3, Lam solely responsible for the opiniors provided in this report. I reserve

the right to amend ot alter my opinions should additional relevant information become

available after the report completion,

UALIFICATIONS

4. 1 am a psychiatrist licensed ‘in the State .of California, Physician and|

Wl Surgeon License No. A101564 and the Province of British Columbia, License No.

31564.

2|

25
26 1

27

5. 1am Board certified by the American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology

in the area of Psychiatry (Certificats No. 60630) and the subspecialty of Forensic

TNDEPENDENT PSYCHIATRIC ASSESSMENT OF DARRYL COTTON; DECLARATION OF DR.MARKUS

PLOBSSER [N SUPPORT OF DARRYL COTTON'S EMERGENCY PETITION FOR EXTRAORDINARY WRIT, |

‘WRIT'OF MANDATE, OR OTHER APPROPRIATE RELIEF
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Psychiatry (Certificate No. 1903).

6. 1am aFellow ofthe Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons of Canada,
wiih certifications in Psychiatry and Forensic Psychiatry.

7. I am on the clinical faculty at the University of British Columbia (UBC)
in the division of Forensic Psychiatry.

8. My prior work experience has included forensic psychiatric evaluation
work for the Forensic Psychiatric Hospital and the Forensic Psychiatric Services
Commission in Coquitlam, British Columbia. I have written numerous forensic
psychiatric assessment reports and festified as an expert witness before the British
Columbia Review Board and the Provincial Courts of British Columbie.

9. I currently work as a psychiatrist for the Department of Corrections for -
the State of California.

10. Inaddition to my medical qualifications, [ am also a graduate of Columbia
University School of Law in the LLM program.

11. In preparation for my assessment of Mr. Cotton, I consulted with Dr.
Carolyn Candido regarding her medical diagnosis of Mr. Cotton on December 13,
2017, Additionally, I reviewed the declaration previously provided by Dr. Candido
regarding her diagnosis of Mr. Cotton prepared on January 22, 2018. (Attached hereto
as Exhibit 1.)

12, Prior to my interview with Mr. Cotton, I also discussed the factual

-2-
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I

background regarding Mr. Cotton’s need for a psychiatric assessment with his legal

—

consultant, Mr. Jacob Austin. Mr. Austin, I was told, is representing Mr. Cotton on a
limited basis due to Mr. Cotton’s inability to pay for his full legal representation by

Mr. Austin,

CLIENT INTERVIEW

13, Mr. Cotton related the following: He is 57 years old. He was born and

o e s~ N i B W N

raised in the Chicago area and has lived in San Diego since 1980. He owns a lighting

—
=

manufacturing company but reports that over the past approximately 9-12 months he

—
Tt

has experienced financial hardship, stress and anxiety originating from a lawsuit

%)

against him.

-
[
B W

14, Mr, Cotton denies any history of mental health symptoms predating the

F—
vA

current lawsuit. He is taking Keppra 500mg twice daily for a seizure disorder, which

=)}

he started suffering from around the age of 26. He usually suffers from approximately

werh ean
[T |

3 Grand Mal seizures per year, He used to take Dilantin, another anticonvulsant

._.
o

medication. He reports having obtained significant medical benefit from the use of

b
L=

medical cannabis, particularly a high CBD strain which he says has helped to reduce

NN
[ 3%

the frequency of his seizures, -

[
L)

15. Mr. Cotton represents he owns a property meeting certain requirements

[ =]
-

by the City of San Diego and the State of California that would allow the creation and

b
8 9

operation of a Medical Marijuana Consumer Collective.

e
[
-1

28 ' 3.
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16, Mr. Cotton reports that he has and is being subjected to a variety of threats

-

and harassing behaviors that he believes have been directed against him by the plaintiff

in the lawsuit.
17.  Mr, Cotton believes that an armed robbery on June 10%, 2017 on his
property may have been directed by the plaintiff. He was present at his property at the

time of the armed robbery, slamming the door and thereby escaping the robbers inside

w99 ~ oh i B W N

f a building on his property while he called 911, The armed individuals who committed

10 || the robbery threatened Mr. Cotton at gun-point before fleeing from the premises. (Mr.
1]
12
3 [{of local news coverage that is still available online.)

Cotton stated the atmed-robbery is still unresolved by the police and it was the subjsct

14 18. M. Cotton states he followed the armed individuals in his vehicle as they

" fled from the scene while he was on the phone with 911, He was told by 911 to cease

17 [t his pursuit due to safety reasons as Mr. Cotton was chasing the armed robbers at high-

18 llspeed. Mr. Cotton believes he recognized the driver of the getaway vehicle as an
19

20
21 19. - Mr. Cotton appeared particularly intense during his narration regarding

employee of the plaintiff.

22 |l one of his employees who was duct-taped and laying face down at gun-point on the
23

24
25 || Cotton relied upon heavily, quit the next day because of this incident.

ground. Mz, Cotton states that this long-time employee, an electrical-engineer who Mr,

26 20. M. Cotton describes starting to experience increased symptoms of stress
7 |
. .
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and anxiety since the robbery, above that which was caused by the litigation. He had

—

been in his usual state of health prior. He reports that he is now unable to slesp at night,
experiences "mood swings" and episodes of explosive rage without apparent triggers,
He experiences nightmares around themes of feeling powerless. The nightmares occur
in slight variations, and at times he “sees the robbers in his dreams.”

21. Furthermore, his description of his nightmares includs vivid scenes of

W e o~ O W B W N

violence towards the attorneys for plaintiff that he believes are not acting in a

—
L=

professional manner, Mr. Cotton believes that the attorneys representing plaintiff are

“in it together” with the plaintiff to use the lawsuit to “defraud” him of his property.

—
N

This point is one of the main foci of his expressed mental distress.

o
—
-

22.  Mr. Cotton's distress due to his perception of a conspiracy egainst him by

=
LY.

attorneys is amplified by what he believes is the Court’s disregard for the evidence and

o

arguments he has presented. He states he has never been provided the reasoning for the

| o
[~ TS |

denial of any relief he sought. Mr. Cotton expressed that at certain points during the

[
0

course of the litigation he believed the trial court judge was part of the perceived

o
=

conspiracy against him.

B o=

93. Mr. Cotton is also under the belief that his former law firm could have

ot ]
L¥S ]

resolved this matter at an early stage in the proceedings but chose not to in order to

(]
Y

continue billing legal fees,

o o
(= )

24, Mr. Cotton reporis no improvement in his mental health symptoms since

N
=~

.5-
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 [|the robbery. He describes that since the robbery there have been additional threats made
against him by “agents” of the plaintiff. Specifically, he describes that two assaciates

of plaintiff went to his property on February 3, 2017 under the pretense of discussing

potential business opportunities, but when they arrived they were there to indirectly
threaten him by informing him that it would be “good” for him to “settie with Geraci.”

25. Mr, Cotton now feels hopeless, helpless, unable to sleep, with decreased

G =) N W s W N

g || appetite, but either no or only minimal changes in weight.

10 26. M. Cotton states that on December 12, 2017, immediately after a court

11
hearing, he was evaluated in the emergency department of a hospital for & TIA

12
13 || (transitory ischemic aitack, & frequent precursor of a stroke).

14 27. The day after his emergency department discharge, Mr. Cotton states he
15

16 Ii
17 [ Disorder by Dr., Candido,

assaulted a third-party and that is also the day he was diagnosed with Acute Stress

18 28,  Mr, Cotion expressed having experienced suicidal ideation, most recently
19

20
21 {{hallucinations.

on December 13th, 2017. He denied symptoms of psychosis, specifically

22 OPINIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
23

24
25 || Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder (F43.10), Intermittent Explosive Disorder (F63.81) and

29. It is my professional opinion that Mr. Cotton currently meets criteria of|

26 Major Depression (F32.2). He does not present with any objective, observable signs

o6
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I

¢ | and symptoms of psychosis.

2 | 30. Given the absence of a prior mental health history of psychotic disorder
" (and the physical symptoms that led to & diagnosis of a TIA and Acute Stress Disorder
5 || by separate medical dostors), I have no reason to believe that Mr, Cotton’s reports of
6 || harassment by the plaintiff would be of delusional quality. It is my professional opinion |
. that Mr. Cotton sincerely believes that the plaintiff and his counsel are ina conspiracy-‘..
9' -against him and that they represent a ﬂlréa_t__;to his life,

10 31. It s my tedical opinion that Mr. Cotton's symptoms are unlikely to}
1 |
2|
(3 || 1o be threatening behaviors by plaintiff or his *agents™) persist. His symptoms are also|

improve as long as ccurrent stressors (pending litigation, and what Mr, Cotton believes

14 ﬁ;l-ike!y to be significantly reduced if he believes the Court was not ignoring and
15

16
17 | 32. It is my medical opinion that Mr, Cotton's mental health condition would

disregarding him,

18 i likely benefit from a rapid resalution of current legal proceedings. In my professional
19
20
21

e

opinion, the level of emotional and physical distress faced by Mr. Cotton at this time |

is above and beyond the usual stress on -any'defandan_t_- being exposed to litigation. lff :_
causative triggers and threats against Mr. Cotton persist, there is a substantial

likelihood that Mr. Cotton may suffer irreparable harm with regards to his mental |

28 ]
' | INDEPENDENT PSYCHIATRIC ASSESSMENT OF DARRYL COTTON;: DECLARATION OF DR, MARKUS
' " PLOESSER IN SUPPORT OF DARRYL COTTON'S EMERGENCY PETITION FOR EXTRAORDINARY WRIT,

1

WRIT OF MANDATE, OR OTHER'APRROPRIATE RELIEF
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33, Besides a removal of current stréésbfs, his r'hénta;l' ueéith condition would
likely benefit from Cognitive Behavioral Therapy for PTSD and depression, as well as
a trial of antidepressant medication.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California

that the foregoing is true and correct. /
//
DATED: W@ // /%6/

3/ /2 0§ Wiafkus Plocsser, MD, LLM, DABPN, FRCP(C)

M. PLOESSER, M.D,
PSYCHIATRIST

8-
INDEPENDENT PSYCHIATRIC ASSESSMENT OF DARRYL COTTON; DECLARATION OF DR. MARKUS

|| PLOESSER IN SUPPORT OF DARRYL COTTON'S EMERGENCY PETITIONFOR EXTRACRDINARY WRIT,

WRIT OF MANDATE, OR OTHER APPROPRIATE RELIEF
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ERACE, an individial,
Plaintiff;

V.

| - DARRYI, CGTT.N A dmdual and
DOES 1 through 10, inclusive;

Deferidants.

DARRYL COTTON, an individual

3

I LARRY GERAt,’ an inidividual, REBECCA
BERRY an individual, ¢ OF

Cross-Defendaiits.

Judge: The Hoiiorable Joel R, Wohlfeil |
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|| matter left for this Court.is to enter judgment and thereby enforc
+4 |l contract and related claims:

3 || judgment submitted by Michael Weinstein (*Weinstei
|| if this Court enters judgment in favor of Plaintift, it will be ¢nflroing-an illegal confract
|and this Court’s judgment will therefore be void, *A conteact that conflicts with an |

|| California Business and Professions Code (“BPC”),
| (Licensing), § 26057 (Denial of Application) which states fhar: “[T]he licenging
|authority shall deny an application if the applicant. .. has been

o | .

A

_D;e‘fendanﬂCﬁros;s@Complainan*t'ar“rty:lz(Zﬁa-t_tic:}ﬁ.("‘?(idttfgti”) hereby files this Response i
to Objections by Plaini‘iiﬁ?:’C’mS&defendan?S‘ Larry Geraei and Rebecca Berry to Jadgment :_'

loin Jury Verdict Propa.sed by Defendant/Cross-Complainant Danyl Cotton {the

“Objections”).
Cotton’s counsel (*Counsel”) is not legally obligated to file this Response

Counsel is, however; ethically compelled to file this Respionse: agains --the-adamant:

;;desn’e of his .own: clxent Cottoti. This ‘Response is solely for the benefit of this Couirt.

This isnota motion. Thi Courtheld a tri: inthis action. This Court made findings. |
A jury verdict was reached in favor of Plainfiff Lawrence Geracl (“Geraci). The only
¢ Gerdci’s bréach of

Counsgl gonld have waited a matter of days for this Court to enter the proposed

epunisel for Getaci. However,

express provision of the law is illegal arid the rights theretowannotbe judicially enforced |

|| Vierra v. Workers" Comp. dppenls Bd, 154 Cal. App. 4th 1142, 1148 (2007). See AL -
| Credit Corp. v, Aguilar Sebastinelli (2003) 113 Cal App. 4th 107
: Sit to give effect to ... . illegal contracts,”) (guotation omitted; en

1080 (“courts do-not |
iphasis added).
Geraci cannot legally own a Cmndltmnal Use Permit (“CUP?} pursuant to
Division 10 (Cannabis); Chapter §

netioned by a licensing

|| authority ot a.city.... forunauthorized commercial cannabis activities... in the thiee years
|| immediately preceding the date the application is Hled with the licensing authotitg.”
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|| s Cross-complaint and drepped this and other maerial facts

:. Cotfon reasserted these allegations thereby amendin

| into thinking that it is lawf

o _ s

'(1) .Geram and CQtt_Ql_l teae;hedv. an le._fjon;_lt venture :agrgeemant.tn develnp: a Mamanaf
| Outtet at the real property of which Cotton is the owner-of-record;! (if) that Geraci was |
|legally barred from owning a Marijuana Outlet;? and (iii) that Geraci and his receptionist,
| Rebecea Berry (“Berry”), conspired to acquire'a CUP from the City of San Diego-at the
|| Property via a fraudulent application that falsely stated that Berry was the owiier of the
|| Property and of the CUP being sought.

Although this Court has expressed its disbelief, Cotton’s -fiame?r'iaifmeyg amended |
1al-allegations. Cotton fired |

his, former attorneys — the law firm of Finch, Thomton & Baird (“FIB”) ~ for fraud i m |

| their representation of him in this action. ‘Theteafter, this Court denied Cotton’ smotions: |

to amend hig Cwss-cemplai‘n aelude th@se auegﬁilaﬂﬁz ]5}111; A dlSGQVEl'y and Motiong :

B,

g his O 'ass—camplamt

At least attrial, it appears this Court was decefved by Gerai, Weinstein and Austin |
1l for Getaci to-acquire 2 CUP viaa fraudulent application. On :
July 8, 2019, Austin testified at trial in this mater a§ followss o

Cotton’s Attorriey: Ate you familiar with this code [BPC § 260572

4 Docket. No. 19 (€otton’s Cross-Complaint) (Couiit Six —
(“Theagreement reaehed-:;en.Nmamber 2nd; 2016is a vahd and bindingoral agresment between. Cattan |
 |land Geraci™).

> 42 Id (Cotton*

Y

Breteh of Oral Contractyat 17:10-12 |

jsubtitted the CUP |
fendant in numerous |
st i ndmanagcme‘ funlicensed, |
i esE, Imsmtwauid it Geraci's abilityio obtain a CUP |
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| language of BPC §.26057.
22 {1(2005) 127 Cal. App. 4th 1.97, 208 .(emphas:ls added) Theresno d‘-mt’ﬂﬂﬂhmﬁ Gerac's -
|lapplication must be denfed and sherefore he cannot scek relief from this Court for

- || something that he-cannot legaHYGWn—aCUP

REPLY O DBJECTI()N BY"PLAWHHIERQSS‘-"DEFE YDAN

& &

Austin: Yes.

Cotton_Attorney: So inl subsection, (a), it siates: that-the Ii"c'ensing‘ authority shall

deny an application if cither the applicant or the premises for which the state hcense

applied do not gualify- forthe license under fhis division, Correet?
Austin; Gorrect,

Cotton's Attorney: All right. So- although you're [allegedly] riof aware of any

sanctions against Mr. Geraci, if such a thing were in existence, would he be barred

from having a license issued in his name?

Austin: N,

_Lé"éJ

Cotton’s Atorney: 8o if the State had an issue with M. Geraci®s name [not being

on the: application], what would that _;p:éqesg: be to try and ensure that e could
acquire the license?

Weinstein: Objection. Your Hcmor Vf'i gus, irrelevant, since we’re not talking about |

a state: l1cense That's.

Ly

The question asked was neither vague ner irrelevant and the objection-should not |

have been sustained by this Coutt.

As to: Austin, b ;tesnmony is dlrectly mn‘tradlc“ted by t’he clear and Hna

Respectfully, Counsel reviewed Austin’s testimony in depth from the trial |

{| transcripts and this Court was so blatantly-deceived by her-that it is clear this Court did |

CaSe Nn 37»-2&17—00010073~CU-BC-CTL o
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1 Austin testified about is ‘a complete lic that that made a mockery of it

' 'got a DUL depending on the circumstances and the history of the in
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publm heaith safetf, an we,[fare of the cmz"ens of Sah ")mga bm '

. e

| not review any of the applicable laws and regulations at issue here. Virtually everything |

iis Court and the
Judicial system. Although the BPC does. contain mecharists by which individuals that

violate laws can proceed through a process to determine whether a license should be

| denied or revoked, those-mechanisms are for orimes that are not directly related to the
|operations of the license issued. As Austin testified at trial, it-would be like if an attorncy

ividual, the attorney-
may or inay not lose his law license. However, if an attorney conspired to steal frori,
kidnap and murder her own client, that attorney would definitely lose their Jaw license

|| and there would be na discretion. or mechatist. in that situation by which that attorney

|l could retain her law license-and continue fo practice law.

As to Weinstein, he-deceived this Coutt with Austin into thinkin
does ot apply to Geraci because:a:CUP issued by the City |
' As defi ned in the San Diego Municipal Code (“SDMC”): “Matijuana outlet means. |

g that the BPC |

-not a “state license.”

;éia retail establishment operating with a Conditional Use Permit... in accordance with |
| dispensary or retailer licensing requirements contained inthe California Businessand
| Professions Code sectians gaverning marijuana and nedical marijugna.” SDMC §
|42.1502 (emtiphasis added). |

SDMC § 42.1502 is ¢clear and unamb1gu@us - & Marijuana :Outlet CUP

| with the Clt-y s land use regulatmns can cmly be issued by the Clty and 'operate if the |

ose and. Intenf) ( ;

5

o - REPLY TO OBJECTION BY PLAINTIEF, !CR@SS-BEFENDANTS LARRY GER/ 'CI AND:

REBECCA BERRY TQ JUDGMENT ON JURY '

Case No. 372017000100 OB C ot
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: _Dmsmn to ensure.that marijuana is:not.diverted fisr ’1llegal puIp
{}authorized under’ st
marijuanu... in violation of state law

o~ ~

to Weinstein’s objections, there is nio such thing as a “City license™ thiat can be issued

'withoutrequiring a' “state license.”

Austin knows this. In her own words: “T ami an expert in cannabis licensing and -

entitlement af the state and local levels and regularly speak on the {opic gcross the
|nation.”S At trial in this matter, she pretended that she did not know if Geraci had
|previously been sanctioned by the City for unlawfil cannabis operations. Another
|demonstrable lie - perjury: Austin has been served with numerous submissions in this |
{|and related matters that contain requests for judicial notice of the lawsuits against Geraci |
|| for his management/ownership of illegal marijuana dispensaties — she deceived this |
Court.

A Tiis COURTISTmGAL LY OBLIGATED 0 NoT ENFORCE ANTL L

Whatever the state of the pleadings, when the evidence shows that the plaintiff
in substance seeks to enforce an illegal contract or Tecover compensation for
anillegal act, the court has both the power and duty tn ascertmn the true
facts in order that it may not unwi g :
consumimation ar encoiragement of what: public pulicy fo.rblds [Cltatlons ]
1t is immaterial ‘that the partles, whether by inat erten zcoﬂSen‘t even at
the trial do not-raise the issue. The court may d6 so .own moti

the testimony produces evidence « ff,rllegah It
issiue on: motion for new trial; in a pruc B 6
award, or even on appeal.

to enfore an.aybitrafion

M Lewis Queen v. NM. Ball Sons (1957) 48 Cal.2d 141, 146~48 (emphaSls added; citations |
* {Fomitted).

oses, and to limit is use to ﬂmse persons |
laws. Nothing in 1 vision: d o quthorize the... sule... « of |
__________ 1 3¢is riat the mtem‘ qf thzs Division to supersede or canﬂwt

with state law; but to implement [AUMA, J7): (emph&sm ndcfed) :

S Razukiv. Malan, San Diego County Supetict Court, Case No, 37-201 8-0034229-CU-BC. L

- HROA 127, % 2.

¥ [ERRY TO JUDGY ToN”JURYZ':f?RmCT. ROPOSE___ BY
DEFENDANT CROSS@OMPL ‘ N
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|B.  ILLEGAL CONTE

{issuance of a CUP

| constitutes frand and violates AUMA :
| v. Rky. Mount. Motor Tariff (9th Cir. 1982) 674 F.2d 1252.
| doctrine. ... extends.antitrust liability ‘
| obtain competitive advantage™). Secend, Geraci is. barred from. owning a- CUP for the

O O

In the present case the issue of illegality was faised in Cotfon’s pro-se complaint,
consistently thereafter in numerous motions after Cotton fired his former counsel for |
fraud, and at trial. |
ACTS
California courts have held that a lawful contract "must net be in conflict either

: :with express statutes or public policy"—as:a corollaty, "[a] contract that ConﬂlCtS with an.
express provision of the law is illegal and the rights thereto eannot be judicially enforced.”
Vierra vi Workers' Comp. dppeals Bd., 154 Cal. App. 4th 1142, 1148 (g@@7)(mauﬂng
|| owitted); see also Armendariz v; Found. Health Psycheare Servs., bré., 24 Cal, 4th 83,
| 124 (2000) ("If the central purpose of the contract is tainfed with illegality, then the |

| contract as a whale cannot be enforced.™).

Here; the alleged contract in this action is contrary to express statiites and public

{policy. The alleged contract iri this action was subject to ong condifion precedent ~ the |

at the Proparty to Gerned, That is the “objéct” of the alleged contract |

| that Getaci sought'to enforce in this-action. But, Geraci cannot legally own the object of |
{this action for at least three: obvious reasorns. First, the €CUP application filed by Berry |

and federal antitrust laws.” See Clipper Exxpress, |
. 1258 (“[ T]he Walker Process |

mits fraud on & court or agency to- |

t¢ e who-cen

reasons set forth above. Lastly, enforcement of this alleged contract violates the |

! Cotton respectﬁﬁly notes that.on June 27, 2019, attorney Andrew Flofes argued to this coutt that |
‘he had evidence that directly implicated Gina Atistin.in’ an antiztrust conspuacy o acqmre all uf tlle :
marl;uana licenses in San ] ied: it 2 :
{1 approximately 23 of the Himited niiiber of canndbis: : permits ssy

0. On July 8,:2019. At testi

1 hc Clty af San Dlege
has. capped thesnumber of Matijuara Qutiet perzmts to four per City’ Counml District fora maxiramn |

ftotal ofthirtyssix,

7

REPLY TO-OBJECTION BY PLAIN TIFF/CRQSS-DEFENHANTS LARRY GERACI AND
REBECCA BERRY TO JUDGMENT ON .IURY RI)ICT' ' SED BY
DEFENDANT;’CROS&COMPL COTTON
Case No. 3’7-2017—08810(}73-EU-BC-CTL
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||cannabis. license both to prevent the infiltration of organized crime and to preverit

| monopolies being formed in the cannabis market. See BPC § 2600 notes (describing

| illegal monopoly; attempt to lessen competition, or to fix prices in violation of law of th1s
|state. .

{C. CouNSEL’S ETHICAL DiLEMMA

|struggled with his ethical obligations to his client and the State and Federal judiciaries.

1 by Geraci and Cotton in November of 2016 is.or is tiot a fully mtegrated sales eonfract
|| for Geraci’s purchase of the Property from Cotton.

: of a group. of individuals who: have conspired to create an unlawhi
|1ts goal to acquire a monopoly and that, inter alia, bribed at
| Bell v. Mitwaukee (7th Cir. 1984) 746 F.2d 1205, 1233 (42 US.C. § 1985... createles] |
| protection. of law. ™).

| violated their ethical duties to this Court by failing to inform it of the conspiracies against |

underlying public policy that requires disclosure of all Pparties with an interest in g

purpose and intent of cannabis regulations); BPC § 26222.3 (“An association that is |

organized pursuant to this chapter shall net conspire in restraint of trade, orsefve 4 an |

For over year, cver since Counsel became Cotton’s attorney-of-recerd, he has

Counsel signed-up for a dispute regarding whether 4 three-sentenee document executed

What Counsel could never have imagined was that Geraci and his agents are-part |
. monopoly in the |
marijuana market in'the City of Saii Diego. A group that uses vivlence in fi |
and intimidated witnesses to |

rthierance of |

prevent them from testifying at trial in this matfer in vialation of 42 U.8.C, § 1985.5 See |

a cause of action based on a conspiracy which deprives onie of access fo justice or cqual

Furthermore, every attorney whio reprasésited any party

in this and related sctions |

Cotton, They all knew of should have known that (i) Geram was barred 45 a matter of law |
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|muitiple attoreys from. different law fin

Counsel. Allowmg
provide support for Cotton’s-allegations that this Count
- || Weinstein, However, Counsel does ot actuatty believe. thls Coutt is corript,

1? See Stevem W Ry%m 608 F.. Supp. 710, 730 §
| clear rule 'of immunity with respect to- the |
) | thie civil rights-of others while representing the
|| the attorney may: be held Ha

| or sheknows, or reasonably should have anWn, would violste the cleatly established: constitutional or -

O s

| from owning a marijuana license and this action seeks to enforce an illegal contract, (if)
| Geraci could not prevail in this action becanse he cannot aequire a mal'l_]uanaperrnlt from |
|the City via ani application to the City’s Department of Development Services without

commiitting fraud, and (ifi) the November Document isnota:filly integrated sales contract -
as a matter of law, therefore r:endeﬁng- the ‘Instant liiti"gation ‘the arc’hetype of a sham -

;.§_ 1986. Kammqurzahi- v, Los Azzge;le.sf Pphcel!gg{,a 839 F;.Q;d 621, 626 (91:11 C’Ir. 19;88)
1 C“[8] 1986 imposes liability on every person who knows of an impending violation of [§]

1985 but neglects or refises to prevent the violation.”).*
' Up until now, Counsel’s main dilemma was attempting to convince this court that

15 and the City are legally and. financially

|motivated to prevent the exposure of their individual crimes because they have all
contributed to- Cotton’s damages and are thus jointly liable as joint tortfeasors even if not

as.co-conspirators..

In a strange turn of events, this. ReSponS_e represented Counsel’s greatest ethical |

{| dilernma. both: pe:rsonally and pmfessmnally Personally, t_hm Court has with. open .
contempt disregarded Counsel’s dssertion of facts and arguments and never provided its |
' || reasoning forits rulings. Counsel relied on this Coutt impartiality and it maade a Hat of |

this Court to enter a judgment to ‘enforce an illegal contract would

g covrupt and has conspired: w1th :

N.D. Cal: 1984) (*Though there appears fo be no. i;
tity under the-civil rights laws of attorneys who violate |
elr clients; cases under-the Civil Rights Act indicate that
for damiages if, on behalf of the cliont; the attorney takes actions that he {

statitory rights of another.™).
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legally owri a CUP and that the entire trial in this action mads thi
Emperor wearing thie Emperors Clothes. This Court presided over trial in this matter and

ID.  WEINSTEIN'S OBIECTIONS TC

|that only adds one paragraph stating the Court

O O

Thus, despite the personal desire for this Court to be held acconntable for its CETOTS.

i~ and this- Court has no conception of the hortific: emotional and financial distress. its |
refusal to propetly adjudicate this action has ‘caused nunieroiss individuals and their |
| families - Counsel will. not perpetuate the same lack of ethics that led to this instant {

‘situation.

Professionally, Counsel and Cotton were greatly at: odds over the filing of this
Response. If this Court takes five minutes to contemplate that Weinstein, Austin and
Demian are capable of lying in order te avoid legal and'ﬁnanc"ial'liability; and reviewed

Ithe applicable laws and regulations at isste hiere, it wonld reahze that Geragf cannot

is Court the proverbial

made grand statements from its clevated bench about justice and impartiality in an-action
in which evety attorney knew that this Court had no idea what was actually taking place. |

: COTTON’S PROPOSED JUDGMENT |
‘Weinstein in his Opposition does NOT atgue that'the three findings by this Court, |

as to questions of law that Cotton proposes 1o be included in the final judgment, are |
incorrect. Rather, Weinstein concludes, without any: fagtual -or legal support, thaty “To: |

include this partial recitation and characterization of findings

and conclusion by the Court -
is unnecessary; argumentative, and invites confusion.” Opp. at2:5-6. |
Catton’s proposed judgmetit is an =ediited version ofWieiﬁsfeinz’s- -prc:spofseﬂ judgniéﬂt' f

lcase, which ate

1. The November 2, 2016 written document i a tully initegrated sales contract |
as alleged by Plaintiff ini his Complaint,

10
REPLY TO-OBIECTION BY. PLAINTIFF/CRGSS-DEFENH ANTS LARRY GERACI AN
REBECCA BERRY TQ JUDGMENT ON JURY VERDICT PROPOSED BY

DEFENDANT/CROSS-COMPLAINANT DARRYL COTTON
Case No, 37:2017-00010073-CU-BC-CTL
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2. Plaintiffs testimony and evidence at trial neither constitute legal affirmafive.
defenses of mistake or fraud mor contradict his judicial admissions in his Answer |
to Defendant’s Cross-complain. '

3. Plaintiff is not barred by law pursuant to the California Business and
Professions Code, Division 10 (Cannabis), Chapter 5 (Licensing), § 26057 (Denial
af Application) from owning a Marijuana Outlet conditional use permit issued by
the City of San Diego. .
These three findings by the Court are questions of law that support Weinstein’s

client’s case. There is no logical reason for him. to oppose their inclusion and there is
& PP neir neil :

certainly nothing that is unnecessary, argumentative.or that-would invite confusion from

their inclusion,

E.  CONCLUSION
Counsel sincerely and emphatically requests that this Court.consider the possibility

| that this entire action has been a sham meant to deceive: this Court. If not-for Coton’s

| sake, then at least for its' own. Counsel does not want to be irivolved in a litigation matter

in which one of the issues is whether this Court has unlawfully conspired with Weinstein
to predetermine the ouytcome of this action in a manner that minimizes. the fman01al.§
liability of nunrerous attomeys the Court has made statsments about that can be used

against it to justify aﬂegatlﬂns.-of carruption,

|DATED:  August 19, 2019

11

- REPLY TO OBIECTION BY PLAINT IFFICROSS-DEFENDANTSLARRY GERACI AND

REBECCA BERRY TO JUDGMENT ON JURY VERDT
DEFENDANT/CROSS:COMY NT VI
Case No.: 37“2917-00(}19073~CU*BC-CTL
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Attorneys for Defendant/Cross-Complainant Darryl Cotton

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, CENTRAL DIVISION

LARRY GERACI, an individual, - | Case No. 37-2017-00010073-CU-BC-CTL
Lo Judge: The Honorable Joel R. Wohifeil
Plaintiff Dept:  C-73
VS. : MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND

DARRYL COTTON, an individual; and DOES 1- | FOR NEW TRIAL
10, inclusive,

Defendants. Action Filed:  March 21, 2017
' Trial Date: June 28, 2019

DARRYL COTTON, an individual,
Cross-Complainant,

VS.

LARRY GERACI, an individual, REBECCA
BERRY, an 1nd1v1dual and DOES 1 THROUGH
10, INCLUSIVE

Cross-Defendants.

AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF MOTION

O:
MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL
Case No. 37-2017-00010073-CU-BC-CTL
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SWORD, THEREBY VIOLATING MR. COTTON’S RIGHT TO A FAIR AND IMPARTIAL
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INTRODUCTION

Mr. Cotton seeks a new trial on three grounds. First, the alleged November 2, 2016 agreement
is illegal and void because Larry Geraci’s (“Mr. Geraci”) failure to disclose his interest in both the
Property’ and the Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) violates local law and policies, as well as state law.
More particularly, the San Diego Municipal Code (the “SDMC”) requires those disclosures to be made.
Further, Mr. Geraci entered into two stipulated judgments with the City of San Diego (“City”) that
mandated he complied with the City’s CUP requirements, which he purposefully failed to do in his
performance of the alleged November 2, 2016 agreement. For his claims against Mr. Cotton, Mr., Geraci
asks this Court to assist him in violating the SDMC and the policy of AUMA, which the Court is
prohibited from doing. As a result, the jury’s finding that the alleged November 2, 2016 agreement is a
valid contract is contrary to law.

Second, the jury applied an objective standard to Mr. Cotton’s conduct and a subjective standard
to Mr. Geraci’s as it relates to the alleged ‘November 2, 2016 agreement and subsequent
acknowledgement e-mail. The jury found the parties entered intola contract on November 2, 2016 and
discounted the acknowledgement e-mail based upon Mr Geraci’s testimony that he only replied to the
first line of Mr Cotton s e-mail. Mr. Geraci’s Ob_]CCthC conduct demonstrates that either (i) he agreed
to a 10% interest that he later refused existed, or (ii) there was an agreement to agree. Had the jury
applied an objective standard to the conduct of both parties, it would not — nor could it — have reached
the verdict it did. The judgment entered in accordance with the jury’s verdict is contrary to law.’

Third, Mr. Geraci used the attorney-client privilege asa shreld during discovery and a sword at
trial, which prohibited Mr. Cotton from recei\ring a fair and impartial trial. During discovery,

Mr. Cotton sought documents and communications by and between Mr. Geraci and Gina Austin

'(“Ms. Austin”) relating to the drafting of various agreements related to the purchase of the Property.

Mr. Geraci objected to the request and never produced communications related to the same based upon

attorney-client privilege. At trial, however, Mr. Geraci waived the attorney-client privilege, for the first

! The term “Property” shaIl mean and refer to the real property located at 6176 Federal Boulevard, San Diego, California.

2 The “agreement to agree "argument is a defense to the breach of contract claim made by Mr. Geraci. The argument should
not, and cannot, be considered a judicial adm:ssmn to the separate issue of Mr. Cotton’s claim as to the oral joint venture
agreement.
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time, and both he and Ms. Austin testified as to their communications. Mr. Cotton was unable to cross-
examine either witness with the relevant documents Mr. Geraci withheld during discovery on the ground
of attorney-client privilege. The requested communications went to one of the central issues of the case
— whether the alleged November 2, 2016 agreement was an agreement, or an agreement to agree. The
use of the attorney-client privilege as a sword at trial was made even more improper given the content
of the testimony by Mr. Geraci and Ms. Austin, both of whom accused Mr. Cotton of a crime — extortion.
As a result, Mr. Cotton did not receive a fair and impartial trial.
ARGUMENT

A. STANDARD FOR MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL.

A verdict may be vacated, in whole or in part, and a new trial granted on all or part of the issues,
when either the verdict is contrary to the law, there is an crror in law at the trial, there is insufficient
evidence to support the verdict, or an irregularity in the proceedings. Cal. Code Civ. Proc. § 657(6)~(7).
A party may raise iliegality of contract on a motion for neﬁv trial. Lewis & Queen v. NM. Ball Sons
(1957) 48 Cal.2d 141, 148 (citing Pacific Wharf & Stofage Co. v Standard American Dredging Co.
{1920) 184 C,all;= 21, 23-24)); Gray v. Robinson (1939) 33 Cal.App.2d .1 77, 182 (irregularity in the
proceedings); A&M Records, Inc. v. Heilman (1977) 75 Cal.App.3d 554, 566 (litigant cannot claim
privilege during discovery, then testify at trial as to the same matter); see also Webber v. Webber (1948)
33 Cal.2d 153, 164 (affidavit not required where motion for new trial “relies wholly upon facts appearing
upon the face of the record”), On a motion for new trial, the Court sits as the 13t juror and is “vested
with the plenary power — and burdened with a cofre%lati\}e dﬁty —to independently evaluate the evidence.”

Ryan v. Crown Castle NG Networks Inc. (2016) 6 Cal. App.5th 775, 784.

B. RELEVANT BACKGROUND.

Mr. Geraci, an IRS Enrolled Agent, Has Two Judgments Prohibiting the Operation

- of'a Marijuana Dispensary Unless He Complies With the SDMC

Mr. Geraci has been an enrolled agent with the IRS (“Enrolled Agent”), which “means he has a
federal license that allows him to represent clients before the IRS,” since 1999. (Reporter’s Transcript

of Trial (“RT”) July 3, 2019 at 14:22-16:24; 56:25-57:11, the relevant excerpts of which are attached
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hereto as Exhibit A.”) Prior to his involvement with the Property and during the time in which he was
an Enrolled Agent, Mr. Geraci was involved in at least two illegal marijuana dispensaries (the “Illegal
Marijuana Dispensaries”). (See id. (Mr. Geraci testifying that he has been an enrolled agent since 1999);
Stipulation for Entry of Final Judgment and Permanent Injunction; Judgment Thereon [CCP § 664.6]
(the “Tree Club Judgment”) and Stipulation for Entry of Final Judgment and Permanent Injunction;
Judgment Thereon [CCP § 664.6] (the “CCSquared Judgment™) (collectively referred to herein as
“Geraci Judgments™) true and correct copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibits B and C,
respectively, and incorporated herein by this reference.)

Pursuant to the terms of the Geraci Judgments, Mr. Geraci could only operate or maintain a
marijuana dispensary after providing written proof to the City that “any required permits or licenses to
operate a marijuana dispensary, collective or cooperative have been obtained from the City of San Diego
as required by the SDMC.” (Exhibit B (Tree Club Judgment) at f 10(b), 17 (emphasis added); Exhibit
—(CCSquared Judgment) aty 9(b).) Unlike paragraphs 9 through 14, paragraph 10(b) in the Tree Club
Judgment is not limited to the “PROPERTY.” (Sée id.j Unlike paragrai)hs 8 and 10 in the CCSquared
Judgment, paragraph 9 is not limited to the ‘;PROPERTY.” (Exhibit C (CCSquared Judgment).%)
Additionally, Mr. Geraci was fined $25,000 in the Trec Club Judgﬁlent and $75,000 in the CCSquared
Judgment. (Exhibit B (Tree Club Judgment) at 4 17; Exhibit C (CCSljuared Judgment) at  15.)

State Marijuana Laws

In 2003, the State of California (the “State”) enacted the Medical Marijuana Program Act (the
“MMPA”), which esfablished certain requirements for Medical Marijuana Consumer Cooperatives
(“MMCC”).  On October 9, 2015, the State passed the Medical Marijuana Public Safety and
Environmental Protection Act, 2015 California Senate Bill No. 643, California 2015-2016 Regular
Session (hereinafier cited to as “S.B. 643”). Pursuant to S.B. 643, an application must be denied if the
applicant does not qualify for licensure. (S.B. 643 at § 10 (adding Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 19323(a),

(b)(8).) An applicant does not qualify if he has been sanctioned by a city for unauthorized commercial

3 For the convenience of the Court and to avoid a multiplicity of exhibits, true and correct copies of all relevant excerpts of
testimony at trial on July 3, 2019 cited herein are contained in Exhibit A. Each excerpt of testimony is clearly identified by
a slipsheet and bookmarked for this Court’s ease or reference and expedient access.

* The CCSquared Judgment was a global setilement of two separate civil actions.
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marijuana activity. (/d.) Although Section 12, which added § 19324, provides that an applicant shall
not be denied a state license if the denial is based upon certain conditions, neither of the two conditions
specified applies to § 19323(b)(8). (/d at § 12.) In the Geraci Judgments, the City sanctioned
Mr. Geraci for unauthorized commercial marijuana activity. (See Exhibits B and C.)

On November 8, 2016, the voters of California approved Proposition 64, the Control, Regulate,
and Tax Adult Use of Marijuana Act (“AUMA”). (Control, Regulate, and Tax Adult Use Of Marijuana
Act, 2016 Cal. Legis. Serv. Prop. 64 (hereinafter cited as “Prop. 64”).) The purpose and intent of
AUMA was to: (i) strictly control the cultivation and sale of marijuana “through a system of state
licensing, regulation, and enforcement; (ii) allow local governments to enforce state laws and
regulations; and (iii) bring marijuana into a regulated and legitimate market to create a transparent and
accountable system. (Prop. 64 at §§ 2, 3.) In order to create more legitimacy and transparency, among
other things, AUMA requires the disclosure of all persons Who have an interest in the license. (/d. at
§6.1 (addiﬁg §§ 26001 (a) (providing broad definition of applicant), 26055(a) (licensing authorities may
issuc state licenses only to qualified applicants), and 26057 (prohibiting certain applicants from

obtaining a license).)

Local Marijuana Lavs.‘rs

After the enactment of the MMPA, fhe Cify addpfed Ordinance No. 20356 (“Ordinance 20356”).
Pursuant to Ordinance 20356, a CUP ié requirled to operate an MMCC. (See id. at § 126.0303(a);
§ 141.0614.) In February 2017, the Cify adopted Ordiﬁance 'No.. 20793, which fequires a conditional
use permit for a marijuana outlet. (Ordinance No. 20793) at p. 4 (§ 126.0303).) The approval of a CUP
18 governed by Process Three, which reqﬁires approval by a hearing officer and allows the hearing
officer’s decision to be appealed to the Planning Commission. SDMC § 112.0501 (providing overview
of Process Three). | |

The City’s CUP requirements mandate the disclosure of anyone who holds an interest in the
relevant property or a CUP. (See TE 30 (Owneréhip Discloéure Statement), a true and correct copy of
which is attéched hereto as Exhibit D and incorporated herein by this reference.) SDMC § 112.0102(b)
(application shall be made on forms provided by city manager and accompanied by all the information
required by the same); SDMC § 112.0102(c) (infdrmation requested on forms updated “to comply with
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revisions to local, state, or federal law, regulation, or policy. As evidenced by the SDMC, there are at
least two reasons for the information mandated by the application forms.

The first reason for the disclosure requirements is conflict of interest laws. (RT July 8, 2019 at
33:10-34:1, the relevant excerpts of which are attached hereto as Exhibit E;* see also SDMC § 27.3563
(prohibiting conflicts of interest).) The City’s ethics ordinances (collectively, the “Ethics Ordinances™)
were adopted “to embrace clear and unequivocal standards of disclosure and transparency in government
so as to avoid conflicts of interest.” SDMC § 27.3501. The Ethics Ordinances require, among others,
that a City official disclose his or her economic interests. Id. at § 27.3510. The Ethics Ordinances make
it unlawful for any city official to make a municipal decision in which he or she knows, or has reason to
know, that they have a disqualifying financial interest. Id. at § 27.3561; see also id. at §§ 27.3562-63.
The Ethics Ordinance applies to hearing officers who make decisions on CUP applications. SDMC
§ 27.3503 (see definitions of “City Official” and “High Level Filer,” the latter includes, by cross-
reference to Govt. Code § 87200, hearing officers).

The second reason relates to the requirements for obtaining a license for a Marijuana Outlet
(*“MO”), which requires the applicant/responsible persons to undergo background checks after the
issuance of a CUP. SDMC § 112.0102(c); id. at §§ 42.1502 (defining responsible persons), 42.1504
(Tequiring a permit to operate a marijuana outlef), and 42.1507 (requiring background check); (see also
RT July 9, 2019 at 113:18-114:3 (Ms. Tirandazi; a City employee, testifying that background checks
are required after the CUP process) the relevant excerpts of which are attached hereto as Exhibit F. 6)

Failure to Disclose Ownership Interest and Geraci Judgments

Mr. Geraci identified the Property and bega.n talking with Mr. Cotton because the Property “may
qualify for a dispensary.” (Exhibit A at 59:18-19.) On October 31, 2016, Ms. Austin — a self-
proclaimed expert in cannabis licensing — e;mailed Abhay ‘Schweitzer instructing him to keep

M. Cotton’s name off the CUP application “unless necessary” because Mr. Cotton had “legal issues

* For the convenience of the Court and to avoid a multiplicity of exhibits, true and correct copies of all relevant excerpts of
testimony at trial on July 8, 2019 cited herein are contained in Exhibit E. Each excerpt of testimony is clearly identified by
a slipsheet and bookmarked for this Court’s ease or reference and expedient access.

§ For the convenience of the Court and to avoid a multiplicity of exhibits, true and correct copies of all relevant excerpts of
testimony at trial on July 9, 2019 cited herein are contained in Exhibit F. Each excerpt of testimony is clearly identified by
a slipsheet and bookmarked for this Court’s ease or reference and expedient access.
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with the City.” (Trial Exhibit (“TE”) 36, a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit G
and incorporated herein by this reference; Exhibit E at 11:28-13:23) (Ms. Austin characterizing herself
as a marijuana expert), /d. at 54:10-55:11.}) On the same date, Mr. Geraci caused a Form DS-3032
General Application (the “CUP General Application™) to be filed with the City. (See TE 34, a true and
correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit H and incorporated herein by this reference, at 34-
001.} Rebecca Berry (“Ms. Berry”) was identified as the “Lessee or Tenant” and the Permit Holder.
({d.) Mr. Geraci is not identified anywhere in the CUP General Application. (See id.) Section 7 of the
CUP General Application requires the disclosure of, among other things, the Geraci Judgments (id. at
§ 7); however, they were not disclosed. (See id.)

On the same date, Ms. Berry executed and submitted the Ownership Disclosure Statement to the
City. (See Exhibit D). As set forth in the Ownership Disclosure Statement, the list “must include the
names and addresses of all persons who have an interest in the property, recorded or otherwise, and state
the type of interest.” (/d.) The Ownership Disclosure Statement also required the disclosure of “Other
Financially Interested Persons.” (/d.} The disclosure requirements are mandatory and do not include
exceptions for Enrolled Agénts. (See id.) Notwithstanding, Mr. Geraci is not identified in the
Ownership Disclosure Statement. (7d.) |

Both Mr. Geraci and Ms. Berry testified that the exclusion of Mr. Geraci was purposeful; he was
not disclosed because he was as an Enrolled Agent. (Exhibit A at 193:19-194:5 .} Mr, Geraci also
claimed that the lack of disclosure was “for convenience of administration.” (See Plaintiff/Cross-
Defendant Larvy Geraci’s Answers to Special Interrogatories, Set Two, Propounded by
Defendant/Cross-Complainant Darryl Cotton (hereinafter, the “Discovery Responses™), a true and
correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit I and incorporated herein by this reference, at 12:8-
16.) However,. Ms. Austin instructed the consultants to leave Mr. Cotton’s name off the CUP
application unless necessary because of Mr. Cotton’s “legal issues with the City.” Mr. Geraci also had
“legal issues with the City™ and he was not disclbsed. (Exhibit E ";lt 54:24-55:11))

Mr. Gerﬁci’s Objective Manifestations |

On November 2, 2016, Messrs. Geraci and Coftoﬁ executed the alleged November 2, 2016

agreément, whic'h the jury determined constituted a contract. (TE 38, a true and correct copy of which
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is attached hereto as Exhibit J and incorporated herein by this reference.) Shortly after receiving a copy
of the alleged agreement, Mr. Cotton sent an e-mail stating the 10% equity position in the dispensary
was not included in the document and requesting an acknowledgment that a provision regarding the
same would be included in “any final agreement.” (TE 42, a true and correct copy of which is attached
hereto as Exhibit K and incorporated herein by this reference.) Mr. Geraci responded, “no problem at
all.” (Id.)

Mr. Geraci then caused certain draft agreements to be exchanged with Cotton. (See TE 59 and
62, true and correct copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibits L and M, respectively, and
incorporated herein by this reference.) The draft agreements did not state they were amending a prior
agreement for the purchase of the property, did not reference a prior agreement, and the “Date of
Agreement” was “[t]he latest date of execution of the Selier or the Buyer, as indicated on the signature
page.” (See e.g., Exhibit L at 059-003.) The draft agreements included terms that were not included in
the November 2, 2016 document, and provide no indication or reference to the alleged November 2,
2016 agreement. (See id) And none of the documents or communications produced by Mr. Geraci ever
referenced extorti'on, Which was never raised during the course of discovery.

Mr. Geraci Used the Attorney-Client Privilege as a Shield and a Sword

Mr. Cotton propounded discovery seeking, among other things, documents and communications
by and bétween Mr. Geraci and Ms. Austin. (See Exhibit I (Discovery Responses) at 13:1-13, 14:8-
23.) Mr. Geraci refused to produce any documents or communications based upon attorney-client
privilége. (See id) Mr. Geraci waived the attorney-client privilege for the first time and trial, and both
he and Ms. Austin testified as to communications regardiﬁg the drafting of a purchase agreement and
statements Mr. Geract purportedly made that he was being extorted by Mr, Cotton. (Exhibit E at 41:10-
26; see also Exhibit A at 129:22-28 (Mr. Geraci testifying as to the same statements).)” The testimony
of Mr. Geraci and Ms. Austin was not previously disclosed due to the attorney-client privilege, but and

it effectively accused Mr. Cotton of a crime. See Pen. Code, § 518 (defining extortion).

7 “Extortion” is defined as the “...obtaining of property or other consideration from another, with his or her consent, or the
obtaining of an official act of a public officer, induced by a wrongful use of force or fear, or under color of official right.”
Cal. Pen. Code § 518. None of the evidence suggests any “wrongful use of force or fear” by Mr. Cotton. Multiple statements
equating Mr. Cotton’s conduct to extortion were inflammatory and prejudicial.
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C. THE ALLEGED NOVEMBER 2, 2016 AGREEMENT WAS ILLEGAL.

The Court has a duty to, sua sponte, refuse to entertain an action that seeks to enforce an illegal
contract. May v. Herron, (1954) 127 Cal. App.2d 707, 710-12 (internal citations and quotations omitted)
(voiding contract where plaintiff sought to recover balance due on contract, which recovery would have
allowed plaintiff to “benefit from his willful and deliberate flouting of a law designed to promote the
general public welfare”). “Whether a contract is illegal ... is a question of law to be determined from
the circumstances of each particular case.” Kashani v. Tsann Kuen China Enterprise Co. (2004) 118
Cal. App. 4th 531, 540; Bovard v. American Horse Enterprises, Inc. (1988) 201 Cal.App.3d 832, 838.
A contract 1s unlawful and unenforceable if it is contrary to, in pertinent part, (1) an express provision
of law; or (2) the policy of express law. Cal. Civ. Code § 1667(1)-(3); Kashani, supra, at 541 (contract
must have a lawful object to be enforceable). For purposes of illegality, the “law” includes statutes,
local ordinances, and administrative regulations issues pursuant to the same. Id. at 542. “All contracts
which have for their object, directly or indirectly, to exempt‘anyone from responsibility for his own ...
violation of law, whether willful or negligent, are against the policy of the law.” Cal. Civ. Code § 1668
(emphasis added). A contract made for the purpése of furthering any matter prohibited by law, or to aid
or assist any party in the violation of the law, is void. Homami v. Iranzadi (1989) 211 Cal. App.3d 1104,
1109 (voiding a contract entered into for the purpose of avoiding state and federal income tax

regulations). As summarized in Yoo v. Jho (2007) 147 Cal. App.4t" 1249:

No principle of law is better suited than that a party to an illegal contract
cannot come into a court of law and ask to have his illegal objects to be
carried out. The courts generally will not enforce an illegal bargain or
lend their assistance to a party who seeks compensation for an illegal act.

/d. at 1255 (internal citations and quotations omitted); see also Kashani, supra, at 179; Cal. Civ. Code
§§ 1550, 1608. “The test as to whether a demand connected with an illegal transaction is capable of
being enforced is whether the claimant requires the aid of an illegal transaction to establish his case.”
Brenner v. Haley (1960) 185 Cal.App.2d 183, 287.

May is instructive. In May, the Newmans and May entered into a contract whereby May agreed
to construct a home for the Newmans. May, supra, at 708. However, May could only perform under

the contract by acquiring construction materials through the veteran’s priority status under Federal
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Priorities Regulation No. 33, which gave preference to veterans in obtaining construction materials. /d.
The Newmans transferred title to their property to a veteran and May secured construction materials
because of his veteran’s status. Id. at 708-09. The Court of Appeals held that the contract between May
and the Newmans, while valid on its face, was illegal because May knew the house was not intended for
occupancy by a veteran and May’s conduct in performing his obligations under the contract violated the
federal regulation.

Mr. Geraci, like May, violated local laws in pursuit of his performance under the alleged
November 2, 2016 agreement. On October 31, 2016, Mr. Geraci caused to be filed with the City a CUP
application which failed to disclose his ownership interest in the Property, the CUP, or the Geraci
Judgments, despite the City’s requirement that each of the foregoing be disclosed. (See Exhibit H at
034-001 (§ 7 requires disclosure of Geraci Judgments), id. at 034-004 (requires disclosure of all persons
with an interes‘; in the Property and CUP); SDMC § 112.0102(b) (application shall be made on forms
provided by city manager and shall be accompanied by all the information required by the same); SDMC
§ 112.0102(c) (information requested dn forms updated “to comply with revisions to local, state, or
federal law, regulation, or policy). |

The non-disclosure was purposeful. (See Exhibit T — (Discovéry Resp.) at 12:8-16.} Indeed,
efforts were undertaken to exclude any reference to Mr. Cotton in the CUP application because of his
“legal issues” with the City. There are no disclosure exceptions for Enrolled Agents, and neither the
SDMC nor the Geraci Judgments allow Mr. Geraci to comply with some of the CUP requirements.
Applying the test of illegal contracts, Mr. Geraci relied upon the General Application and Ownership
Disclosure Statement to suggest that he complied with the terms of the alleged November 2, 2016
agreement. As a result, Mr. Geraci asks this Court to assist him in violating local laws, which the Court
is prohibited from doing,

The allegéd November 2, 2016 agreement also viollates the policy of express law in the form of

the CUP requirements and AUMA.® The policy of the SDMC is disclosure and transparency in

8 Although AUMA was adopted days after the alleged November 2, 2016 agreement, pursuant to Ordinance No. (0-20793,
all MMCC applications in the City were replaced with the new retail sales category called an MO. Thus, the CUP application
submitted by Ms. Berry on behalf of Mr. Geraci is subject to AUMA. Furthermore, the text of AUMA was circulated in July
of 2016 so all of the.requirements for potential successful applicants were already known to the public and attorneys
specializing in cannabis laws and regulations prior to November 2, 2016.
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government. Similarly, the policy of AUMA is to bring marijuana into a regulated and legitimate market
to create a transparent and accountable system. Mr, Geraci’s efforts, which were undertaken both before
and after November 2, 2016, violated both policies. Neither of the policies provides any exceptions for
Enrolled Agents, “convenience of administration,” or those persons with “legal issues” — all of which
Mr, Geraci has used to justify his purposeful non-disclosure.

D. THE JURY APPLIED AN OBJECTIVE STANDARD TO MR. COTTON, AND A

SUBJECTIVE STANDARD TO MR. GERACL.

Mutual assent is determined under an objective standard applied to the outward manifestations,
the surrounding circumstances, the nature and subject matter of the coniract, and subsequent conduct of
the partics; assent is not determined by unexpressed intentions or understandings. Alexander v.
Codemasters Group Limited (2002) 104 Cal. App.4® 129, 141 (disapproved on other grounds in Reid v.
Google, Inc. (2010) 50 Cal.4th 512, 524); People v. Shelton (2006) 37 Cal.4™ 759, 767 (internal citations
and quotations omitted). Agreements to agree are unenforceable because there is no intent to be bound
and the Court may not speculate upon what the parties will agree. Bustamante v. Intuit, Inc. (2009) 141
Cal App.4™ 199, 213-14 (internai citations and quotations omitted).

There was no dispute relating to the parties’ objectivé manifestations. Shortly after receiving a
copy of the alleged November 2, 2016 agreemenf, Mr. Cotton sent an e-mail stating the 10% equity
position in the dispensary was not included in fhe document and requested an acknowledgment that the
same would be included in “any final agfeement.l” (See Exhibit K.} Mr. Geraci responded “no problem
atall.” ({d.) Mr. Geraci then had draft final agreements preﬁared and circulated. The draft agreements:
(1) do not state they were amending a prior agreement; (ii) do not reference a prior agreement; (ii1) state
that the “Date of Agreement” was “[t]he latest date of execution of the Seller or the Buyer, as indicated
on the signature page;” (iv) do not provide any indication that a prior agreement was reached between
the parties; and (v) include terms not set forth in the alleged November 2, 2016 agreement. None of the
drafts were signeld‘and none of the documents pfoduced by Mr. Geraci ever referenced extortion.

Only two conélusions could have been reached if the appropriate objective standard had been
applied to both Mr. Cotton and Mr. Geraci. The first possible concllusion is that the alleged November 2,

2016 agreement included the 10% interest that Mr. Geraci subsequently refused to acknowledge. The
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second possible conclusion is that the e-mail exchange subsequent to the alleged November 2, 2016
agreement demonstrated the parties agreed to agree. And, thercfore, the alleged November 2, 2016
agreement was not enforceable.

Instead, the jury reached the conclusion that the alleged November 2, 2016 agreement was a
contract. In order to do so, the jury must have applied Mr. Geraci’s subjective standard. The jury must
have believed Mr. Geraci’s unexpressed intentions or understandings (i.e., that he was only responding
to the first line of Mr. Cotton’s e-mail and the statements to his counsel that he was being extorted).
According to Mr. Geraci’s testimony, he called Cotton the following day to explain. But if the hours
that passed between the November 2, 2016 agreement and Mr. Cotton’s e-mail was too late for
Mr. Cotton, the day that passed before Mr. Geraci’s call was also too late to explain his subjective intent
as to his response. Therefore, the jury’s conclusion that the alleged November 2, 2016 agreement is a
contract stands in direct contrast to the objective standard applied to Mr. Cotton’s conduct. The jury
cannot apply objective standards to Mr. Cotton and subjective standards to Mr. Geraci.

E. MR. GERACI USED THE ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE AS A SHIELD AND A

SWORD, THEREﬁY VIOLATING MR. COTTON’S RIGHT TO A FAIR AND

IMPARTIAL TRIAL.

“[A]n overt act of the trial court ... or adverse party, violative of the right to a fair and impartial
trail, amounting to misconduct, may be regarded as an irregularity.” Gray, supra, 33 Cal.App.2d at 182;
see also Webber, supra, 33 Cal2d at 164 (affidavit not required where motion for new trial “relies
wholly upon facts appearing upon the face of the record”). Litigation is not a game, and a litigant cannot
claim privilege duringrdjscovery then testify at trial. A&M Records, supra, 75 Cal.App.3d at 566. As
the A&M Court eloquenﬂy put it, “[a] litigant cannot bé pelrmitted to blow hot and cold in this manner.”
1d. Atthe February 8, 2019 hearing on Mr. Cotton’s Motion to Compel Further Responses to Discovery
to which Mr. Geraci asserted Attorney-Client Privile ge, the Court acknowledged as much when it stated:
“[T]here is a price to be paid; [Mr. Geraci] can’t go back and reopen that area once [he has] narrowed
the scope by ‘asserting privilege.” (See Exhibit J Februéry 8, 2019 at 21:1-5. The Court subsequently
entered an order pfohibiting testimony on matters that Plaintiff asserted attorney-client privilege.

Minute Order dated Feb. 8, 2019 (ROA 455) at p. 3 (prohibiting testimony on matters that Plaintiff

14

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL
Case No. 37-2017-00010073-CU-BC-CTL




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

& ("

asserted privilege in discovery). Mr. Geraci has previously admitted that failure to disclose constitutes
“substantial prejudice.” Plaintiff Larry Geraci’s Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Opposition
to Defendant Darryl Cotton’s Motion to Expunge Lis Pendens dated April 10, 2018 (ROA 179) at 4:7-
8. (Mr. Geraci claimed that Cotton’s “refusal to participate in discovery has substantially prejudiced
(eraci and Berry in preparation of this case.”).

Mr. Cotton propounded discovery seeking, among other things, documents and communications
by and between Mr. Geraci and Ms. Austin related to the purchase of the Property. (See Exhibit I
(Discovery Responses) at 13:1-13, 14:8-23.) No documents or communications were produced in
connection with the request based upon attorney-client privilege. Then, at trial, Mr. Geraci waived
privilege and he and Ms. Austin testified as to the very communications Mr. Cotton previously sought.

Mr. Geraci’s use of the privilege as a shield and a sword violated Mr. Cotton’s right to a fair and
impartial trial. One of the central arguments Mr. Cotton presented was that the parties agreed to draft a
final agreement. While Mr, Gerﬁci’s conduct was consistent with this argument, he and Ms. Austin
testified at trial that Mr. Geraci’s request for draft agreements was purportedly the result of extortion.
The failure to disclose those documents constitutes, as Mr. Geraci previously admitted, substantial
prejudicial to Mr. Cotton because it prevented Mr. Cotton from cross-examining Mr. Geraci and
Ms. Austin on their mflammatory and prejudicial extortion allegations, as well as proving that the
alleged November 2, 2016 agreeﬁnent was an agreement to agree. Mr. Geraci cannot be permitted to
“blow hot and cold.” |

CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth herein, Mr. Cotton requests that the Court (i) find that the alleged
November 2, 2016 agreement is illegal and void; or (ii) order a new trial and enable Mr. Cotton to

conduct discovery related to the communications between Messrs. Geraci and Cotton.

DATED this 13th day of September, 2019.

TIFFANY & BOSCO, P.A.

By

EVAN P. SCHUBE
Attorneys for Defendant/Cross-Complainant
Datryl Cotton
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| otlier parties and file any brief and accor

I The jury also unammerusly feund in-favor of Mr. Geraci dnd against Mr.
1} his cross-complaint. (See Special Verdict Form; ROA# 636,) Mr. Cottori doesnot cha}leng,e the j Jury‘ erdict nor seek a
* {i-new trial in connection with his:cross-claims; his memotandum of poirits:
{|-does not argue-any grounds for a:new trfal on his cross-clims, Even if for the sake of argu
{Emove for-a new-trial on thoseclaims, that motion would fafl for the same teason as his new trial miotion fails as:tothe |
+ |} verdictagainst him on Mr. Geraci’s claims.

|2 Mr Cotton ] counsel Jacob Austm, did: not ralse an eb_;ectmn to. the admlssmn af auy exhlbits or th ' "‘xammation with -

1796, 85.8. Ct. 8927 [““In‘ the absence of a timely.objection the offended paity i
| through his participation in the-atmosphere which produced the claim of prejud
1] 70 Cal2d at p. 319.)

s e

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
Plaintiff/Cross-Defendants submit this Memorandum of Points. and Authorities in Opposition |

to Defendant/Cross-Complainant’s Motion for New Trial.
L INTRODUCTION/SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT
This case came to jury trial on July 1, 2019 and took place over thie ensuing three-week period,

‘consisting of 9 trial days. M. Cotton received a fair trial. The jury uranimously found in favor of Mr. |
‘Geraci and 4gainst Mr. Cotton on his causes of action for Breach of Contract and Breach of the |
| Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing and awarded damages o Mr. Geraci. (See: Special Verdiet '
| Form, ROA #635.)" Cotton now requests this Courtto set aside the verdict?

As a threshold: matter, Mr. Cotton’s supperting documents were:not titely filed and served.

1| CCP § 569(a) provides that “Within 10 days of filing the notice, the moving party shall serve upon-ail 3

s

anying documents, including affidavits in support of the |

| motion. ...”. Here, Mi. Cotton’s Notice of Intent to Move for NEW'T‘nal was seived. and filed on |
September 3, 2019. The ten-day period to file his brief and accompanyitig documents expired on:

September 13th. While Mr; Cotton timely filed his ansigned Memorandum of Points and Authorities |
just before midnight on September T3th; that filing did not inelude: any acconipanying documents. |

I nstead, on Monday, September 16th, (3-driys late) Mr, Cotton filed two documents:entitled “Errata”™ |

Catton on-all of Mr. -Cotton’s.claims set forth in |

new: mal thotion
Lotton m:ended to |

wthorities in support

;he pendmg motaoni “In an appeai ﬁ'um 2 judgrn&ﬁtf.aﬁéf;_deﬁia‘ 6f gz' otion fa}:newtﬂ , the
' abject or exaept may be ireated asa wawer -of the error?’ {5 :w i ¥ ure (198

61 Cal 2d 602 610 “certs den Sub TIOML. Atch:ﬁun, Topeka & Safzta Fe Ra "ay Ca V. Hom,
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1 which contained the ac¢ompanying documents in support of his metion® Affidavits of declarations

| v. Rehmke (1935) 10 Cal.App.2d 97, 105; Peterson v. Peterson (1953} 121 Cal.App.2d 1, 9.)

| Geraci failed to disclose his interest in both the Property end the Conditional Use. Permit (“CUP™).

WO Y th R W b2

{| contract was entered.* Even if that is disregarded, the contract was otherwise legal.as discussed infra.

1| raised illegality as.an affirmative defense; and (2) with regard to the “illegality” argument, Atforney |
{{ Austin represented to the Conit at the conclusion of evidence and in response to the Court’s inquiiries |
|1if there: were any other exhibits M. Austin wished to adrit into-evidence: “I'm willing to not argue

‘the matter if your Honor is inclined not to :?in'cl'udjeg it. We can jus; = -.f'erget about.. -it;’* (Reporferi’**s

' 0ppcsiti_on to Motion for New Trial =(f*P-l'aihﬁff N DIS”) (RT; Tuly ._lf.O, 2019, p. 6192‘1?5’*72'1265 Ex. 60
| Plaintiff NOL)

oy
0

1? Mr Cotton s Etrata claims that “[dlve-to a elerwai error; an incomplete draft :of the Memorandiim: of Points and |
| Authorities in Support-of the Mation fot New Tria

{ accompanying documents was: a“clerxcat érror. Indeed, dtsuggesty Mr Cofton’s. filing wasuntimely..

f .Iuly 2019) and 26{357@ Eﬂ‘ectwe Januaxy ! 2019) The cuntmct in: quesnon was eutere'
‘ 'general rule thag*' 'élc:al degisio

1} of hiis “ﬂ!egahty“ argument were not in effect until ﬂﬁ__, £, someiimes years afier, enteting the:

~ S

filed too late may be disregarded. (See Morris v. Purity Sausage Co. (1934) 1 Cal.App.2d 120; Lewith

As to the mierits of his motion for new trial, Mr. Cotion’s asserts thré¢ grounds:

First Mr: Coiton contends the November 2, 2016 agreement was illegal :and void because Mr. ;

Mr. Cotton erropepusly contends the agreement violates local law and policies, as well as state law.

The statutes upon which Mr. Cotton relies were not cven in cffect at the time the November 2, 2016. |

Additionally, Mr. Cotton has waived the-“illegality” argument for two. reasons: (1) he never |

Even a'ssuming-the.;illetga.lity argﬁm‘ent has riot been waived-'the a_rgumentf-ﬂflat- the =Nbvember£2 5'

WS uplaaded for elecronic filing and service:instead ‘of the true final
copy and, as such, the table.of Authorities in the draft was incomplete; the document was not ‘executed and: the exhibits |
referenced therein werte fiot attached:” The signature page’ for-the Memarandum of Points &. Aufhioritics attached to/the |
Errata is dated, September 15, 2019, {2 days _ﬁg;,the papers were:filed anci served) which belies Mr. Cotton’s claim that,

the ‘motion. was .compléte; filed and served in g timely ‘manner :and-that the failire to. transmit the signature page and

given retroactive efféct is basic in our fegal tradition. I E”aﬂgela;os " Supgr;" |
e Ca!nfomta Supreme Com observed. “'[ﬂhe prmcip 8 fes G

70,79, 103 5.C. 407, 413, THLEd 24 2 Y The statites cited by Mr Cotm:l iit support |
‘contract in quiestion.
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| use of an agent in application process for the CUP, do not render the contract illegal. Indeed, as set -

forth herein, several witnesses testified that it is common practice for an applicant on a CUP

{ application for 2 medical marijuana dispensary to utilize an agent in that process.

Second, Mr. Cottort argues the verdict is against law because the: jury disregarded the jury

|| instructions and applied an objective standard to Mr. Cottont’s coriduct and a subjective standard to Mr. |

Geraci’s conduct as rélated to the November 2, 2016 Agreement; the “confirmation: email” and the - _

“disavowment” allegation. To the contrary, there is no legal basis to conclude that the jury-disregarded

| the jury instructions and applied an objective standard to Mr. Cotton and 4 subjective standard to Mr.. | :

| Geraci’s conduct. That is simply M. Cotton’s interpretation of the facts and evidence which he would

like to substitute for the jury’s unanimous verdict.

Third, Mr. Cotton conitends that Mr. Geraci used the attormney-client privilege as a shield during

discovery and as a sword during trial, which prohibited M. Catton from receiving a fair and impartial |-

trial.’> Mr. Cotton has misrepresented. the facts, circumstances ard the Minute Order issued by the |

Court in connection with the attomney-~client privilege issues durinig discovery and the waiver of those :

issues at trial. In spite of asserting the attorney-clierit privilege with regard to'the documents drafted |

| by Gina Austin’s office, and contrary to Cotton’s arguments herein, those docuinients wete produced to |

Mr. Cotten during: discovery. (Cross-Defendant Rebetca Berry's Responses to. Request, For

|{ Production of Documents, Set One, Ex. 1 to Plaintiff NQL; and Plaintiff/Cross-Defendant: Latry
| Gersci’s Amended Responses to Special Interrogatorics, Set Two, Bx, 2 to Plaintiff NOL) The |

documents were also listed on the Joint TRC Exhibit List anid admitted into evidence at trial witkivut

objection.. (Trial Exhibits 59, 62, Ex. 7 to Plaintiff NOL; RT July 3, 2019, 129:22-133:27, Ex. 3 to |

NOL; Joint Exhibit List, Ex. 10 to Plaintift NOL) Mr. Cotton’s counsel did not raise any evidentiary

|| objections to the waiver of attorney-client privilege either with regard-to the documentary evidence or |

‘Geraci-or Ms. Austin with the relevant documents (Cotton’s. P's & A’s; p, 5:1-3) is without merit. :

| This.is & C.C.P. § 657(7) issue regarding evidentiary rulings,
| New.Trinl. (See Treberv: Sup: Cr (1968)68:Ca2d 128, 131

' | 1599, 1601+1605.) (Practice Guide: Civii Trials-and:Evidence, Post Tria

8

' .EL‘:s\iINHF;FICRO.SS-HE?ENDAHTS?-MEMQRKNDUM“OFJPQ!??_TS’EMB.#.,ll?;l’HORI‘TiES?IH@ORPOS’lTlGN-TO“

PRFRNORANTAROSLCOMPLA INANT'E MOTION AR NEW TRIAS,




i

[0 S N T N T s B N S . R o R T T S e S o S
L - T I - - - R - I A

Loee ~) G WV B W )

e O

Indeed, armed with those documents during discovery, Mr: Cotton never took the depositions of Mr.

Geraci nor Attorney Gina Austin, And he in fact questioned the witnesses about those documents

|| during tial. (RT July & 2019, p. 58:3-60:10, Ex. 4 to Plaintiff NOL)

Finally, as a matter of law, a new trial may only be granted when the verdict constitutes a -

miscarriage of justice. (Calif, Const,, Att. V1, §13.) “Ifit clearly appears that the error could not have

affected the result of the trial, the court is bound to deny the motion.” [Bristow v. Ferguson (1981)121
Cal.App.3d 823, 826; Mosesian v. Pennwalt Corp. (1987) 191 Cal.App.3d 851, 866-867, (disapproved .

on other grounds in Peaple v, Auit (2004) 33 Cal4® 1250, 1272)] Mr. Cotton has riot demonstrated |
| the cldimed errors likely affected the result of thetrial. |
111. STANDARDS FOR NEW TRIAL MOTION BASED ON C.C.]

was “Against Law” under C.C.P. § 657(6) 1.
In his Noticé -of Iitent to Move for New Trial dated September 13, 2019, Mr. Cotton gave

| notice that he was bring the motion pursuant to C.C.P. § 657(6) ;Oll‘theligl.’ﬂﬁnd that “the verdiet is |
.:.against the law.” (ROA#656.) Yet in his brief; he asserts that his motion for new trial is made on the

| grounds of “irregulerity of proceedings” under'C.C.P. § 657(1):and “against the law™ under (C.C.P. §
657(T), neither of which grounds were set forth in his Notice of Intention o Move for New Trial.
1|(Cotton P’s&A’s, p, 5:10-21) A notice of intention to move for a new trial is deemed to be'a motion
for new trial on the grounds stated in the notice: (C.C.P. §659.) Tt is well-established that a new: trial
order “can be granted only on a ground specified in the motion.” (Malkastan v, Irwin (1964) 61 Cal2d.
|| 738, 745; De Felice v. Tabor (1957) 149 Cal.App.2d 273, 274.)

Mr: Cotton also asserts that “the Couit sifs as'the 13 juror and is “vested with the plénary |

|| power — and burdened: with 4 correlative duty — to independently evaluate the evidence,” (incorrectly
| citing to Ryan v. Crown Castle NG Networks Inc: (2016 6 Cal.App.5th 775, 784, which concerned

| evidence™ ground in that-there is no ‘weighing of evidence or determining credibility. The “againist
law” ground applies only when the evidence is without conflict in any material point and insufficient |

. |1 as a matter of law to-support the verdict, (McCown v. Spencer (1970) § Cal.App:3d 216, 2297)

9.
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B. The Correct Standard for a New Trial Motion Based on the Statutory Ground |
that the Verdict is “Against Law”
The statutory ground under C.C.P. §657(6) that the verdict is “against law” is of very limited

'ap‘plication._. (Tagney v. Hoy (1968) 260 Cal.App.2d 372, citing Kralyevich v.Magrini (1959) 172

Cal.App.2d 784 [“A decision can be said to be “against law” only: (1) where there is 2 failure to find

on a material issue; (2) where the findings are irreconcilable; and (3) where the evidenceis insufficient |
in law and ‘without conflict in any material point.> C.C.P. § 657(6) is not a ground to have the court |
| reconsider its rulings. The “against law™ ground applies only when the evidence is without conflictin |
|any material point apd insufficient as @ matter of law to support: the verdict, (McCown v. Spencer |
-(-1'9702) 8 Cal_,App;.S.d 216, 229; see: Ffergus v. Songer (2007) 150 'Gal,-App-A"-" 552, 567-569 ‘Eﬁnd'ihg |

(1978) 81 .C’al.App.S:d 713, 728) C.CP. § ;657(_6)’; dnes ‘ot ¢over errors that 'fali. within the other
sections of C.C.P. § 657, suchias § 657(7). (O'Malley ». Carrick (1922) 60 Cal.App. 48, 51)
1. ARGUMENT
A. MR COTTON’S ILLEGALITY ARGUMENTS FAIL
1. Mr. Cotten Has Waived and Abandoned the “Iilegality” Argument ;
Mr. Cotton failed to.raise “illegality” as an affirmative defense in his Answer to Plaintiff’s 3

| Complaint (RO"A#I 7) Normally-, affirmative defenses not raised in the answer to complai-nt- Or Cross-
19 |} |

| | Cotton cites Lewis Quéen v. N.M. Ball Sonsf'(.IQS*J’:). 48 Cal.2d 141, ;,14;6-1‘4335_1‘()1- the proposition: that
22 |/illegality can be raised “at any time.” Thatis a cotrect statersient of the law, however, that rule isnot 1
unqualified. Two California Supreme Court cases decided after Lewis & Queen ~ Fomeo, Inc. v. Joe |
| Maggio, Inc. (1961) 55 Cal2d 162, and Apra'v. Aureguy (1961)'55 Cal2d 827 — both rejected post- - |
25 |
26 (s Mr. Cotton did not-set forth. any failure by the court as toa fi Inding on somié Material issue.. Mr, Cotidn: also did not

establish findings.that are jrreconcilable: Mr. Cotton further did not-establish that the evidence is Insufficient in law. and 1
}}without conflict on any material point. Other challenges:4s to the. apphcatmn of law in this: case wnuld be govemed g

2 |

by C C P. § 65.7(’[) not.cpted in Mr thton "s Notice of Intention
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| trial defenses of illegal contract because the illegaliity defense had not been raised in the trial court. |

(See Fomco, supra, 55 Cal.2d at p. 166;°55 Cal.2d at p. 831.) In fact, language in Fomeo:suggests that
the high court actually rejected Lewis & Queen’s dicta that the issue of illegal contract could be raised |
for the first time on appeal. (See Chodosh v. Palm Beach Park Association 2018 WL 6599824)

At trial the “illegality” issué appears to have first come up in tesponse to questions being posed s
by Attorney Austin in his examination of witnesses. Attorney Weinstein argued Attorney Austin was |

asking questions of witnesses which implied it was illegal for Mr. Geraci to operate a legally permitted.

| dispensary. Attorney Weinstein pointed out, and the Court agreed, that the two civil judgments on
: their face did not bar Mr. Geract from operating a leg'ally_jpéﬂﬁiﬁéd:zdispen'sa:g;-- (RT, July 9,2019, p. :

120:20-121:24, Ex. 5 to. Plaintiff NOL) Attorney Weinstein went on to argue that Business &

|| Professions Code Section 26057 was permissive and not mandatory and that it dealt with state

| licenses, not a City CUP. The Court was troubled by the fact thiat Attorney Austin had ot filed a trial -

brief addressing this issue, nor had Attorey Austin filed any memorandum. of points and. authorities

|on the issue. The Court concluded: “So for the time being, I'm tending to: agree with the plaintiff’s |
side without the defense having given me something I can look at and absorh. (RT, July 9, 2019, p. |
1 120:20-123:6, Ex. 5 to Plaintiff NOL) |

Later that day, Attorney Austin called Joe Hurtado to-the stand.. Joe Hurtado had & vested |

| Interest in the case as he was financing Mr. Cotton’s litigation expenses and attorneys” fees. (RT July
{19 2019, p. 150:13-18, Ex. 5 to Plaintiff NOL) Attorney: Austin improperly atternpted to elicit expert |
{| testimony from: Joe Hurtado, that it was. his. opinion that M, Geraci did niot qualify for-a CUP under |

_":Attomey Austin’s examination of Mr. Hurtado, the Court initiated a side-bar-at which Ms. Hurtado’s
_i-pmposed: testimonmy was discussed. The Court permitted Mr. Hurtado to testify to hearsay
|| conversations with Gina Austin:and hearsay conversations with anyone else on Mr. Gerasi's team, At |
. || the conclusion of M Hurtado’s testimony, and-after excusing the jury, the Court permitted the parties I
| to make a record of that side bar, (RT, July 9, 2019, p. 155:8-158:18,.Ex. 5 to Plaintiff NOL) The |
|| Court expressed to Attorney Austin that'fo the extent Mr. Hurtado wanted to express legal opinions, he

|| was not going to permit such testimony. In response, Attorney Austin admitied that “perhaps Mr. |

11
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Hurtado should have been designated as an expert...”. (RT, July 9, 2019, p. 157:13-15, Ex. 5 to

| Plaintiff NOL) Mr. Hurtado was not designated as an expert witness and.his opiriion testimony ‘was |

properly excluded. |
The “illegality” issue was again raised on July 10, 2019, when Attorney Austin offered Trial

| Exhibit 281 into evidence, which was a copy of Business & Professions Code § 26051; and requested
{{ the Court take-jud‘icial notice of the two lawsuits in which Mr. Geraci was a.naméd.,par?ty. The Court,

'mt_o gvidence. As to the request forjudicial notice of the two:prior cases against Mr. Geragi, Attorsney 1

| Weinstein raised an Evidence Code: § 352 objection,

The Court stated;

Putting aside whether the probative valuie is substantially cutweighed by undue prejudice:
ot any other of the 352 factors including but not limited tocurnulativeness, as 1 read these
judgments, Mr. Geraci i is ot barred from trying to-obtain whatever permission he:would
need of anybody- would need from operating a marijuana dispensary. And I thoupht that
was your theory at one point. _

And if that were your theory, I’m not seeing anything, well, inside the four comers of
these judgments that prohibit Mr. Getaci from, for example, doing the deal that he had
proposed to do with Mr. Cotton.

Avorniey Austin replied to the Court: “f think there was a cliange in the law, which would — |

i would change that. But I’m willing to not drgiié tiie matter if yoiy Honor is:inclined not fo include

it. We can just — forget about it” The Couirt then sustained the abjections and deelined to take

) _judik:ial_ notice of Mr. Geragi’s two prim" ju&grnent‘s.- (RT mev 10, 2019, p. 69:15-72:26, Ex. 6 to -

Itis cl'ear' in thei instant case, that Attorney Austin abandoned.,hw “-111égal_1ty%” drgument; 1.6.; |

{IMr. Austin’s statement to the Court: “I think there was a change in the law, which would — would

{| change that. But I'm willing to not-argue the matter if your Honor is iiiclined not'to include it. We |

can just - forget about it.” (RT, July 10, 2019, p. 72:10-13, Ex. 6 to Plaintiff NOL) Having waived |

|| this issue during the trial, Mr. Cotton s precluded from wrging it'as:a ground for granting a new trial.

12
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2. The Contract at Issue in This Case is Not Illegal.

Even if the statutes: Mr. Cotton relies upon were in effect on November 2, 2016 when the

|| contract was entered (which they were nat) and there were no waiver of the “illegality” issue (which |

there was), thie November 2, 2016 agreement remains a legal contract.

The stipulated judgments-on their face permit Mr. Geraci to apply:for.a CUP. In Case Number |

i 37-2014-00020897-CU-MC-CTL, paragraph 8a enjoins Mr. Geraci from “Keeping; maintaining,

operating, or allowing the operation of an unpermitted marijuana dispensary ...”. (ltalics, Bold

Added.) Paragraph 8(b) specifically sates “Defendarits shall not be baryed in the future from any

{legal and permitted use of the PROPERTY.” (Italics, Bald Added.)

In Case Number 37-20 1'_5"-.0‘0:00.4430;C1J~MC%~CTL,. Paragraph 7 prevents Defendant: from |

“Keeping, maintaining, operating or allowing any cottimercial, retail, collective; cooperative or group |

| establishment for the growth, storage, sale or distribiition of marijuana, including, but not limited to,

ized anywhere in the City of San Diego |

{ without first obtaining a Conditional Use Permit pursunsit to the San Diego Municipal Code™ |
|l (ttalics, bold added)

It was this language in the two stipulated judgments that led this Caurt ‘to state: “I'm net |-

|| seeing anything, well, inside the four cornets of these judgments that prohibit Mr. Geraci from, for
{example, doing the deal that he had proposed to do with Mr. Cotton.™ To which, Attorney Austin |
stated “We can just - forget about it,” (RT, July 10, 2019, p. 69:8-15, Ex. 6 to Plaintiff NOL).

3. TheB&P Code Does Not Bar Mr. Geraci From Applying for a CUP
Setting aside waiver and the fact that the two stipulated jndgeents, on‘their face, permit Mr. |

‘Geraci to obtain a CUP, there is no mandatory-provision in the Business & Professions Code which

{twould bar Mr. Geraci from lawfully obtaining a CUP.

Section 26057(b)(7) of the California Business & Professions Code provides. that “[tjhe |-

5 |{ licensing authority say deny the epplication for licensure or renewal of a state license if ... [tk |
applicant, or any of its officers, directors or owners, has been sanctioned by alicensing authority ora |
{jcity, county; or city and county for unauthorized commercial cannabis activities, has. had 4 license

. || suspended or revoked under this division in the three. years immediately preceding the date the 1.

13
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application is filed with the licensing authority.” (Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 26057(b)(7) [emphasis
added].). Section 26057 s part of a larger division known as the Medicinal and Adult-Use Cannabis

| Regulation and Safety Act, which has the purpose and intent to “control and regulate the cultivation,

distribution, transport, storage, manufacturing, pracessing, and sale” of commercial miedicinal and

| adult-use cannabis. (Cal. Bus. & Prof, Code § 26000.) Under this division, a “license™ refers to a |
{1 “state license issued under this division, and includes both an A-license and.an M-license, as well asa |

laboratory testing license.” {Cal. Bus. & Prof. Cade § 26001(y).)

In this case, the CUP is pot a state license. Even if this statute were to apply to-a CUP,the -

| permissive natuire of the authority would not reguire the denial of a CUP Jicense because it is up to-the |

| disczetion of the: licensing authority to make such a decision based on the conditions provided in §

| section 26057(b). (Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 26057(b).) In addition, attorney Giina Austin testified at |

>, (R, July 8, 2019, p. 55:12- |
57:21, Ex. 4 to Plaintiff NOL) |
4. It Is Common Practice For CUP Applicants To Use Agents During The

Application Process.

Mr. Cotton argues that Mr. Geraci did not disclose his interest on the Ownership Disclosure |

| Statementt arid that therefore Mr. Geraci is asking this Court to-assist him in violating tocal laws, which |
the Court is prohibited from doing. (Cotton F’s & A’s, p. 12:16-23) |

disclosed to Mr. Cotton from the outset. Prior to Mr. Cotton signing the QOwnership Disclosure |-

Statement he knew that Ms. Berry was going 'to be acting 4s Mr. Geraci’s agent for purposes of the |

{CUP. (RT, July 8, 2019, p. 99:15-19, Ex. 4 to Plaintiff NOL: arid Tifal Exhibit 30, Ex. 8 to Plaintiff |
1{NOL) In fact it was Mr. Cotton’s belief that Ms. Beiry hiad to sign the Ownership Disclosure |
| Statement as a Tenant Lessee. (RT, July 8, 2019, pp. '1"01::“2;6?;1'0?2::;13 Ex. 4'to Plaintiff NOL; and Trial "
| Excibit 30, Ex. 8 to Plaintiff NOL)

Abhay Schweitzer testified that there is 110 problem with that (Ms. Berry signing ds an agent

|| for Mr. Geraci) because, from the City’s perspective, the City is only interested in having soreone |

14
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. July 8, 2019, p. 31:22-33:13, Ex. 4 to Plaintiff NOL) And as to the Ownership Disclosure statement, -

the City’s Form is limited, only permitting three choices, none of which fit the cireumstances in this

{case; thus attorney’ Gina Austin testified that there was no problem from her perspective with Ms:
Berry checking tenant/lessee. (RT, July 8, 2019, p. 33:14-35:11, Ex. 4 to Plaintiff NOL) -
| M. Schweitzer testified that it is not unusual for an agent to be listed as the owner on the form. (RT, -
{July 9, 2019, p. 60:20-27, Ex. 5 to Plaintiff NOL)l |

During Mr; Austin’s cross-examination. of Firouzeh Tirandazi, a City Project Manager III (the |

{1 highest classification of Project Managers at the City of San Diego), he¢ tried to get her to testify that
| “anyone with an ewnership or financial ’llel-t,.efes"at?'in a marijuana outlet is supposed to be disclosed tothe
{ City.™ Ms. Tirandazi testified that they (the City) are only looking for the property owner and the |
tenant/lessee. (RT, J uly 9, 2019, p: 112:23-28; Ex. 5 to ‘Pla:igit'iff NOL) Ms. Tiranidazi was unfamiliar '

with the California Business & Professions Code vis-d-vis the CUP appli¢ation process. (RT, July9,

1£2019, p. 113+1-5, Ex. 5 to Plaintiff NOL)

B. MR COTTON’S ARGUMENT THAT THE VERDICT IS AGAINST THE LAW |
BECAUSE THE JURY DISREGARDED THE JURY INSTRUCTIONS FAILS,

{Ijury instrictions and applied an objective standard to Mr; Cotton’s conduct and.a-subjective standard |

1110 Mr. Geraci’s conduct as related to the Nevember 2, 2016 Agreement; the “confirmation email™ and | :

| disregarded the jury instructipns and applied an objective standard to Mr. Cotton and a subjective |
| standard to Mr. Geraci’s-conduet. That is simply Mr; Cotton’s interpretation of the facts and evidence

which he would like to substitute for the jury’s unanimous verdict.

If the jury has been instructed correctly and returns a verdict contrary to those instructions, the |

| verdict is “against law.” (See Manufacturers’ Finance Corp. v. Pacific Wholesale Radio (1933) 130 |
{1 Cal.App.239, 243.( A new trial motion based on the “against kaw? ground permits the moving party to
| {}raise new legal theories for the first time; i.e.; the trial judge gets 2 second ‘chance to reexamine the |

Judgment for errors of law, (Hoffman-Haag v. Transamerica Ins. Co: (1991) 1 Cal.Appd® 10, 15.)

ard the jury's |
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evaluation and interpretation of the evidence; and grant him a new irial based upoti his theory of what

|| the evidence shows. Specifically, Mr, Cotton urges that there was no-disputed evidence relating to the |

parties’ objective manifestations regarding the contract formation. (Cotton P’s&A’s, p. 13:16-17.)

This is yet another iteration of Mr. Cotton’s mantra in numerous motions throughout the litigation that

‘the “disavowment allegation” was case dispositive.

The unanimous verdict of a sophisticated jury militates sirict adherence to the principle that |

|| courts “credit jurors with intelligence and common sense and presume they generally understand and
| follow instructions.” (People v. McKeinnon (2011) 52 Cal.4™-610, 670 [“defendant manifestly fails to
show a reasonable likelihood the jury misinterpreted and misapplied the limiting instruction™}.) The

|| Court’s instructions to the jury, which, “absent some contrary indications in the record,” must be |

presumed heeded by the jury. (Cassim v, Allstate Ins. Co, (2004)33 Cal4™ 780 at 803.) _
The: Court gave CACI Nos. 302 ~ Contract Formation Essential Factua! Elements; 303 ~
Breach of Contract — Essential Factual Elements; and a host:of other instructions:regarding conteact. |

“|{ formation, interpretation and breach. Those instructions were correct statements:of the applicable law. |

| Mt Cotton’s counsel did not object to any of those ‘instructions, Mr, Cotton has not overcome the: |

presumption that the jury heeded the Court’s instructions. He fails to shiow a reasonable likelikicod the.

jury misinterpreted and misapplied the jury instructions related to coutract formation.

| prepared and circulated by Attorney Gina Austin,-and therefore, the argurnent poes, the November 2,
12016 Agreement could not have been the final agreement between the parties. This arguineérit simply |
ignores the testimony of Larry Geraci that he felt he was being extorted by M Cotton-and- did-not - S
| want to lose all of the money he had invested in the project and therefore he instructed his atiorey,
|| Gina Austin to draft some ‘agreements, attempting to neégotiate some terms that M. Cotton might be |
| happy with. Those draft apreements were prepared by Gina Austin’s office and forwarded to Mr. 1
| Cotton. (Trial Exhibit 59, 62, Ex, 7 to Plainfiff NOL; RT July 3, 2019, 129:22-133:27, Ex. 410 NOL)
M. Cotton refused to-accept those terms and no new-agreement was reached. Mr. Geraci became fed- |
up and filed the ‘instant lawsuit to protect his investment based on the November 2, 2016 written

© ||agreement the parties had entered into.
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&As, p. 13:16-25.) However, Mr. Cotton fails to acknowledge that each of the alleged factors. he |
claims support his argument, are equally -éupportive of Mr. Geraci's and Attorney Gina Austin’s |
‘:t_est;imny that Mr. Geraci felt he was being extoried by Mr. Cottoni and requested Gina Austin to |
| please draft new contracts so he would not lose his investment. (RT July 8, 2019, p. 41:10-26, Ex. 4 to
| Plaintiff NOL.) Consistent with their testimony, the November 2, 2016, written agreement was neither |

| amended nor superseded by a new agreement.

N I L TR - N V. S -G PURY

j discovery and as a sword during trial, which prevented Mr. Cottoss from receiving a-fair and impartial "
trial. This is 2 C.C.P., § 657(7) issue regarding evidentiary. rulings, a ground nor set forth in Mz, |

| Trials and Evidence; Post Trial Motions, (The Rutter Group 2010)  18:201.))

' || new trial if prejudicial to the moving party*s.right to a fair trial. [Civil Trials and Evidence; Post Trial
Motions, The Rutter Group 18:134.1] A-motion. for new- frial on this ground must-be-made-on—|— .
- || affidavits. Mr. Cotton has failed to file any affidavits in support of his motion for new trial :

| making the'application.” Mr. Cotton has nof moved fora new trial based on either C.C.P; § 657(1)or
| C.C.P. §657(7). Instead, in his Notice of Intent to Move for New Trial (p. 2:8-11); Mr. Cotton has |
sought a new trial on the sole ground that the verdict is “against law” pursuant to C.C.P. § 657(6). 4 |

| notice of intention to. move fora'new trial is deemed to'be a motion for new trial on the greunds staled |

(" | &

Mr. Cotton sets forth a number of factors which he claims support his intetpretation of the

evidence that the November 2, 2016 agreement was not the final agreement of the parties. (Cotton Ps |

C. MR. COTTON’S ARGUMENT THAT HE WAS DENIED A FAIR TRIAL AS
THE RESULT OF ERRORS RELATING TO THE USE OF THE ATTORNEY- {
CLIENT PRIVILEGE DURING DISCOVERY AND AT TRIAL ALSO FAILS, |

Mr. Cotton contends: that Mr. Geraci used the attomey-client privilege as & shield. during

Cotton’s Notice of Intent to Move for New Trial. (See Treber v. Sup. Ct {1968) 68 Ca2d 128, 131;
Hernandez v. County of Los Angeles (2014) 226 Cal. AppA™ 1599, 1601-1605.) (Practice Guide: Civil

Preliminarily, under C.C.P. § 657(1), evidentiary rulings by which relevant evidence was |

Alternatively, etroneous. evidentiary rulings (admitting -or excluding evidence may be |

challenged under C.C.P. §657(7) as an “Error-in law, occurring at the trial and excepted to by the party f
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in the notice. (C.C.P..§659.) Mr. Cotion cannot-assertigrounds for new trial not stated in the Notice.

As to the merits of the argument, Mr, Cotion has misrepresented the facts, circumstarices and |

the Minute Order issued by the Court in connection with the attorney-client pri;vile-ge issues during

1 discovery and the waiver-of those issues at trial.

Mr. Cotton claims there was a Court order tpmhibiting testimony on matters' that Plaint?iff‘

misrepresents what that Court Order states. 1t actually states:

Plaintiff’s objections on.the basis of privilege to REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO.
20 are SUSTAINED; however, the scope of the request appears to seek relevant
documents. Given Plaintiff’s electxon to assert the privilege and/or. doctrine in discovery,
the Court will HEAR on the scope of the testimony Plaintiff will be not be permitted to
provide at trial on the subject of the DISAVOWMANET ALLEGATION.”

-Cleary ‘the Court said it-would heat and determine ‘the: s::oﬁezaof'thei tesnmony-iallb.we:d' it did |

of Ruling which only' prevents: .Rehecca_ 'Be_rry -ﬁom. testifying on the matter of the: disavowment

{allegation. It does not bar any other witness from so testifying, (ROA# 455, p. 2.)
In addition, Mr, Cotton asserts that Mr. Geraci used the atiorney-cliefit privilege as a shield and |-

examination of witnesses on these very topics.

WMir. Cotton has waived this argument fo;'ﬂ;e:follow.ing;_xzeasons: R

1 Mr, Cotton Cites to the Court’s Minute Order dated ‘Féb'ruﬁry 8, 2019 :'(R_.OA#455- ot p. 3;.__) Tlns -

a sword, ﬂlereby vi’olatingiM’r.-. Cotton’s srig-htﬁto..-.a:-_;fair and;impa:tizﬂ:&i’ai.. This argumentfalls onmany |
evidence or the testimonial evidence In. fact, Mr. Cottons attorney conducted -substan-hal‘-

I.  He never took the depositions of Mr. Gerati or Gina Austin for ascertain this

|} information from them;

2. Inresponse to Mr. Cotton’s requests for the production of all documents relating to the |

ssmn that it'is competent evidence:?
284, 300)

18
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purchase of the property drafted or revised by Gina Austin [REPs Nos. 18, 19], Mr: Geraci objected on
the' grounds of attotney-client privilege; however, in response to RFP 19, he'added that “Responding |
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| Party has produced previously all responsive documents drafted by Ms: Austin or persons employed i

| in her law firm.”

3. Indeed, all such responsive documents had been produced :and were marked as Trial

Exhibits 59 and 62 which were admitted at trial with Mr. Cotton’s Attorney’s representations that he-
{| had no objections to the admission of the documents. (RT July, 3, 2019, pp. 130:18-26; 132:2-7, Ex, 3

to Plaintiff NOL.). Mr. Cotton testified that he received Exhibit 59 on February 27,2017, and Exhibit |

|{ 62 on March 2, 2017. (RT July 8, 2019, pp. 137:1-138:6, Ex. 4 to Plaintiff NOL.) In fact Mr. Cotton
| responded to Mr. Geraci regarding those documents. (RT July 8, 2019; pp. 138:2-141:4, Ex. 4 to
‘Plaintiff NOL; and Trial Exhibits 63 and 70, Ex. 9 to Plaintiff NOL)

4 Lamy Geraci testified reparding these exhibits and the surrounding circumistances. Mr. |

1l Cotton’s attorney noted:he had no.objection to the admission of those exhibits (RT July 3, 2019, pp. |
| 130:18-26; 132:2-7, Ex. 3 o Plaintiff NOL) and he did not-objeet to-the testimony:

5. Atiomey Gina Austin testified regarding these exhibits and the surrounding |

| circumstances and Mr. Cotton’s attorney made rio febiedt'i;on's;; (RT July 8, 2019, p. 41:10-26, Ex. 4 to

Plaintiff NOL) )
6. M. Cotton’s attorney cross-examined Gina Austin regarding the' draft- agreements
drafted by Ms. Austin’s-office. (RT July 8, 2019, p. 58:3-60:10; Ex.4 to Plaintiff NOL)

Having fajled to-make any objections whatsoevet to any of the documentary and testimonial

|{ evidence of which he now complains, Mt. Cotton has waived any argument that the material should

- {{ not have been admitted.

Mr. Cotton cites A&} Records, Inc. v. Heilman (1977) 75 Cal.App:3d 554, 556 for the

|| proposition that a litigant cannot claim privilege during discovery and then testify at trial. The A&M |
1l Records case is clearly- distinguishable from the case at bar. In that ‘case, a defendant accused of

distributing pirated records failed to p.rqdu_i:e- at hig depasition: documents requested by the plaintiff |

“and also refused to answer any questions of substance on the constitutional ground (3 Amendmenty |

, || that his answers might tend to incriminate him.” (4&M Records, supra, 75 Cal.App.3d at p. 654) The |
' || trial court ordered the deféendant to turn over the fequested documents by a specified date before trial, |
. |jor the defendant would be barred ffom introducing them at trial, ‘and the conrt also precluded the |

19
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defendant “from testifying at ttial respecting matters [and] questions ... he refused to answer at his. | |
| deposition].}” (i

at p. 655.) The order limit[ed] the scope of [the defendant]'s testimony only, and 1

{ not that of any other witness™ at his company. (Ibid)

First and foremost, this case does not involve a situation where a party claims the 5™

| Amendment privilege against self-incrimination and then waives it at trial, so'the 4 & M Records case

has no application to the case at bar. The Court held that a litigant cannot assert his- constititional -

| privilege against self-incrimination in discovery and then waive the privilege and testify at trial. (/bid)
|| By analogy, and without citation, Mr: Cotton seeks to extend this rézsoning to the attorney-client
| privilege being asserted during discovery and then waived at trial. This argument is inapplicable to

this case where the a‘tforéney-"-client‘ documents were prodUced-zto-:Mr. Cotton; wem:irespoﬁded to: b_.y: Mr, -

'Gerac'i_ and -Gina Austin) ‘testified: without any -rﬁbjwtl_pn_ being ‘made; and where- Mr. Cotton’s own _:
| atforney conducted exténsive examination of that witness with regard to:the relevant comfnunications |

| between Ms. Austin and her client, Mr. Geraci. And Mr. Cotton himself was examined regarding §:

these exhibits.

|1v. CONCLUSION

This Court ensured that Mr. Cotton received a fit trial from a fair and impartial jury. The jury |
paid carefud attention, sifted through the evidence, and carefully came to an appropriate verdict. For |

the above-stated reasons, the Court should derty Mr. Cotton’s imotion for a new trial. “There must be

some point where litigation in the lower courts ferminates™ because otherwise “the proceedings after |

judgment would be interminable”. (Coombs v. Hibberd (1872) 43 Cal, 452,453) ltistime toendthis |
| litigation in the trial court and respect the jury’s judgment. |

FERRIS & BRITTON
A Professional Corporation

Scott H. Toothacre
Attorney for Plaidtiff/Cross-Defendant LARRY
GERACI and Cross-Defendant REBECCA BERRY
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In his Memorandum of Points and Authorities.in Support of Motion for New Trial (the “Motion ’
for New Trial”), Mr. Cotton demonstrated that: (1) Mr, Geraci failed to.comply with the City’s and the

State’s CUP requirements and, thetefore, the alleged November 2, 2016 agreement i3 illegal; (2) the

| jury applied an objective standard to Mr. Cotton and a:subjective standard to Mr. Geraci; and (3) Mr.

| Geraci used the attorney-client ptivilege as a shield during discovery and a sword at tfial. In his

Opposition: to Deferdant/Cross-Complainant’s Motion for New Trial (the “Response™), Mr. Geraci
attacks the merits. of the arguments-on three separate grounds.

First, the Reésponse atgues that the illegality argument was waived beeanse it was not raised in

||the Answer. The argument fails because Mr. Cotton reserved the right to asgert all affirmative defenses.
|in paragrapli 16 of "h.is-.Ar‘_;siwe,_r-, illegality cannot be waived, and the Court:has a duty, sua sporite, to

| addreéss the argument.

Second, the Response argnes that-the alleged November2, 2016 agreement is not illegal because

neither the Geraci Judgments? nor the California Business & Professions Code (“BPC™) prohibit Mr.
Geraci from obtaining a CUP. ‘The Motion for New Trial demonstrated that; (i) the SDMC and.the |

BPC required the disclosure of bothi Mr. Geraci’s interest and the Geraci Judgments; (ii) Mr. Geraci
filed the CUP application with fhe City on orabout Octaber 31, 2016; (jii) the General Application and
|| Ownership Disclosure Statement failed o disclose the Geraci Judgments and Mr. Geraci’s. interest, |
respectively; and, as a result, (iv) the alleged November 2, 2016 agreement was illegal when it was |
entered into. The Response attempts to get araund the non-disclosiire issie by -fe:i)"l?ir’i_giupon- festimony
| from fact withesses that it'is “-commou-. practice” for CUP applicants to use-agentsduring the-application _

| process. The Response: does not identify any legal authority that: suggests “ommon. practice” is.a |

defense to illegality.

Similarly, the Response also advanced several excuses as ta why Mr. Geraci's interest was not

| disclosed. The excuses included: (i):Mr. Geraci’s status as an enrolled agent; (i) “convenience of ;';

administration;” and (iii) the City’s forms only allowed Ms. Berry -fo sign as an owneér, tenant, or " :.

“Redevelopment Agengy.” The Response does not provide any legal-authority that the foregoing allows |

1 Deﬁned terms lave the sime; meaning, given them in the Mation: for News Trial unless otherwise defined herein; .w:th the |

| exception of “AUMA” and ¢ ‘Prop. 64, which, refer to the same-legislation and dre referred 4o hereim solély-as AUMA.

1
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Cotfon’s conduct and a subjective standard fo M. Getaci’s conduct. (See Resp. atpp. 15-17.) Indeed, |
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L The Court should consider the attachments and the attorne

o0~ @R Lh

(™ | .

| Mr. Geraci to escape the disclosure requirements or policies:of the SDMC-or BPC. And the Ownership |

Disclosure Statement states that additional pages may be attached to disclose interests in the property

| and permit, whilé the General Application requires the applicant to check a box (yes or o) to disclose

tthe Geraci Fadgments. The atgitmients ate legally and factually unsupported.

For the réasons set forih in the Motion for New Trial and below, the relief sought ini the Motion

| for New: Trial should be granted.

-client privilege argument.

Mr. Geraei ‘argues that the attachments to. the Motion for New Trial should be disregarded.

| party to file and serve a supporting memotandum heyend the ten-day time limit, particularly when. the
::iate filing will not prejudice the opposing party or adversely affect the: judge's ability to decide the
motion within the [75]-day time limit” Cal. JTudges Benchhiook Civ; Proc, After Trial § 2.76.% The |

aftachinients to the Motion for New Trial werg part of thexecord, discovery, or in the public.domain (e.g:

City Ordinanices). The exhibits were attached for convenignce, the exhibits were part of the tecord or }

were legal authority, there is ng prejudice to Mr. Giéraci, and ag a resilt thegyl’Sthld_ﬁhﬂ-‘ﬁOﬂSidéfEd».

Mr, Geraci also argues. that the Motion for New Trial must be limited to the “against law”

grounds et forth in the Notice of Intent to Move for New Triagl (the *Notice™) and, 254 tesult, the |

| arguments related o the use of thic attomey-client privilege as a sword and a shield should bo exctuded.

(Resp. at 9:11-21; id: at pp. 17-19.) The attorney-client privilege argument. should be ‘considered

‘becatise thie argument and facts also: relate to ‘the jury’s application of an objective: standatd to Mr. |

tlie Response-argues that Mr. Cotton’s: objective/subjective atgument “ignores the testimony of Lawry- |

felt he was being extorted.” (Resp. at 16:20-24; 17:3-6.)

GCP § 660 wasiamended:in 2018, extending the time limit from H0to 75 days.

2
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| omitted); Wells v. Comstock (1956) 46 Cal.2d 528, 53
|| the illegality of the transaction”); The argumentalso ignores the well-established ru

é-tfiéf defendaiits in their plea

been raised inthetnalcourt. (Resp at 10:93-11:43 T Fomep:, the:Ci
30 {lof illegality was ﬁrstralseddurmgthe trial and not: for the first time-on a motion for new tri
| || 165 (emphasis in original). Simiilarly, in
3. -Respmnsez acknowledges that the issue-oﬁ:izlle-gﬂif?fwasrais‘r::fﬁt?several times dur:

& -Homamz v. Iranzadi (1

¢ ol

|IL M. Cotton did not waive the ill illegality argument

In the Response, Mr. Geracl dargues that Mr. Cotton: wa;lved the illegality argument. (Resp. at |

E?m‘ 12.) Mr. Geraci presents three arguments i 'suppoft.cjftheWaiﬂerzargmnént For his first argument,

Mr Geraci atguesatm CDItDIl “faﬂedtg ralse‘lllegahty’ agan. affitmative: defenSe inhisswer"

| (Resp, at 193?17'-1'8-,): Mir., Cotton expressly reserved the fri;g‘h];,m. assm-igfﬁmaﬁg@.:ﬂgfengg_g; in paragraph

_:as§ert the defense. -CttyL;r.nm_ln_z-Mercﬂry Co, v. Lindsey { 1:959&-5%;(3&1,2d:267:,2f73..~?4 .(mtemal»_cifc_atl.ons- |

<32 (“no person can be ¢stopped: from asserting |
le:that “even thongh |

dings do not allege the defense of illegality if the eviderice shows the facts |

| from which the illegality appears it becomes ‘the dutyof the court suq sponte to tefise to entertain the |

[ action. ™ Mayv. Herran (1954) 127 Cal. App.24 707, 710 (quoting Hndicort v. Rosenthal (1932),216 |.
|| cat 721, 728,

Forhis second argument, Mr. Géraciargues that Mr, Cotton dannot raise illegality inthe Motion. |

j for New Trial because Fomeo, Juc. v. Joe Maggio; Ine. 1961) 45 Cal.2d 162 anﬂ Aprav. Aureguy{1961)
|55 Cal.2d 827 “bisth rejected post-trial defénses Gﬁgllfggai_lx;nnr;a&f:-;bacausa-fthegill'qgahty defense had not. |

|} illogality: was not raised in the trial of the action; 4nd no: sviderics Was introduced on the subjeet.” |

ieCourt then distinguished Lewis & Queen oiithe grounds that “the issue
ial.” Id. at

| Fomeo, 55 Calad at 165, 1

ndpra, the Court relied upon Fomeo inholding that “questions:

22 || ot raised.in the trial courtwill not be considered on appeal.” Apra, S5 Cal:2d at 83L. Thers, the

‘in"g the trialand evidenee

89)211 CalApde 1104, 1112 {(“Whether the evidence comnes frmmegldﬂ ‘

REPLY TN SUPPOET DR
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|in liming, which was “a sufficient manifestation of objection to prote
| ROA 596); Boston v. Penny Lane Centers, Tic. (2012) 170G
'- ‘owing/operating a. tasijudnd dispensary)) An

B || the trial judpe to grant 4 new trial” and City Linvoln-Mercuiry
| waived. Miller, 54 Cal.App.3d at 346; Ciy Linicoln-Mercury,

O ~

| or the other, the disclosure is fatal to the ease.”) As a result, Fomoo and Apra are distinguishable, Lewis |

& Queen 15 controlling and M. Cotton can raise itlegality in the Motion for New Triat.?

For his third argument, Mr. Geraci argues Mr. Cotton waived the illegality issue when Atforney

i| Austin stated that he was willing not.to argue an evidentiary objeption made after a request to take
|judicial motice of the Geract Tudgments, (Resp. at 12:17-23.) Tn support of the argument, Mr: Geract ?
| relies on Miller v.. National Ameriean Life Ins. Co. ';(,15,976).'54-'CaLAggﬁﬁdzBB1-;-;.-Hbrnfv-..,.,z,étﬁrcfzz's_on.-, T &

S.E.Ry: Co. (1964y 61 Call:2d 602; and Sepulvedn'y. Ishimaru (1957) 149 Cal. App:2d 543. Thé reliance |

{}is misplaced. Thelanguage quotedin theResponserelates to-Attorney. Austin’sefforts to have the Court
| take judicial notioe of the Geraci Tadgments; the statements cannot be-constried as a waiver of the :

| illegality argumentin its entifety.

Additionally, the Geraci Judgments, ahd testimony rcfated thereto; was the subject-of a motion. |
st thie tepord.” (See ROA 581.0;

Cal. App:At936, 950, Cal Evid. Code § 353,

4- || Further, the illegality issue wes also the subject of Mr. Cotton's miotion for & directed verdict (ROA # _f
515 at 5:21-22 (drguing the Geraci Tudgments prohibit M. Geraci from ebtaining a CUP; ar

&, :in ‘any event, Miller held that while “waiver gud

| estoppel nornrally preclude reversal on appeal from a judgrmient. . [] hey-de-not restrict the discre o of

v held the illegality defense cannot-be |

52 Cal.2d at27374. Mf. Cotton hasnot |

) || waived the illegality argument.

The Response does ot dlspute thiats (1) thie: SDIVIG requlred the dlSQlﬂSllrc of M. -Geraci’s

|{ interest and the Geract Judgments; (if) the Geraci Judgments required Mz, Geraci to comply with the |

" Case Mo, 37-2@1743001@073 GUBC-CTL
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15

16 |} even if “commen practice™ did in:

17

21

27
28
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14 |
|to determine ilcgality. See May, supra gt 730-(it ds/the Court

i; limitation. of the City’s Torms. (Resp. at 15 M..--j? The Own

requites the: diselosute of all persons who have-an ititerest m the Prope

26 b .}Cﬂdf! o (R&sp at13 14) (e ”'hasxsmm'lgn

E-Tr at3:19-34:1.)
|7
:’Ténanﬂlessae,, (Resp. _
L andistated that o s the Property

s s

| (Mot. for New T at 7‘:;17?7:-9:;2-5;‘, 12:7-23; see gen. -Reﬁp,=); The Riesponse also does not ﬂlSEHtef that
- : transparency s one of the-underlying policies of the SDMC-- as:evidentced by, among other things, the |
| j(}wnership'Distﬁiiﬁsufez'Staﬁ;&meﬂt:gnd_gequired.haclc‘fgr,‘oulifdieh”eﬁk. (Mot; for New Tr. at 12:24-1 3:5; see.
.i_gen., Resp.) And, finally, the Response does not address, let dlotte distnguish, May v. Herron (1954)
1127 Cal App.2d 707. (Mot for New Tr. at 11:1-13:5; see gen. Resp)

Although thie Response dogs ot challenge the foregoing facts ot law, the Respoiise argiies that

| the use of agents is “common practice” and; therefore, the alleged November 2, 2016 agreoment ismof. |
; illepal, (Resp. at 14;14-15:13.) There are several problems with the argument. First, this Response does
10t cite to-any legal uthority for the proposition thit “compon practice” makes anillegal contract legal. |

(See id) None-exists,

Second, the argument: relws upon th stimany Oi' faet winesses. Ii; is axiomatiy that a fact

witness cannot iake fhe place of the Court to-determine the illegalify-of a contract. 1t is the Court’s duty

*s duty to determine fllegality). Third, |

ike an illegal contract:legal, Mr. Schiweitzer’s testimony as a fact i

| witniess cannot be construed so broadly as to provide an gpinion on-what is “common prictice™ for all
| CUP applications across the City:"
19
20

Fourth, the Riesponse reasserted the allegation that the non-diselosutes were: the result of a

nership Disclosure Staterient, however,

‘ 7CU?and states: “Atfach -

‘additional pages if needed.” (Mot. for New Tr;  Exhibit D (Ownership Dtsolosm‘e Statement) at Patt]f 33 |

 And the General Application required the Geraci Judgments:to be. disclosed by checking otie of o

ifuding oonsdiiar coopatatives” was replnced |

¥, ﬂzeignn“medmal

Vi, Ceriusi o obxin s CUPpursiant 0 the San Dicgs Munitipal

Mr. Schweitzet’s festimony-excluded the fact tht the awnership: disclosures are also requitsd: for the Heacing Officer. (Iu“ty 8 :

© The: Response atao-?isngoests that Ms. Tiranids

e Mo, 37:201 O IVTRCUBO-CTL.
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o keep Mir: Cotton’s narhis off the CUP application “mless necessary

| agent and administrative convenience. (1, at 9:17-19)) Finally, the argum

*:_demands that certain tranisactions be ﬂ:;smutajggd:"’. M@ supra at 712 (qvﬂ

| because o do so would condone Mr. Geraci, and others, to:knowi

—
D

O e

|| boxes (yes or no) and instructed a copy of the same be attached. (Jd. at Exhibit H) The putposted |

|| shortfalls of the City’s forms do not exist or otherwise obviate the disclosure requirements..

Fifth, the argument ignores correspondence from Ms. Austin to Mr. Schweitzer :‘iiﬁ_stmei:?ingihfim i
*because Mr. Cotton had “lepal |

| issues” with the City. (Jd. af8:22-9:3.) Sixth, the argument ignores the testimony from Mr. Geraci and |

M. Berry that Mr. Geraei’s interest was not disclosed purposefully because of his Stabis.as anenrolled |

ent conflates the use of an :

| agent to complote forms with the SDMCs réquiremerits to diselose Mr. Geraci®s interest and the Geracl

Jadgments. The two issues:are separate and distinet, and the se of an agent to-compléte 2 form does |

|| not somehow change the disclosure requiremenits.

The purpoﬁ_e.':ofths iuegali-tymla “is nntgencraliy apﬁlie;ﬂ,;misame }usmce between partaes wher

- Takeuchi v Schmuck

11(1929) 206 Cal. 782, 786). The Court canniot give effect to-the alleged November 2, 2016 agreement

nigly and pritposefully circumvent the: -

| requirements of the SDMC.

E_IV AUMA is applicable and its €xpress policy and 1aws SuUppo; 15 the cuncluswn that the

alleged November 2, 2016 at reemeht_ls__ nlle oal.

As to AUMA’s application, the provisions of AUMA were circulated to the public in July 2016,

'fado}ited- by the voters on November 8, ;2.-:'0'1,'5, and became effective on November 9; 2016:. With the

....

|| dated September 26, 2018 referencinig CUP for “MarijianaOistlet”).). Bevause AUMA's policies Wﬁl’@?:’
| known at the time of the alleged Novemiber 2, 2016 agreoment and Mr. Geraoi pursued a CUP for a|

matijuana outlet after AUMA became effective, AUMA’s policies are applicable-and-consistent with the

| | SDMC’s policy of transpateticy and disclosuie. See Tndvstrial Develppment & Land Co: v. Goldschmidt|
7 {{(1922) 56 Cal.App. 507,509 (“A contractin itsinception st possess the essentials of having competent

- ;f_p‘axfties; a legal objeet, and.a sufﬁclentconmderﬂtmn Lacking any-one of thesé, io binding ﬂbhgaﬂons

REPLY IN:SUPPERT OF MOTI@N FORMNEW TRIAL
Case N, AT-2017:00010073-CU-BEETE,




10 |}
6 (adding § 26057(b)(7). Tn furthefance of that policy, AUMA. stateg that the lcensing avthority sh"alli |
ding §26057(b)(7), prohibited an applicarit |

11

12 5 deny anapplication if the applicant doesnot qualify.and; by.a

13
14
15

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26 1
27}
98 |

:: result; hence 4-contract which c;énte_.tnplatcs the doing of 3 thing which. is unlawfil

| 1awful but which afterward and duting the running of the contract teétm becomes unla
|| the same Wway and ceascs 10 be operative upon the taking effect of a prohibitory

R R T - MU T S "N IF O

| from obtaining a license if they have been sanctioned for unauthorized commereial
16 |

| construction. The interpretation would render meaningless §§ 26057(4) and 26059,

| on.two grounds — none:of which are-applicable here. Mir; Geraci's interp

| and 26059 meaningless.

. &

at the time of the:

|| making thereof is void. For the same reason a contract-which conternplates the deing of a thing; at first

wiil, is affected in |

law.”). AUMA is|

The Response does not dispute that one of the express policies of AUMA was to biing maﬁjaanaf

Aat§§3 (8

cotnmercial matijuana activities from obtaining a state license; See AUMA

his interest and the:Geraci Jndgments = a direet conflict with AUMA’S express polici

The Response argues § 26057(b)-does not

noless

(2006) 38 Cal 4" 1002, 1010 (interpretations that render statutory terms means

| “into & regulated and legitimate market [by creating] = (ransparent and accountable system.™ (Mot, for.
| New Tr. at 7:5-15.) Further, AUMA sought to limit those persons involved in the matijuana industry by,

[among other things, prohibiting an applicant who has been sanctioned by & city for unauthorized |

ig:pos-e;gandzlntent),; :

marifuang activity. |

| AUMA at § 6.1 (adding § 26057(a)-(b)). ‘While pursuinge CUP fora MO, Mr. Geraczfaﬂed to-disclose |

8.

Vit Geraci from ebtaining a state license becatise |

| the statute is discretionary. (Resp. at13-14.) The urgument contlics with two pillars of statutory | -

People v. Hudson

«are to be avoided) |

| Ginternial citations omitted). Seetion 26057(a) miandates the denial sz.an@:l?_{?fl'i:i;aﬁ‘@ for a state license:if |
| the applicant does not qualify, while § 26059 protitbits the State from dénying an appllcaﬂt baged solely |
otation eenders §§ 26057(a) |

The interpretation also applies the same meaning to two-separate words: Jn re. Austin . (2004) |

7
‘REPLY INSUPPORT-GF MOTION FORNEW TRIAL
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| 118 Cal AppA™ 1124, 1130 (“When ditferent terms are nsed in parts of the same statutory scheme, they




10 |
11 |
12 {| Mr. Cotton’s intecpretation of the facts” and then goes on-te argue that Mr. Goraci “felt he was being,

134

14
15
16

22
23 |

24

25
26

N

eqility position in-the contetnplated marijy

~ | -

ate presumed to have different mieanings.”). The mandatory provisions of Section 26057(a) apply to

| the applicant” ot premises, while the perniissive provisions of 26057(b) apply to-the application..

Here, it is undisputed that Ms. Berry was thenained applicant on the CUP application, Ms: Berry

I{was applying for the CUP solely as Mt. Geraci’s agent; and Mr. Geraci was and always had been the:
party pursuing the operation of a marijuana dispensaty at the Property. As the central purpose of el
|lalleged November 2, 2016 agreement was Mr. Cotton’s operation -of 4 marijuana. dispensary at the |

| Property, and his interest-was never disclosed, the alleged agreement violated applicable state law and |

policy and caitnot be enforced. Homani, supra at1109.

In the Response, Mr. Gerack argues that the subjective/objective: standard atgumient “is simply

extorted.” (Resp. at 16:20-24, 17:3-6) (ctphiasis added)) The objective.manitestations set forth in the ;'
| Noverber 2, 2016 e-rail sorsespendesce, the actions oF M. Gerail thereafier, and he aantent o |
draft sgreements are notin dispute: The issus before the Court is whether Mr. Geracl’s subjectiveintent, |
I beliefs, and feelings can be considered by the jury. :
17
18|
19|
30. 1
7|

First, in explainirig bis Noveniber 2, 2016 e-mail confirming he would provide Mr. Cotton 2 10% |

na dispensary, Mr. Getéci téstified that he did-not read the: |

entirety of Mr, Cotton’s e-mail. However, a party cannot claimhe did nottead an offer beforeaccepting |
it, SeeStewart v. Preston Pipeline Ing. (2005) 134 Cal. App.4tb 1565, 1587 (plaintiffs claim thathe did
not read the agreement before signinig it did not raise a trible issne of mufual assent) (internal citations

; omltted)

Second, the Response argues that Mr. Geraci felt he was being extoried and it the facts |

| supporting M. Cotton’s argum ent are “equally supportive of Mr. Geraci’s and [Ms.] Austin’s testimony |

that Mr. Geraci felf his was being extorted by Mr. Cotton and requested [Ms.] Austin o pledse draft new |

{{ contracts.” (Resp: at 17:4-6) {emphasis added.) A person’s undisclosed feelings is subjective and should

27 e
118

28 f_ SYRONYITOUS;

Thie applicable torm “applicant” Was dafined in § 26001(a)(1), which:does:nige siiske the termis “applicant” and “application”

8
Case No: 37-20£7-p0010073-CUBE-CTL |
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10
11

13

14

15

16
17

i9 ||
20 |

21

23

25
26 - : 1:
27
28

| Austin and that, in any. event, Mt. Cotton had the opportii

24 {7

'Fejbrua_wfﬁ, 2019,‘hﬂa1.iag i 'Cﬂiﬁtstateduuequlv“cafly thatM
: scope byassemng prwﬂege The subsc Gt o

fimeanmgﬁﬂ digtitietion betwesd | '
{Hotcite to-any casélaw o supp

& (M

..hzwe been'disrégatded been disregarded by the jury. Stewart, supra at 1587 (a party”s subjective intent

_ Othﬁmfse-mggeﬂ- axtior.tion.. M. -GEra@i.*s-:sﬂbjiecﬁ\fﬂz@nd mﬂalm’natory feelings have no dpplication to

| the issues.

It is worth noting here that, as it relates to Mz, Geraci using aftorney-client privilege as 4 sword. -

1and a shield, the Response argues that documents were produced. (Resp: at 18:24-19:9) (emphasis -
added.)’ The issue is not-about the production of documents; it is the withholding of communications

| that- were then-used ap ttial to introduce evidence of Mr. Geraci’s subjeétive and inflammatory feelings.

Thitd, the Response argues that M. Cotton waived the argument because he did notidepose Ms.

ity'to cross examine Ms. Austin. (Resp. at

118:22-23, 19:16-17.) As to the former, Mr. Geraci claimed privilege during discovery'so attempting to
{take Ms, Austin’s deposition would have been a futile act; which the law does not require. Cates v.
:-_Chiang{ZGﬁlB_) 213 Cal. App4™ 791. As to the Tatter, uny attémpt to crogs-exumine Ms. Austin at trial |
‘would have been pointless because no communications were: discloséd and, thetefore, there was no
;‘ability_ta impeach the testimony ot cither Mr. Geracior Ms, Austin, M. Geraci asserted privilege during
ﬁ ‘discovery thenwaived the privilege.at trial - he cannot blow hot and cold, A&M Records, Inc. v Heilpan,

111977 75 Cal.App.3d 554, 566,1

€ an objective standard was applied to both parties, based on the evidence admitted, the jury

| could biave only reached one of two corclusions, The first conclusion is that the parties’ agreement

included at the very least the terms of the alleged November'Z, 2016-agréement aid the 10% interest

||/that Mr. Geraci confitmied via e-mail. As'Mr; Geraci failed and refissed to recogrize Mr. Cotton’s 10%

Records:based npon the- typ
Eentitiont O dHoricy

aftempt to take incongistent pcsumﬁ See e.L MeDarz_zel?'v. Generai Inx Ca ot Amemca (}934) 1 C%sl App.2d 454, 4»5'9 6() Thare 1»5_ ngj ‘

| suggestiofn or” authomy tht the: cioctrine;would tiot:apply hiere.

9
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17
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20

21,
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{ have reached, based upon the November 2, 2016 e-mail corresponderice-and subsequent eXChange af _

draft agreements, is that the parties had an agreement to agree — which is-not.enforceable. The jory

1| found metther,

Instead, the jury applied a subjective standard to Mr. Geraci. Mr. Geraci defended his November |

12,2016 e-mail and subsequent exchange of draft agreements on two subjective grounds - his testimony |
| that he did not read the entire e-mail and his feeling/belief that he was:being extorted. This wasimproper ?

and a new trial is warranted.

VI. CONCLUSION
The Mation for New Trial should be granted. Theslleged November 2, 2016 agreement is illepal

as: it fails to comply with &xptess provisions of the SDMC, as well as the policies of the SDMC and.

1| AUMA. Second, the jury applied -an objective standard to Mr. Cotten’s: conduet: and & subjective: |

standard to M. Geraci’s. Thus, for the reasans set forth in the Motion for' New Trial and this Reply, the

relief sought in the Mation for New Trial should be granted.

DATED this 30" day of Septetiber, 2019,

" TIFFANY & BOSCO, P:A.

Dari's.«’i CGtton

10
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2 ROUGH DRAFT FOR FRIDAY AM iN DEPARTMENT 73, CENTRAL

3 Number five:

4 THE COURT: Item five, Geraci versus Cotton, case
5 number 100173.
6 MR. WEINSTEIN: Good marning, Your Honor.

7 Scott Weinstein and Scott Toothacre on behalf of

8 Mr. Geraci and Ms. --, who is not a part of this conference.
9 THE COURT: And Counsel?

10 MR. SCHUABE: Good morning, Your Honor. Evan
11 Schuabe on behalf of Mr. Cotton.

12 THE COURT: All right. Did | hear you two say

13 that you were submitting?

14 MR. WEINSTEIN: Yeah. We are submitting, Your
15 Honor, with-time to respond.

16 THE COURT: Allright. Counsel?

17 MR. SCHUABE: Thank you. I'll get to the

18 illegality of the contract issue first. The factis it

19 cuts to the heart of the motion that we filed and the
20 biggestissue. .

21 A couple of items 1 wanted to raise with the Court, a

22 couple of factual items | wanted to raise with the Court.




23

24

25

26

27

28

First one, on Exhibit H of our motion, is a leave to
file the application to CUP applications that were filed.
In general application, which is trial Exhibit 4200, it's
states that "notice of violation is required to be
disclosed," and skip back to page four of the same trial

exhibit, the ownership disclosure statement, it also says,
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17

18

19

20

21

22

"the name of any person of interest in the property must
also be disclosed and it states to potentially attach pages
if needed.
THE COURT: So you are saying the contract is
unenforceable?
MR. SCHUABE: Yes.
THE COURT: As a matter of law?
MR. SCHUABE: Yes. CUP was a condition precedent
to the contract.
THE COURT: Counsel, up until this point in time,
this case was filed in 017. Your side has been screaming
at the Court and filed muitiple writs asking me to
‘adjudicate the contract as a matter of law in favor of your
side. Now you are asking me in after an adverse finding to
adjudicate the law for the other side, you are doing a 180.
Truly, you are doing a 180.
MR. SCHUABE: | came in on a limited scope. |
don't have the background.
THE COURT: I do. They do. They have been
sitting -
MR. SCHUABE: But my understanding was there were

the motions that were made were based upon my client's
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24

25

26

27

28

understanding of what the agreement is which is not
specifically related to the November 2, 2016 agreement that
the jury found. Our motion is a bit more limited in that
regard. | may be wrong. That's my understanding of the

background of the case.

THE COURT: Again, from the Court's perspective as
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"

a matter of law up to this point, you have been asking me
to adjudicate the contract in your favor. Now you're
asking the Court to adjudicate the contract as a matter of
law against the other side.

Counsel, shouldn't this have been raised at some
earlier point in time?

MR. SCHUABE: Should it have, Your Honor? My
personal opinion is that it shouid have been raised before
but it was not and we are what are and so hence the reason
why we're raising the issue now on a motion for new trial.

I think what has been referred to before, the illegality .-
argument has been raised before and raised in the context
of reference to state law and and Section 2640 of the
‘California business and professions code, | believe what
was not conveyed to the Court was that these requirements
for these forms, the specific provisions in the San Diego
Municipal code that they require those disclosures and
reguire applicant provide information. The information was
not provided. And --

THE COURT: Even if you are correct, hasn't that
train come and gone?- The judgment has been entéred. You

are raising this for the first time?




23 MR. SCHUABE: Your Honor, illegality of the

24 contract can be raised any time whether in the beginning or
25 during the case or on appeal.

26 THE COURT: So it's akin to a jurisdictional

27 challenge?

28 MR. SCHUABE: Idon't know if it's akinto a
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jurisdictional challenge but the issue can be raised --
THE COURT: But at some point, doesn't your side
waive the right to assert this argument? At some point?
MR. SCHUABE: | am not suggesting we waived that.
The case law | saw in the motion cited that there is a duty
and the duty continues and so | am not aware if there is
anything that suggests that we waived that argument.
THE COURT: Anything else, counsel?
MR. SCHUABE: The cther thing I'd like to point
out, section 114.01 of San Diego Municipal Code
specifically states that every applicant prior be furnished
true and complete information. And that's obviously not
what happened here. Ithink it's undisputed and the
reasoning for the failure to disclose, there is no
exception to either the San Diego Municipal code or failure
to disclose.
THE COURT: Thank you, very much.
MR. SCHUABE: Thank you, Your Honor.
.THE COURT: | am not inclined to change the .
Court's view.  Did either one of you need to be heard?
‘MR. TOOTHACRE: Just to make a record. One

comment with respect to the illegality argument. -
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s

Obviously, we agree with the comments of the Court but the
failure to make these disclosures in the CUP, it doesn't |
make the contract between Geraci and cotton unenforceable.
It's one thing to say that the contract or the form wasn't
properly filled out, that doesn't make the contract

unenforceable. That's all we have for the record.
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11

12

13

THE COURT: Counsel, the Court observed this case
throughout the entirety, including at trial. Quite
frankly, | thought your client did well on the witness
stand. Truly. Butthe jury categorically reflected your
side's claim and t am persuaded everybody got a fair trial
here. The Court confirms the tentative ruling as the order
of the Court. | will direct plaintiff's side to serve
notice of the decision. Thank you very much.

MR. WEINSTEIN: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. TOOTHACRE: Thank you, Your Honor,

(END OF PROCEEDING AT 9:23 AM}
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Jacob P. Austin [SBN 250303]

The Law Office of Jacob Austin
1435 Frazee Road, Suite 500 i L E D
San Diego, CA 92108 - B Dl Buperior ot

Pacsimiler  (888) 357-850]

E-mail: JacobAustinEsq@gmail.com By . Depuy

Attomey for Defendant/Cross-Complainant DARRYL COTTON

SUPELRIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, HALL OF JUSTICE

LARRY GERACI, an individuaf, Case No. 37-2017-00010073-CU-BC-CTL
Pleisuitt; )" VERIFIED STATEMENT OF
v DISQUALFTCATION PURSUANT TO
N : CCP §170.1(a)(6)(A) (i) AND

| DARRYL COTTON, snindividuslymnd ~ § CCF SHTOL@ENE)
1 DOBS | throuph: 10, inelusive, 3

Defendants.

AND RELATED CROSS-ACTION,

7O THE HONORABLE JOEL R. WOHLFEIL, JUDGE OF THE SUPERIOR COURT:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that this Verifled Statemient of Disqualification is 8- tequest by

Attorney Jacob P, Austin (“Counsel”) that Judge Wohifeil recuse himselfas the judiclal officer presiding
{over the ahiove-captioned proceeding based upon the focts and evidence set forth below (the
“Statement”).
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VERIFIED STATEMENT OF DISQUALIFICATION PURSUANY TO CCP §170.a)(EMANIN AND OCP §170.1(AXS)D)
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L FRODUCTION
1. Counsel brings forth this Statement pursuant to (i Califomia Code of Civil Procedure

("CCP”) § 1701 (@)(6)(A)(iif) on the grounds that a “person eware of the facts might reasonably entertain
|2 doubt that the judge would be able to bé impartial,” and (ii) GCP §170.5{=)(6)(B) on the grounds that
the facts demonstrate ¥[b]ias or prejudies toward a lawyer inthe proceeding.”

2. As a threshold issue, Counsel notes that this Statement arises in part from the dental of .

{two motions brought before Judge Wohlfeil, On August 30, 2018 Counsel filed a Petition for Writ.of
Mandate, Supe:sedaasand!or Other Apptopriate Relief (*Wiril Petii

I_dema! of the two motions. The Writ Petition is mahcr!a.l o thxs Stntemmt a copy’ thereof {s attached as |
Exhibit A. The supporting Exhibits to the Wn_t.Pc_tmgn,-are:attmhed.herem-as Exhibit B.

3. Summarily, this action arises fiom a real estato contract dispute between Plaintiff Larry |

|| Geraci (“Plaintitr"y and defondant Dyt Catan (g_ge_;;ggm Bath p‘:-ainﬁﬁ' and Defendant admit

. (";’_;ggggy“) o P]aint;ﬁ‘, (n) the sale was contmgent upon PIaintIfE abtaining approvai from the: Cxty of N
‘San Diego ("ggg”) of a Conditional Use. Permit ("QLE“] that would atlow the opergtion ofa for-profit |

medical marfjuana ouitfet at the Property (the “Buginess™); (iii) they executed a three-sentence document

| that reflects Defendant received $10,000 in cash from Plairtif (the “November Document”); and (V)
| Plaintif, within hours of the execution of the November Document and in regporise to # specific request

by Defendant for written assutance, specifically confirmed via emai} that the threc-sentence November

| Document is not the final agreement for.ﬂln‘:'sﬂle of thefl'irbpe'r'ty-{ﬂie “'ﬁo“nﬁhﬁaﬁbn Emgil®).

4, Plaintiff alleges the November Documcnt is the final and completely integrated

agrecment for the sale of the Property.

5. Deferidant allepes the Na.vember‘ Document is & document inemotializing his receipt of

| :$1.0,-0E}.9 incashand thatthe parties réaclicd an ol ag_racn‘iemfﬁr;aj oint venture to developthe Business
{1at the Pro'perty ('th'e “Jbi’nt Ventute Agreement’" h&minaﬁ-er‘-‘-‘m"j, The FVA was to be reduced to

| :contemplated business.

/

‘ ‘ 2 .
VERIFIED STATEMENT OF DEQUALIFICATION FURSUANT TO CLP § 701X EHAX ) AND CCP 1704 (AY6)XB)
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“ 6. InMarch of 2017, Plaintiff brought forth suit alleging that the November Dacument is |
the completely integrated agreement and seeking specific performence to force the sale from Defendant

o himself,

7.  Plaintiff has maintained throughout the course of this litigation that the Canfirmation
Email, that negates the entire basis of his Complaint; is barred by the parol evidence rule (“PER").

8. In Apeil of 2018, when confronted with case law allowing the admission of the
Confirmation Email and other parol evidence as proof of & fraud, Plaintiff submitted 2 declaration |
alleging for the first time that he sent the Confirmation Ematl by m‘s'staké:and‘thaftcm.Nmrar_nber-3-,_ 2016,
Defendant (i) erally disavowed the interest in the CUP that Plaintiff had promised to him in the

Conflrmation Email and (i) agreed the th: mber Dotument is a completely iﬂtg‘g_mﬁed agreement for
{1he sale of the Property to Plaintiff. Plaintiff provided no explunation why he walted over a yoar after
| filing suit to allege such & material and critlcal fagtual statement,

9. ItisCounsel's absolute belief, based on facts admitted to by Plaintify, that this actionis |
frivolous and & stereotypical malicious prosecution ection. Plaintiff {5 seeking to fiiudalently |
mi‘srepre_s&nt the November .currient as completely integrated agreement for his purchase of the

|| Property inosder 10 deprive Defendant the benefit of the parties’ bargain reached on November 2, 2016 :
|| that in¢luded an equity position in the Business anticipated to be highly luerative,

10. “Whethera contract is inteprated is a ques_:_tijah of taw when the evidence ofintegration i3 | |
not in dispute.” Founding Members of the Newport Beack Cavniry Club v. Newport Beach Country
Club, Ine. (2003) 109 CaLAppith 944, 954. “The cruciel thresitold tiiquiry, therefore, and one for

|the caurt to declde, is whelher the pariles intended their written ugreentent (o be fully integrated, :
| [Citations.]” Brandwein v. Butler 2013) 218 Cal.App.4th 1485, 1510 (emphuasts added).

1. Judge Wohifeil, despite repeated oral and written requests for over & year, has pever

_ sddressed the c;ygfa! threshald ingquiry of :_c__n'n_t;ra ct integration.

2. In response to evidence and n};ﬁmems presanted by Defendant (while representing
himse!f pro se) that prove the November Document is not .dq'mpietely integrated, Judge Wohlfell

defended Platntifs attomeys Michael Wetnstels (“Weipsteln”) and Gina Austin (Mes, Austin®) (o
{relation to Counsef Jacsh P, Austin). -Speeiﬁq'an&, Judge Wohifeil staled from: thie bench that hie is

_ 3
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personally acquainted with Weinstein and Mrs. Austin and that he does not believe they would act |

|unethically by filing a meritless suit.! Furthermore, Judge Wohifeil stated on & separate occasion that. |

he has known Weinstein for decades since early in their carcers and that Hie “may have made” the
statement regarding his belief about Weinstein and Mrs. Austin’s inability to be-unethical.
13.  Pursuant fo Cosa Herrera, Inc. v. Beydoun (2004) 32 Caldth 336, had Judge Wohlfeil

|| addressed the grucial fhreshold Inquiry of contract integration and found that the November Document
| was not 5 completely integrated agraement because of the PER, then Weinstein and Mrs, Austin would

bie open to a cause of aotion for maltcious prosecution, Casa Herrera, Ine. v. Beydoun(2004) 32 Cal.4th |

{336, 349 (“we hold that terminations based on the paro] evidence rule are favorable for malicious

. prasecution purposes,”).

14.  Counsel understands that “the mere fact a judicial officer rules aginst a party does not
Jfuir in fact, but It should alse appear ta be fair.! [Citations,]” In re Marringe of Tharp {2010) 188
Cal.App.4th 1295, 1328 (emphasis added). In this case, fairiss and the appearance of fuirhess will be

|| achieved only if the entire cuse is resssigned to another judicial officer beonuse on these faots, as proven. |

below, this cas¢ should not even have to reach & jury wisl. Given tha?fﬁ;;ts* of the case end Judge
Wohifesl’s comments and rulings, it cafi reasonably appear ‘ﬂiat.!udgitﬁ Waohlfeil has ruled against |
Defendant because he () Is seeking fo unjustly uss his position as a,judl'éiﬁl officer to protect Weinstein.
and Mrs. Austin from a malicious prose_cut‘ton aption and/or (i) has a ﬁgged.ﬁpinibn'thnt- Welnstein and

Mrs, Austin are incapable of being unethical to a degree that it impairs his ability to Impartially weigh

| any fhcts and evidencs involving their acts,

15.  The undisputed fcts set forth below in Section T, (Material Factual and Procediral '

| Background) are laid out chronologically and are meant to support the following six faotuai findings:

a.  Plointiff is before Judge Wohlfeil as part of a demonstrably unlawful scheme to

| acqitire the CUP at issue here. Plaintiff is prohibited from.owriiu_g;a:.-CUP by numetous applieable City
[of San Diega and Stg’tﬁ:of Californta Jaws and regulations that disqualify individuals who (1) have been” |

sanctioned for b;einéiﬁvalvgd in {llegal marijuans commersial businesses (i) and for falling to comply

4
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with the applicable disclosure obligations as part of the CUP application process (meant to prevent
disqualified individuals from acquiring an intercst in 2 CUP for rerijuans-related operations);

b.  Mrs, Austin and Rebecea Berry ("Berry”), Plaintiff's employee/agent, knowingly
omitted Plaintiff's ownership in the Property and the CUP zpplication in contravention of applicable |
{aws and reguletions;

¢ The November Docurment is not a completely integrated agreement pursuant {0
the PER and the record rmakes it appear that I udge Wohlfeil 'hés:gonsis_lenﬂy and systemically avoided

| addressing the cruclal threshold inguiry of contract integration which would be the case-dispositive

{issue;

d, Judge Wohlfeil has stated, and the record makes numerous references to, his

{1 belief that Weinstein and/or Mrs. Avstin would not act unethically;

e, Sorme.of Judge Wohifeil's rulings are: unauppditn& by feots or Jaw and, in some:

| instances, contradicted by facts and evidence both Plaintiff and befgndant:ﬂdrnit are frue; and

f. If Judge Wohlfeil were to apptopriately address the issue of contrect integration,

| pursuant to the PER, Weinstein and Mrs. Austin would be exposed to Eegai and financial tability: for

filing and/or maintaining a malicicus prosecution action.

II. MATERIAL FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

A, Plainiiff hgs a history of owning/managing Rlegal marijunna dispensaries that disquallfy himt

from owning.@ for-profit Matijuane Ourlet; Julge Wohifel
aflows this case fo continug when on lis face Plaintiff s using this actlon 1o ¢ffectuate a fraud.
16,  Plaintiif has been a named defendant and sanotioned in et least three actions by the City

 Bas never addressed why he

Hifor ownlog/mandging lilegal marijuana dispensarles, See City of San Diegov. The Tree Club
| Cooperative Case No. 37-2014-00020897-CU-MC-CTL, City of San Dizgov. CCSquared Wellness

| Cooperative Case No. 37-2015-00004430-CU-MC-CTL, and, City of San Diegov. LMJ 35th Street
Property LP, et al,, Cass No. 37-2015-000000972.2

;?-Exhiﬁt C, Stipulation of Judgment, Preliminary Injunetion Order

5 _
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17.  Posms DS-190 (Affidavit for Medical Marljuana Consurner Coaperatives for Co_llditinnai
Use Permit (CUP))? and DS-318 (Ownership Disclasure Statement)* are two of the forms required by

‘tlthe City Development Services Depactment as. part of the ap_pticatio‘n pracess for @ CUP (the “CUP

Application Forns™),

18.  In relevant part; Form DS-318 states; “Plezse list below the owner(s) and tenant(s) (if
applicable) of the abave referenced property. The list must include the hames and addresses of all
{ persons whe have an interest in the property, recorded OIr-QﬂlGl_'ﬁS'ﬁ:, and state the type of property
Interest (e.g., tenants who will benefit from the pefmit, all individuals who own the property).™

19.  Bemy s the employee and agent of Plaintift.

20.  Bemy executed and submitted the CUP Application Forms for the Property to the City.”
i 21,  Berry DID.NOT listPlaintitf as 8 person owning or havingan interest inthe CUP and/or

1l the Property as required?® Instéad, she listed hep}sc,lfflas':mc “Tenant/Lessee™ of the Property on Form

DS-318,% and “Owner” of the Property on Forra DS«190.1
| 22, As described in PlaintifP's own submission, e admits that Berry, his agent, submitted _‘
the CUP Application Forms ot his behalf

Berry was the Applicant. Cotton and Berry did pot have principal-agent.
\ . relationship and Berry did not submit the CUP Application on his behalf
Rather, Bermry had a principshagent relationship with Geraci, Berry
sulimitted the CUP Application on behalf of Geraol who had entered into 8.
written agreerient with Cotton for the purchase of the Property. -

.....

23, Callfornita Bus, & Prot. Code §26057(s) states that, “The licensing suthority ghail deny
an application if cither the applicant, ox the premises for which a state llcense is applted, doant qualify
for licerisure Under this-division™ (e_r'_np'hagis added). |

»

3 Bxhibit B, p.559.

4 Exhibit B, p.558. o
* Exhibit B, p.558 (emphnsis added):
|6 Exhibit B, pas, n2+4,

L _

PExhibliB, 558,

|l 7 Banivtt B; p.559.

¢ Byhibit B, p.558, _
VERIFIED STATEMENT OF DISQUALIACATION PURSUANT TO OCP §170.1aXSKANHI) AND TCE §170.1(AREXE)
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24,  Bus. & Prof. Code §26057(b) sets forth the eriteria that mandates donial under Bus. &
Prof. Code §26057(a).
_ 25.  “Conduet that constitutes grﬂ;inds for denial of licensurs under éhapwr 2 (commencing
with Section 480) of Division 1,5, except a5 otherwise specified in this section and Section 26059
Bus. & Prof, Code §26057(bX2). Criterle under Bus. & Prof. Code §480 that disqualify Ptain_ﬁﬁ' from

{1 ownirig an interest include:

a. A board may deny a license reguleted by this code on: the grounds that the

| applicant has one of the following.... Done any oct Inﬁaiuiug distionesty, fraud; oy decelt with tha
lintent to substantially kenafit himself or herself or another, or substantiolly Injure another.” Bus. &

‘Prof. Code §480(=)(2) (emphasis added).

b, “A board may deny & license regulated by this code on the grbund that fhe |
applicant knowingly made & false statement af fact that (s required fa be vevealed in the application
for the Heense. Bus. & Prof: Code §480(d) (emphasis added). |

c.  “Failure to provide information required by the lcensing authorly* Bus, &
Prof: Code §26057(b)(3) (emphasis added). |

d.  “Theapplicant, or any of its officets, directors, or-owners, has been sanctioned
by & Yicensing suthority or & city, county; or city and county for unawutfioriced commerclal cannabls
activities, has had 1 lcense suspended or revoked under this division in the three youts mmediately
preceding the date the application is filed with the licensing authority.” Bus. & Prof. Code §26057(b)(T)
(emphasis added), o

26, SanDiego Municipal Code ("SDMC") §42.1501 materially states: “I¢ s the intent of this

Division to promote.and proteet the public health, safety, and wslfate of the citizens of San Diego by

{| allowing but steictly regutating the retail sale of marijuana st mari{fuana outlets. .. Jt is further the intent

'af this Division to ensure thaf marijuania is not diverted for iilegal purposes, and to Uit its use to

. || those persous onthorized gﬂ_ﬂm‘ rxtate law” (Emphasis added))

27.  Plaintiff ts disqualified from having an ownecship infécest in the CUP for the Property |
because (1) his apents knowingly did not disclose -his.awnerisﬁips‘intéf’t:st’ int the CUP Application Forms; |

7
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(if) he has been sanctioned for owning/managing illegal dispensaries; and (jii) this legal action is part of
& fraudulent scheme to deprive Defendant of his Property by way af a frivolous lawsuit, '

| 28,  Plaintiff’s attorney, Mrs, Austin, is handling the CUP application for the Property.
Mrs. Austin is cansidered the premier attorney in-San Diego for marijuena relsted CUP applications
with the City of San Diego, Attached hereto as Exhibit Eisen attipie'pﬁbﬁshed by the San Diego Unlon |
Tribune on August 10, 2018 entitled *San Diego’s cannabis supply chain is falling inta place, with one
production business epproved and 39 more an tap” stating that, of 24 manufecturing licenses avajlable
for marijuena businesses in the City of San Diego, Mrs. Austin represents stx of thie applicants who are

H at the “head of the paclc."”
1o i

29. Attached hereto as Exhibit F is'an ema:l chain from Mrs. Austin speeifically advising
Plaintif's architect that she wanted to review the CUP applicatfon for the Property before it was |
:suhmiﬁttad to the City, |

30.  Inshort, the plain and clear language on the CUP Application Form required Berry to :
disclose Plaintiff's ownership interest in the CUP and the Property, She did not. And, Mrs. Austin, |
specializing in marijuana law, knew that Berry should have |isted Plaintiff as an individual with an
interest in the CUP and the Pmpe:ty, '

32, To dme,ludge Wohlfezl has never addressed why he allows thiz actionto cant[nue when
| even Plainfiff has admitted to the facts above that prove he and his agents have violated mimerous -

applicable digelosure {aws and regulations, If Judge Wohlfeil addressed this Issuo, Mrs, Austin would
be fegally lizble for purposefully omitting Ptainﬁffﬁ'o_m__the' applicable disclosure requirements

111

Hi

i1/}

1"i

" Exh ibit E, San Diegn Uninn Trib une, San Diego s cannabls supply chain ds falling Intd plice; 1tk ore prothidtion
business approved end 39-more on lap, bttp:/fvww sandiegounionmribune, mmlnewsfpohhcsfsd-me-wwd-produehun-

zomosmam:y'nuns Auguat 10,2018 last acdcssed September 10, 2018
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B Judge Woklfell has consistently vefused to address the threshold and case-dispositive lssue of

contract integration; which, If he did, would result In Uiis matier being adjudicated in

Defendant’s favor and expose Welnsieln and Mrs, Austin (and othery) to liabllity for

maliclous prosacution.

33,  Neither Plaintiff nor Defendant dispute that.on November 2, 2016 they met, reached an
agreement for the sale of the Property to Plaintiff, and executed the November Document. The parties,
however, dispute the terms reached and the nature of the November Docurment,}?

34,  On November2, 2016 at 3:11p.m., after the pariies: reached their agreement and

Defendant executed the November Dosument, Plaintiff emailed Defendant a copy of the November

Document.”
35.  A1§:55 p.m, Defendant replied:

‘Thank you for meeting today. Since we executed the Purchase Agreement
in your office for the sale price of the property I just noticed the 0% equity
position in the dispensary was not Ianguage added into that document. I just
want to meke sure that ‘we're aof missmg that !anguage in anyj‘:;ai

Exhibit B, p497 {emphasis added).
36, 113 p.1s;, Plaintiff replied: “Ne sa problem of alf" (the “Confirmstion Email”). (fd.)
37.  For approximetely five months after execution of the November Document, the parties

exchengied riumerous emails, texts and calls regarding various {ssués related to, infer alia, the CUP
Application, drafts of the IVA for the sale of the Property and Defendant’s cquity position in the |

| Business.

38.  Copies nt‘1'35'email'chnins-represcnting-a'flemailcnmrnuniﬁatinﬁs“ﬁxcﬁangﬂdby_Plaiut'iff

{and Defendant during the period October 24, 2016 to March 21, 2017 (the “Email €
|| were sutumitted to the Pourth Distrist Courtof Appeal as Exhibit 9 to the Petition. Sea ExhabitB p. 487

535.

2 Exhilsit B, 635-652. [ROA 47).
1 Exhibit B, p.492-493; p.494-495,
9
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39, Copies of alf text communications exchanged by Plaintiff and Defendant dwring the
period July 21, 2016 to May 8, 2017 (the “Text Communications™) were submitted to the Fourth District
Court of Appeal as Exhibit 9 to the Petitlon, See Exhibit Bp.392-421,

40.  All the Email and Text Communications prove incontrovertibly that the partieg met
sometime in J uty of 2016, negotiated for several rno;xths thereafier and their nagotiations culminated in
an oral agreement on November 2, 2016 (J{IA). Thereafter, as evidenced by their communications and
the draft agreements Plaintiff forwarded to Defendant, the parties were working to reduce the JVA to
writing until their relationship deterarated because Plaintiff intontionally attempted to deprive
Defendant of kis 10% agreed-upon equity position,

41,  The most notable Text and Emai] Communications clearly evidencing that the parties

entered int the JVA and were working 1o reduce the JVA to writing when the relationship becams
hostile inchude-the follawing; ‘

"42.  On February 27, 2017, Plaintiff sent an email to Defendant stating: “Attached is the
draft purchase of the propesty for 400k, The additional contract for thie 400k should be in today and |
will forward it to you as wal["¥* The document attactied 10 his emall was entitled: “AGREEMENT OF
PURCHASE AND SALE OF REAL PROPERTY" (the “Drafl Purchese_Agmecment')s The
introdustion {o the Draft Purchase Agreement states:

THIS AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE OF REAL
PROPERTY ("Agreement") ismade and entered into this »_dayof s
2017, by and between DARRYL COTTON, an individual rasident of San
Diego, CA {"Seller"), and 6176 FEDERAL: BLVD TRUST dated_ 2017,
or {ts assignee ("Buyer’). '

| Exhibit B, p.503 (emphas!s added)

 Exhibit B, p.501-502. fROA 237).
¥ Exhibit B, p.503-528. [ROA 2371,

10
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44, On March2, 2017, Plaintiff emailed Defendant a document entitied “SIDE
AGREEMENT" (the “Elrst Draft Side Agreement”).'S The Recitals to the Side Agreement state:

WHEREAS, the Seller and Buyer desire to enter into.2 Purchase Agreement
(the “Purchase Agreement™, dated of even date herewith, pursuantto which
the Seller shall sell to Buyer, and Buyer shall purchase from the Seller, the
property focated at 6176 Federal Blvd,, San Diego, Cslifornia 92114 (the

“Property"); and

WHEREAS, the purchase price for the Property is Faur Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($4DD 000); and

'WHEREAS, & condition to the Purchase Agreement is that Buyer and Seller
enter info this Side Agreement that addresses the terms under which Seller
shall move: his existing business located on.the Propeity.

Exhibit B, p.53 i.

46.  OnMarch 6,2017, Defondant told Plaintiff that he would be atiending & local cannabis
event at which Mrs. Austin woujd be the keynote speaker. Plaintiff texted Defendant saying he could
speak directly with Mrs, Austin at the event regarding revisions to the agreements: “Gina Austin is there
she has a-red jacket on if you wani to have a conversation Wiﬂt-her"‘ﬁ

47, Defendantwas not ahle to-meke the event, but Joe Hurtado (“Hurtado®”)— a teansaction |

adviser whom Defendant _hnd. engaged on & contingent basis to help him sell the Property to a new buyer
|1f Plaintiff breached the agreement ~ did attenid.'®

48.  Hurtado spoke.with Mrs. Austin, letting her know that Deferidant would notbe attending,
and that Defendant was concerned because the First Draft Purchase Agreement he had received did not -
contain a provision regarding Defendant's { ﬂ%-eqt__ljity interest in the Businegs,?

115 Baehibit B pszg-sss {ROAZS?]

¥ Bykibit B, pA21. [ROA 237).

| Eabibit B, p.38S, n6+13 [ROA 237),
| ™ Bxhiibit B, P39I 218 [ROA237).

11
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49,  Mrs. Austin confirmed that she was warking 1o reduce the JVA to writing ard would
farward It shortly. (*My conversation with Mrs, Austin was short, clear, direct, unambiguous and with
na possibility for misintepretation, Mrs, Austin acknowledized that she was working on the drafts for

PlaintitPs purchase of Me, Catton’s Property and that no final agreement had yet been executed.”).20

50,  The next day on March 7, 2017, Plaintiff emailed Defendant a second draft Side

Agreement (‘Lhe "Mﬁmm&sr) 2%
51,  The metadata to the Second Dmft Side Agreement reflects Mrs, Austin as the “creator”

1 and “author* of the Second Draft Side agreement, and that the decument was creatéd on March 6, 2017

(the “Mgtadata Evidepec™). z
52.  The cover email to the March 7, 2017 email Plaintiff sent {o Defendent stated:

Hi Darryl, [ have not reviewed this yet but wanted you 1o look et itand give
me your thoughts. Talking to Matt, the 10k e month might be difficuttto hit
until ¢he sixth month . . . can we do 5k, and on the seventh month start. 10k7

Exhibit B, p.541-542 (the “March Request Email”).

53,  The Reeltalsto the Second Draft Side Agreement smte

WHEREAS, the Sellér and Buyer have entered into & Purchase Agreenient
(the "Pumhase Agmment"), dated as of: apprcxinmta even date h‘ere;with

Cahfnmia 921 14 (the "Praperty"),

WHEREAS The Buyer intends to operate & licensed medical cannabis et
the property ("Business*); and

WHEREAS, in conjunction with Buyers purchase of the Property, Buysr

‘has agresd to pay Seller $400,000.00 to refinburse and otherwise
compensate Seller for Seller relocating his business located at the: Property,
ndl 16 share in certairi profits af Buyar’s fittur Rusiness

 ExhlbliB, 581, in.19-21 [mms?]

2 Exhibit B, p.543-546, [ROA 237,

U Exhibit B, p.329.

¥ Exhibit B, p.543 546 {ROA 237] {emphams sdded).

12
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| agreement for the sale of the Property with s third party (the “Tlird-Party-

O C

54.  The Second Deaft Side Agreerent proyides that Defendant would receive 10% of the niet
profits of the Business, instead of the “10% equiqr'_ﬁOsitEon" agreed upon by the parties:in the IVA and

|1 specificaily confirmed by Plaintiff in the Confirmation Email. 2

56. On March 21, 2017, afier Piaintiff'faiied to réspond to- numerous writtsn requests for
asgurarice of performance ~ f.e.; that he would honor the JVA and piovide Defendant & “10% equity
positibri” in the Business — Defendant terninated the JVA as a result of Plaintiffs breach,%

57.  After terminating the JVA on March 21, 2017, Defendant enteted into & written

58.  On March 22, 2017, Plaintiffs’ atiomey, Weinstein; émailed Defendant a copy of the
Complaint filed in this action the preceding day asserting causes of acfion for breach of contract and
specific pérformance and alleging the November Document (s the final agreement for the sale of
Defendant’s Property?” 4‘ '

59.  Defendant filed a cross-complalnt against Plaintiff and his agent/employee Rebeces -
Berry ("Berry'™). His operative Sceond Amended Crass<Complaint filed on .Augu_fs_t-:iﬁ, 2017 asserts
causes of actlon for breach of contract, intentional misrepresentation, negligent mistcpresentation, false -

promise and declaratory refief.*

60.  On Qetober 6, 2017, Defondant filed a verified Petition for Writ of Mandate pursuant to

| Code of Civil Procedire §1085 seeking an alternative writof mandate and a perem ptory-writ of mandate ‘|

:&irectingz the City to recognize Defendant as the sole spplicant with respect to Conditional Use Permit -
Application-Projeet No. 52066 the CUP on the Property (the “City Action™® |

% Buibit B, p.543-546 [ROA 237).

{# Bxhibit B, p.885 (ROA 160].

6 Bxhibit B, p,895-906 [ROA 160,

| 2 Exhibit B, p,625,10:15+17; p.626, In.6-11, [ROA 1),

3 Exhibit B, p.634-659 [ROA 471,
™ Eudibit B, p.681-691. |
13
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61.  The dispositive issue in the instant action and the City Action is whether the November
Document Is a complaetely integrated agreement.

62.  As repeatedly noted, Judge Wohlfeil has never undertakeri what should-be the “gruclal |
tkres'kgfd fnquiry fto determine] whether the parties intended their v:rriucn apreement to be fally

' ix{tegrated. [Citations.]” Brandwein v, Butler (2013) 21§ Cal.App.4th 1485, 1510 (emphasis added).

63.  Defendant has, on no less than six oecasions, three of which were in open court by
counsel and co-counsel, requested that Judge Wohlfeil please provide his reasoning for repeatedly
‘finding that the November Document is a completely inte_g_ratcd ageeement throughout the ocurse of this
litigation.’® On more than fwe occasions Defendant hes literally baggéd‘!udg_c_ Wohlfeil in writing and

arally at hearings to explain why the Confirmation Email, which Plaintiff admits he sent in 3 sworn

|| declaration, does not prove the November Document is not a completely integrated agreement.
| Specifically, he stated I BEG the Court at the hearing {0 feave articulate to me (1) wileh £

*

THE CQURT:; Good moming to each of yau two, Interestmg motion

partioularly combined with your request for Judxcml notice. Is there
anything else that yowd like to gdd?

MR, AUSTIN: Well, I would like an explanation. So Mr. Geraci, the
plaintiff in this_ case, he submitted the declaration admitting essentially
that =

“Exh!biis,p,zz In; 2i~ T 23 ln 1

Exhibit G p4, In.13-15 [ROA 128] WMGRANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES N SUPPORT OF DARRYL
COTTON'S EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR A STAY, OR, ALTERNATIVELY JUDGEMENT ON THE: PLEADINGS;
Exhibit Hp. 5 liney 57 [ROA 166] OPPOSITION TO PM[NTIFFIQRE}S&BEFEND&NTLARRY GERACI'S B

| PARTE AF‘PHC}AT{ON POR AN ORDER SHORTENING. TIME TO HEAR MOTION FOR MONETARY AND
i ESCALATING/TERMINATING SANCTIONS AGAINST DEFENDANT AND CROSS-COMPLATNANT, DARRYL

COTTON; ExhibitB, p. 1 15,

i E;dﬁbltB, p.22, In. 21+ p. 23, In. 1; Exhibit H p. 5 lines 57 [ROA 166] GFPOSITION TO PLAINTIFFACROSS-
DEFENDANT LARRY GER&C['S EX PARTE, APPLICATIONFOR AN ORDER SHORTENING TIME TO HEAR

" || MOTION FORMONETARY ANI) ESCALATING SANCTIONS

2 Exhibit B, p.1226-1227 [ROA 2531,
14
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'THE COURT: 1s the "essentially” part that 1dor't agreo with. You make
those sams comments in your paper. There's four separaic causes of
action. ..,

THE COURT: The court wasn't persuaded that even if I were gran the
request to take judicial notice of a declaration granted of a party gpponent,
it's still not dispss;ﬁve of the entlre complaint, Andihat’s what youraotion
i directed to, isn't it,

MR. AUSTIN: Well -
THE COURT; - in if's entirety?

MR, AUSTIN: Because all four causes of action are premised on.a breach
of conteact, so if thare's not an integrated contract, according to plaintift
himself, I feel thatall four causes of actions fail.

THE COURT: Not so sure if] agrae with that entire analysis. Anything
else, counscl?

MR, AUSTIN: - Well, I was just wondering if you ¢ould explain to me, if
_you believe a$ & matter of law, the theée-sentence contracts that plgintiff
claims is an iniegrated contract, If you balicva that- m acmatiy bea fully
mtegmted contract,

THE COURT: You know, we've been down this road 50 many times,
counsel, I'veexplained and reexplained the court's intdrpretation of your
posulon 1 don’t know wlmt more to say

co CﬂUNSEL. Your Honnr, it I may, I'm cowooiinsel on bshalf of
M. Cotton.  Your Henor; the only thing we really waht elarification in
the matier whethier or ot the court deerns the comiract an Integroted
cantracr ﬂr rwr;

u 'I'HE COURT: Again, we’ve addressed that in multipls-motions. Tm nof

going to go backover itagalnat this pomt in umc.
Anythmg ¢lse, counsel?

COCOUNSEL: Thatsit??

9 Bxhibit B, p. 11-15 (smphasis added).
| | 15 |
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65.  Thisis alsgatleast theg_fgh_:ggm“ Judge Wohfeil found; without explanetion, that the

| contract was in faot comipletely Integrated. *

66, Thetrangeript demonstrates Judpe Wohlfeil's exasperation with Defendant and Counsel,

jOstansably, Judge Wohlfeil's frustration arises from what he thinks is Counsel's repeated attempt to
|| challenge anadverse ruling that he has already addeessed. However, Judge Wohlfsiliy mistaken, hehas -

| never addressed the threshald and case-dispositive isgue of contract integration.

61, The fustration on Judge Wohlfeil's behalf is unjustified. Rathier, it Is Defendant who |

11 has reason ta be frustrated with the adjudic-atlon of hisoase. -COunsG!‘-diaes'thmean to be -disrespeotfut |

fﬂoﬁ have a clwundﬂmt&ndmg;ofﬁl& s_l,r_nphc;xty-of tht_s-cm _and that,hg -has .ta_ken p_mduml!_y improper
1| aetions fo the unjustified benefit of Plaintiff,

III DISEUSSION
A. PLAINTIFY FILED THIS ACTION AS PART OF A FRAUDULENT-SCHEME TO ACQUIRE AN
INTEREST IN A MARUUANA RELATED BUSINESS THAT HE IS PROHIBITED FROM OWNIRG
PURSUANT TO CITY. AND STATE LAW, |

68 Itisa matter of public cecord thet Pleintift has been senctioned for owning/managing 1

illegal dmpensaﬁes

69 Per Plaintiff’s own. ndmissions, his agent; Berry, submitted the CUP npplinauon on the |

Froperty and omitted naming him as a party withi an iriterest in the Pmpany or the: CUP.

70, Plaintiff i before Judge Wohlfeil alleging he is the nghtml awngr of the Property and |

. {the sole ow;ler of_t_ifle__CI_Ji’ ,

| 2 Exhiblt L[RCA 72}, Minute Order Dégember 7, 2017,
| Exhiblt [ROA 78], Minute Oxder enteted. Deemizcr 12,2017,

Exhibit X [ROA 129] Minuté Order March 06,2018,

| Extubitl {amwa] Minte Order cntered Janiary 25, 2018,
A1 Extinl 1

H E}d&httﬂ.pﬁlm {R{Mﬂﬂ}

1149 [ROA 192] :
OA 222) Minute Order Dated ApHl 27, 2018,

Exhibit B, p,1227[ROA 253).

"3 1t {5 of note that; though Shave ofied to only eight ihstances, there are other piaticis and hezding notreférenced hersin, Tn :

those other hiearings and. motions the sanié determinations are made, This wonld constitute a¢ leasteight instances.
16
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1 that the Novernber Docunient is the final agresment for his purchase ofthe Pm ety

viot in dispute.” Fousding Members af the Newport Beack Country Chib v Newpor
|| Ctasb, dnc (2003) Y09 Cal. App.4th 944, 954, “The crucial thr

71.. By PlaintifP's own admission, setting aside the dispute of contract infegration; he has
knowingly undertaken & course of action to unlawfully atquire. an undisclosed interest in @ marijuana
refated CUP that he is prohibited from owning because of iig history with itlegal marijuana dispensaties.
This is blatant and selfoadmitted fraud,

72.  Judgs Wolilféil has sever addressed why he i ratifying Plaintiff’s scheme by allowing |
this cese to continue wiien on undisputed facts, Plaintiff is perpetrating & fraud in vioation numeraus
City of San Diego-and Stete of California regulztory agencies,

73.  Mts. Austin is PlaintifP's attomey who i responisible forgverseeing the CUP appiication
for Plaintiff. |

74, Thus, as more fulfy described below, & third-party could reasonably entertain the notion
that Judge Wohtfeil s avoiding this issue to “protect” Mrs, Austin fioin the Jegal repercussions of
violating numerous applicable disclosure faws dnd regulations and aiding and abeﬁi;ﬁg»‘her eliextin & -

|| sehieme whose urtiawful goal is to help her client acquire # prohibited interest in a marijuana rei'a%ﬁd :

CUP. Alternatively, that Judze Wohlieif believes: Mrs Aust‘in to be oﬂﬁgai foa degree that he cannot
impartinlly review the evidence hc is presented with t.hat pmvas dhemisa

B. PURSUANTTG‘I‘HEPARDLEV.IDENCERULETHENDVEMHERBDGMNP ISNOT A
COMPLETELY INTEGRATED AGREEMENT:. - \

75.  ‘Theissue of contract integratlon is dispositive:In this matter. Plaintifffiled suitallcging

76. A ful) detailed analysis on the issue of conitract infegration 16 desoribed and argied in the
Petition filed herewith as Exhibit A at pages 43~ 5. A summarized anslysis of the-issue-of cantract

integmtion and the PER is set forth here:

77.  “Whether & contract is intéarated is & quasﬂnn of faw when theevidence of integration i |
 Beach- Country
ol threshold tnguity, ff:ﬁrqfore.- and one for

' || the conrt to:decide; is whether the parties. mfﬁde@d helr writlen agreentent to be Jully Integrared
' _é{Citatmns J"Bra '

dwein v: Butler (2013) 218 Caj, App. 4th 1485, Lﬂﬂ (emphasis added).
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78.  Generally; the application of the PER to determine whether a contrict is a complete
integratton Involves & two-step analysis:3 In the first step, the faotors to be considered include: (i) the |
language and compieteness of the written agreement;: (if) whether it contalns an integration clause;

{{if) the terms of the alleged oral agreement and whether it might contradict those. in the writing;
;(iv) whatther the oral agreement might naturslly be mede as a separate agreemient or, i other wards, if
the oral agreement were true, would it certainly have been included in the written instrument; (v) would
evidence of (he orel agreemmcnt misloed the-trier of fact; and (vi) the clrcumstances st-the tinte of the

Wriiing.g Kanno v. Marwit Capftaf Partngrs I LP,, Gfanna); I:Br:Gﬂl.App.istlﬁi;QB’? 1007, Ad:li"libnaliy,

jor by. course af-petfarmancﬁ.“ CCP‘ _§1_856(c).

79.  Application of these seven factors here leads fo onily one reasonable and incontrovertible

| | conclusion: the November Document was notrin!eﬁdéd‘tube a completely Intepeated agreement:

) The Naveriiber Dociment does not agpear ts be aﬁﬂaf agregmgnl. “Westart by asking

| whether the [November Document] Bppears on its face to be a finel expression of the parties' agreement
f| with respect to the terms included in that agreement. [Citation.]” 4. at 1007, In reviewing the -
November Document, itis readily apparent that it is not~ it is three sentences long and Is missing many

1 o ovén 4 standard real estate purchas¢ agreement, much Jess one that
ks o complicatad ﬁuﬁdiﬁan:_pmcdent requiring approval of a CUP by the. City for a business in the

;-cmerg ﬁg and. hijg'hly‘ regulate'd ma'riiuana mdustry It also ‘-h’as ‘basié- grmnmﬂr and sije’lling fistakes

“.ieng_thy, formal, _[or] de:au!ed[.]” ad. _(_iw;en its -sho.r._;-l:nglh, 1ts Iack-nt? fa ilty -xts ssmnl-.ﬁit}r.gm'
the compHeated subject matier it was intended to cover and ils grammar and spelling mistakes, these

| Eactors weigh in favor of 8 finding that the November Document does: not meet the criteria to be & |
| comn pleiaiyintegmted agreement, | '

(i)  The November Document dm- nol contain an imegmion elause. The presence of an

|| integration clause is given great weight on the issue of integration and it is “very pevsuasive, ifnot

8 Qoo Gorditingv. Elge. Dispensers Intl (1987) 190 Cal App 3d 263,270: Bmoﬂo Brast!, S.A v Ltlan, fng, £1991). 234 :
‘Cal. App.3d 973, 1001; Kanno, supra; a1 1007, :
18
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| controlling, on the jssue.” Masterson v. Sine (1968) 68 Cal2d 222, 225. Conversely, the lack of an
| integration clause, as hete, s evidence the writing is not campletely integrated, Eshensenv. Userware |

Internat, Inc. (1992) 11 Cal App.4dth 631, 638. Tbus, this factor weighs in favor of o finding the

‘November Docurent is not completely integrated.

{iiy  Theterms of the oral JVA do not contradict tlie November Document. In.detenmining

whether @ writing was intended a5 a final expression of the perties® agresment, “collateral oral

agreements” that contradict the writing cannot be considered. Banco Do Brasil, supra, st 1002-1003.
Tha fact that the November Doctment does not state it will provide for Defendant’s equity position does

not mean its silerice on the: subject is & contradiction as Plaintiff argues. As the seminal case of |

| Masterson makes clear, silence on a termn allows the introduction of extrinsic evidence to show the
|| perties intent on that matter, Mastersor, supro, at 228231,

()  The oral agreement ~ the JVA — would not have been Iucluded in the November
Document that was mepnt 16 be a receipt. ‘Where 4 “collateral” oral agreement is elieged, the court |

|| must determine whether the subject matter is such tha¢ it would “cectainly™ have been included in the
 written agreement had it actyally been agreed upon; or would “naturaliy” heve been made as 4 separate
|agreement. I, at 227, Here, the terms of the VA as alleged by Defendant are consistent with the
{ November Document and the Confirmation Emall, both of which provide:direct; undisputed evidenice |

ihiat thie Noveriiber Document was meant to be a receipt by Defendant of $16,000 to be applied toward

.t_he total apreed<upon $50,000 NRD. As the November Document was. meant to be a rezeeipt, it is
| natural that it wnuld not have all ;hc'materi'_’a_l terms reached in the JVA. Furthermore, it i nafural that
~ | the November Document was created and nqtar[ie_d a5 part of the JVA as Platntiff provided Defendant
' '_thf; $10,000 In CASH, No reasonable party would provide such a material mmount in cash without |

; ensuring adequate proof of its receipt.

(V) A fuct finder would not be misted by the admission of the Confirmation Email and

| other purol evidence, B¥idence of s collataral pral agreemenit shonfd be excluded ifit is likely o mislead.

the faet findér. Jd. ‘The caurt properly exerclses its discretion by weighing the probative value of the
extrinsic evidenos against the possibility it may mislead th’eju:e;,z-,: See Bvid. Cods §352; Brawihen v,
H &R Black, Inc. (1972) 28 Cal App3d 131, 137-138 ("{Masterson] points Gut that evidetice of the

1 B
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“oral collateral agreements shouid be excluded only when the fact finder i$ likely to be misled...." This
persits a Iimited weighing of the evidence by thié trial court for the purpase of keeping ‘incredible’
evidence  from the jury.”) (emphasis edded). Theundisputed Text ant Email Communications are clear -

and not “incredible.” Simply stated, the evidence would not mislead the fact finder and actually clearly
establish what took place = the partics were stiil reducing the JVA to-writing when the relationship
soured because Defendant confronted Plaintiff about having submitied the CUP application on the |
Property without finalizing the agreement or providing the remainder af the NRD, :
. (i) Thecircumstancas ai the time of wrlting clearly prove the parties did not intend the I_

|| Navember Document to be a completely-integrated agreement. A critical paint noted by the Kanno '_
{eourt in reaching its- decislon. was the following oral exchange: “[plaintiff] insisted that fdeferdant] |

‘pramise this to me.’ _[[;)ifef&;idantj[' pausedand then said, ‘fofkay, [plaintlff], I promise.'” Konno, stipra,

{lat 1009 (emphasls addsd), Relying heavilyon that exchange, the Kanng vonrt found that *{iJhe evidence
I supports a finding that the pnrties intended the terms of the -[nmi= ag‘mcmént]ﬁta b&:part of their [w:itte n]

1 mnﬁm‘i in writinig (1.2 (n ” pl'umlse) thata “final agreement” wnuld cohtain lus “10% equity posihun" and
| Plaintiff slearly and unawibiguously did so:“No e problem at all" Exhibi¢ B, p497.

(vii) Ph!mgj“’s course afperfannmce and cand‘unt mpla!ns the. meanfng qfrﬁe November |

|| Document~ i was-meant to be o recdpf, “The {aw. :mputes to a pBI'SDn. the mteutsou ccm.’apnndmg to |

Cal.App2d _63_9,&43. Wi_th the exception of tha_;days leti:dmg up to thc,ﬂhng;nf the uudcr.lying_ suit by |

3 Plaintiff, Plaintiff’s ‘fﬁﬁgjxagﬁ; actions, and conduct all esfleoted that he belleved that ke and Defendant |
and were Joint-venturers: (i) in response to Defendant’s March Request Email, Plantiff sont the |

Partmershlp Confirmatiori Text; (i1} in response to Defendant’s comments stating the drafts Platntiff |
forwarded did not contain his equity position, Plaintief forwarded revised drafts that did provide for
Defendant to rc:cr:iv;: :B-,]j!Ort'i'bn of the net profits (albelt, not an equity position); (iii) af the same time, |
Plaintit continued to- have the CUP spplicstion for the Property prosessed; whish, par tis own |

1 Coraplaint, wou[d require months ~ if nut yoars ~and sxgmﬁcant tmpuat Tnvestment. BuhibitB, p.623, |

In.22 - p.626, In. 1.
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80.  Inaddition, Plaintiff’s March Request Email is as danmiing as the Confirmation Email ~
Plrintiff is esking gf Defendant a concession from his establiched gbllgarion to pay $10,000 2 month. |
| Exhiblt B, p.541-542. Plaintiff’s own language offers clear additional evidence thatthere was an agreed- -
upon collateral oral agreenent not included in the-November Document: payments of $10,000 2 month.

81.  Insum, all seven factors lead to. one lrrcfutable,cnncl.usinn:r the Navember Document -

was not intended ta be a completely integrated agreement for the Property.

82,  Pursuant to the second step: the parol evidence is admissible as it haips explain and |
interpret the Nowmpe_r--Dacummt for what it was intended to be: & memorialization of Defendant’s |
receipt of $10,000 and ot the “final agrecment® Additionatly, the parol evidence {s evidence of a |

| eollaterat oral agreement = the VA, '

83.  Judge Wohlfell has never undsrtaken the above analysis.
84.  PlaintifPs argument in opposition to- the above ¢onteact integration analysis is his oral

dllegation; raised for the first time In his April 2018 Deelaration, that Defendant disavowed the equity
| intersst promised to him by Defendant in his Confimiation Email Plalntiffs oral allegation is barred
{| by the PER and the Statate of Freuds, Furtherrore, because Plaintiff was.a lloensed real estate agent for

over 25 years, he cannot claim any fornt of detrimental cellance ogarding hig-allegation that Defendant

: :crally disavowed the equity position promised to him. by Plaintiff in the Confirmation Email as thelaw
| imputes to him knowledge of the Statute of Frauds.

C. THE COURT HAS MADE FACTUALLY UN; SUPPORTED FINDINGS AND
WOLATEDWELL—ESTABLISHED RULESOFLAW.

85. Judge Wohlfeil has made various imsupported rulings anid procedurally improper orders

' 1 inthis matier. The three most egreplous rulings that demornigteate clenr error; reulthng I this vasebeing |
| prolonged to Plaintiff’s benefit and Defendant’s detriment, are: _
86,  OnJamuary 25, 2018 Judge Wohifeil denicd defendarits Wit Petifion in the City Actlon, |
’ | The City Action is premised on the same facts 89 in this action. The denial was-hased on Judge |
‘Wohlfetl's reasoninp that Defendant i not fikely to prevail because the evidenoe demonstrates that he |
has not submitted Tis own separate and competing CUP application and that he would not sustaln [
||irreparable harmi. See Exhibit L, page 3. As-to the first point regarding a new application; Judge |

21
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| Wohlfeil ignores the facts that 1) Defeadant was initially not allowed fo submit an application by the

City; and 2) onge the City did aliow him to submit a competing application, his CUP would have been
severely disadvantaged because the “first come, first sme”:natu:el of application processing by the City.

: .Tudge Wohlfell gave no further facts to support his ruling.

87.  On April 13, 2018, Defendant’s noticed motion to expunge. the Lis Pendens on the
property (“LE_Motion™) was denied, the trlal court’s minute order denying the motion makes two
faotually false statements that were the premises of its ruling, In other words, the “faets™ that the trial

court thinks are *facts™ and which justify its rulings are plainly false:

i First, “documents Defendant offers In support of the motion were crezted gffer

{ November 2, 2016;" and

i,  Second, that the contract drafis back and forth “appear to be wisuccessfil

attempts to negotiate chauges to the original agreement.”
88,  The cricial document, the Confirmation Email was created on the same day as the
November Document, only hours later,

e

89.  As previously noted the agreements back end forth never mention a renegotiation,

employment, or any other statement which wanld conclude that these gre attempts to do anything other -
|l than mernorialize an already _ggtah‘!ished agrecment, especially when coupled with the email and text

ccmmmicatioﬁs; |
90. In saddjtion to summary denfal of the MYQP on July I3, 2018, the Coutt also dented |

.Bafendant’s Request for Judicial Notice of PlaintitP's declaration, There are three critical Issues that |

are raised by the trial court’s improper dental of Defendant’s Request for Judicial Notice of Plaintiff's |

evidence and arguments presented hercin, provide the basls that could reasonably lead a third-party to

believe the tirial court was not acting impartially:
First, the trial court stated “even if [ were to. grant the request toxtak#-'jzudii:la] notice of a

| declaration.."®® Respectfully, the trial court daes not have the discretion-to deny taking judicial notice

o s, p1148-1145 [‘RDA 192]

SEExhibitH, p. 11615
22
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of the declaration. As clearly stated by the appeliate court fn Four Star Eleciric, Inc, v. F & H

1 Construction (1992) 7 Cal.App.4th 1375, 1379: “[Defendant] requested the trial court to take judicial

notice of pertinent portions of court files in the prior actions, The trial court was raqulired to do s0
upon request (Evid. Code, § 452, subd. (d), 453)[.]" Id. £ 1379 (emphasis added). Counsel cited Four
Star in his Reply and proved that he mét the requirements pursuant to CCP §§ 45% and 453, Thus,

though the trial court was not requited to take &5 true the matters asserted within the declaration, it was ‘

required to take notice of the declaration itself and, in accordance with the law, anglyze the statements

: _the:l‘ﬂiil'_l. Itdid nat,
Secand, the trial sourt’s refusal to take judicial notice appears to be based on 4 hearsay ohjection -

(given the trisl court’s reference to “party oppanents™ and prior rutings). This position is error because

the declaration in question is a fudivfal sdmission and does not constitute hearsay. Huowever, assuming.

the concept of hearsay did apply, the trial court’s ruling would still be Incorrect because:

(i) the statement does not need to be ,t.akén Forits truth; and

(ii) there arc several clear exceptions to the hearsay rule that would pply if the concept of

hearsay. were applicable.®! The exceptions include:

8, Thecrugial “statement” inthis.cass is the Confirmation Email that

1 states: “o, no problem at &l The trial court did not need to take the statement for the (ruth asserted

therein, that it fact his conﬁ-qnatiun would be “no problém;:’ but rather it should have: taken judicial

actlee that the statement was made, making it a judiciel admission and putting the.onus on Plaintiffto | -
| provide an explanation that is not “inherently incredible.” In fact, the triaf coutt has broad dlseretion to
simply disregard tsstimonythat is “inherently incredible™ even ifthere_’is no adverse testimonytocombat

{ the statement; S . e

b, in the hearsay construct, the statement can. be used solely as

_ :unpeachmant evidence, nga;n not offered for its truth, but rather to show that PlalntifPs Coniplaint is

contradicted by his declaration; and

41® Cuuusel notes that in g pnarmtmg. speifi nally i the trial courts tentative ruling [ROA 1911, it sustained Plaistiils

objcﬁt:ons 1o request for Judicial notice which was made primiarily on hearsay grounds,
¥ See California Evidence Code § 1200 ef seg.
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e. the statement is clearly an admission by a pﬁar:ty apponent and/or

Document is a completely integrated a-greement.“'

T_hi;j,- the trial court stated it “wasn’t persuaded that even if T were grant the request to take
wmmmt”" This is cicarly inigorrect and Counsel cannot ;u_ndqrst_and -what_ Jine af-jrejasnning-.the trial
court undertook to reach such a conclusion. Plaintiff brought forth fnurpa‘usw-ofaction,‘“ threeofthem
are derivative and anty exist if the primary canse of action for breach of contyact is valid, As acgued -
above, and further elaborated upon in the Writ Petition, without the breach of contract cause of action,

| Plaintiff’s remaining three causes of action necessarily fail:

(i) “The essence of the imptied covenant of good faith ... is that * “neither party will do
anything which injures the right of the other to receive the b:n:ﬁts-'af‘tha-agrggmpnt_’;”’ (eltations].”
Cammercial Union Assteance Campenies v. Safeway Stores, Inc., 26 Cal.3d 912, 918, Here, the
agreement that Plaintif¥ premises his cause of action for breach of the 'impl'ied cayenant of good faith - i
and fair dealing is shown to be a recsipt. The reality i4 that Plaintiff & the one who violated the’ |
implied eovenant of good fuith and fair dealing by ﬂlin,g_'an-_d ‘maintaining this lawsuit fraudulently
mispeesenting a woeiptas o final agreement. Simply siated, there firat needs 1o be a valid agreement
and Plaintiff's alleged agreement - the November. Document isnot, Ergo, there cannat be ahrench
of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dsa!ing. .

(i) “To qualify for declaratory celief, [n party] wouid have ‘to demonstmte its action .

cantraversy involving Justiciable questions relating o [the party”s] rights or-obligations2 Jolley-v.— ;

presented two' essential clements: (1) = proper subject of declarstory calief, and () s sctat f

Chase Homic Fm, LLC (2013) 213 Cal. App dth 872, 909, Here, the' "proper subject" of dec!aratory

as wgli.as.-of-tlm rlghts,-_dunes, and obligat:ons of'-pl_ainhft:' GERACI andadefendants;n_therqunder- in |

a7 | @ ggp California Evidence Code § 1200 ¢, seq.

PExhibit B, p, 12 In 21-24 (emphasis added).

SEhibiL D, p624-690 [ROA 1] (Chuse of Actior n Plasifi's complatniays: Breach: of Contraet, Jmplied Covenant of
Good Palth, Specific Peri‘omrmm, and Declaratory velisf) i

4
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action 1s predicated npon Plaintiff “proving the elemsnts of a standard breach :of-cpnlx‘-aciﬁ'“ ‘which he

| cannot do as the November Document is net a contract, fd. Thus, Counsel is unclesrhow this cause of

{inot & cnmptetei}r integrated ngreamnt; such a fi nding,- ofi these: t*a"ots ‘would prove that Plaintif

| incorcect and [aws that are not applicabie and/or are miss pplied.

2

# Exhibit B, p.629, In. 15

O O

connection with the purchase and sale of the PROPERTY by COTTON to GERACI or his
assignee* In other words Plainti"s request for declaratory refief is predicated on the allegation
that the November Document i§ a purchase agreement for the sale ofthe Property, As proven above,
itisnot. Itis areceipt. Therefore, Counsel fails to understand how this cause of action would survive,
{ii)  “Toobtain specific performance, a plaintiff mast make several showings, in addition to
proving the efements of a stundard breach of contract.” Darbun Emm;::‘.‘sgs,.fna, v, San Fernondyg Cmiy.
Hosp. (2015) 239 Cal. App. 4th 399, 409, Again, as with the two causes of action above, this cause of |

action can survive if the teial were to adjudicate, pursuant to the PER, that the November Document is

(i court’s rulings referenced above are pt‘edtqated on what the tr-mt_.e_om believes t6-be- _fgg;s_;hat are |

91, To summarize, and to be absolutely clear'on this point, when the trisl court denied
Defendant's MIOP, the trial court implicitly found the follomng factualaliegm:ons by Plaintiff o NOT

bo “inherently incredible.” Or, in other words, this, :
Emoll and the trial court find ;fflei aHawIn ra_be_credibte

) Wifﬁin Rours of the partles fi nahzing their agreement on November 2, 2016, Defendant

sent an émail to Plaintiff’ pretending that the JVA had been reached and in which Defendant was |

already promised a very sﬁéciﬂ(’: “10% equity position;” -

(i) Plaintiff to. have_mistakenly_confirned. I wlting, st Defendant's specific sequest for |

writtan confirmation, Defendant’s pretend equity pusftion:within hours of the November Decument - |

‘being executed

(ilY Plamtifs, a ficénsed Real Estate Agant(at the tiine) forover 25 years,to liave never sought
in any manner to document the fact that he mistakenly sent the Confirmation Erall despite knowing
its legal i’nipbrt. under the Statute of Frauds; |

i i —_WHW_EQ_ TFeT Lo foV i fis BEiT-
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that & judge entertaing. & peneral belief in the honesty of .spmaone he-,kmw_s is neither unusual Aor

O .

(iv) for Plaintiff to have realized, over 2 year afier filing suit, that he shouid raise the Oral |
Disavowment; and

(v) that Plaintiff did so, coincidentally, in response to Defendant's motion citing, for the first
time, Riverisland and Tenzer preventing Plaintiff from using the PER as a shield to bar parol evidence
that s proof of his own fraud. (Tenzer v. Superscope, Jnc, (1985) 39 Cal:3d18; Riverisland Cold
Storage, Jnc. v, Fresno-tadera Production Credit.dss'n (2013) 55 Calidth 1169).

D. DISQUALYFICATION FOR CAUSE
92,  There gretwooftgn-cited cases thatset forth thc standard and analysis that mandate Judge.

| .thlfcﬂ’s recusal per this Statement:

8)  First, in Hallv, Harker (Hall) (1999) 69 Cal.App.4th 836, a malicious prosecution case |

|1 was subject o reversal when the trial judge _ﬂ:vcalndin!ear bias regarding defendant’s pmfessiun, i€,

that attomeys tend to initiate and chum litigation for finangial gain, regardless of merits of the case or -

|l damage to defendant, and then made credibility determinations against defendanton a probable cause |
11 issue that was central to the. case. Jd. at 843: (“Whether--[attom‘eﬂ i’n'-tiated?[pafty’é] cros.is—ddmplaint 1

case against ki, [At:p-mcy],_: qf_' ooutse; mmntmmd e balieve:_l 'his-: clf:mt‘a yersion ,of the facts and |
p'res_ented evidence to support the reasonablencss of thet belief, The irinl judge however, made |
credibility findings that rejected [Attomey’s] story and that of his supporting witnesses. Il difffcult |

| to imagine a mare divect connection between the judge’s expressed bigs and the gravamen of the case ..
|| before him.) (ernphasis added).

) "Here,' even more egi’egiaus than Haﬂ, Iu'c'igﬁ 'Wﬁhlfeii has -eensist&ntiy-, and withoat ever“‘

-Qinta g factual drspute'- and then (nj made credibxhty detenmnatmn& aof the evidence on the cnse=-
;dsstposmve Issue against Defendant withouit any ev:dennary support (in sor nstances, in direct and

:unex ;iamsdcan&adieﬁon of undisputed ev:dance and contio limg case law).

{b)  Second, i Rohr v, Johnsan (1944 65 Cal.App.:ad 208 the court stated; “The mere faet
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indicetes that ho kas such s fixed opinfon as to impair his ability to weigh eny evidence Involving the |
acts of that persan.” Id. at 211 (emphasis added). In.Rohr, the court did not find thet the trial judge was

{ biased, noting “[i]t does not kere ﬂppear- that there was any canflict between the testimony produced by
the respective parties or that the judge was in any way called upon to decide which of two sets of

witnesses was felling the truth, At best, any stlowing: of bias is not strong, and it is very questionabie

whether the showitig thus made could b held sufficient to show the existence of bias,” M.
Here, application of the principlés articulated in Rokr mandate recusal of Judge Wohlfeil |
because: | | |
i Judge Wahifeil’s belief in the honesty of Weinstein and Mts, Austin is

| not “general* as in Rohr because whether this action Was specificatly filed and/or maintained by them
lasa malieigus prosecution Bction goes straight to the issue of the honesty, 'i'n'legﬂty-andf:crcdibility of

‘Weinstein and Mrs;, Austin,  Judge Wohifeil*s “fixed apluian?’-'-: that Weinstein and Mrs, Austin are
incapable of acting unethicully by filing/maintaining 8 Iawsult lacking probable cause - prejudices

| Defendant because it daes not even allow for the possibility that this case was filed for the purpose of

coercing Defendent into settling with Plaintiff without regard to the merits of Plaintiff’s Complaint.

| Judge Woh!feif’s fixed opinion is causing ireparable herm. to Defendant by forging. fim to- endure the -|

‘hardships:of 8 meritless litigation action, This, whether inadvertent or unintentional, has farther sided

| Plaintiff and his counsel in theiruntawful scheme to prevail via a miliclous prosecution astion,

i, The representations and factual ussertions GEMs. Austin tothe triakcourt; |-

{}in her advosacy of Plaintiff"s righit to cqntmt-nver-thé?faparﬁyg havebeen that the November Documeitt—

= executodon gggmggg 2, 20;§ - is'a completely integrated agreement for the sale of the Property The -
declaration of Hurtado, s-former-practicing-utiomey-in-the-Stato-of- New-York-a
Judiclal law clerk, declares that on March 6 2017, Mrs. Austig direetly énd unam’olguuudy statad that

the November Docutnent is ugf & completely integrated agreement for the sale. of the Prupeny
1{Hurtado® stastrmqny direetly contradiots Mrs. Austin®s l‘aclual represematmns to this court: one of these
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| Rohe, “here [it does) appear that there [i§ a] confiiet bstween the testimony produced by the respective

perties [and) that the judge fhas been) called upon fo decide which of two sets of witnesses was telling
the trath.” 4, However, Judge Wohlfeil’s fixed opinion that Mrs, Austin is insapable of acting
wiethically (i.e., lying), on thie vhreshold and case-disposifive issue, dirsctly and self-evidently

prejudices Defendant s it Is serving to foree him to continue in a litipation matter that is-grinding him -

| down financially, physioally and mentally; thereby serving to coerce him fnto settling 2 meritlessaction.

03.  Summarized, Counsel’s position s that it can appear that Judge Wohlfsil's fixed opinion

meke unmeried credibility determinations regarding evidence against Defendant because of his

personal relationship Wi Weinsteln end Mis, Austin, I the pure question of law — whether the
November Document is a completely integrated contract - were appropristely analyzed viathe PER and |
wellsetdled case law, ther Weinstein and Mrs. Austin would beopen to & eause of ection formalicious |
| prosecution. pursuant to Casa Herrera, Inc. v B'cydaun (2004}32 Cal4th 336, 349 {*we hold that u

terminations based on the PER are favorable for r_ng]lc.ious:prosecuﬁon-purpom.“).

94,  In otlier words, if Judge Wohifeil hes (i) incotrectly turned a legal dispute into a factual
dispute and (i) made rulings that are ﬁeither supported by facts nor law, then a “person aware of the
facts might réasonably entertain a: doubt that the judpe would be able to be impartial? (CGP
§170. 1(&)(6)(A)(iil)) because It can reasonably eppear that Judge Wohliil is using his position.as a

§ 170.1 @)(6)(B)).
95 Analtemanvw&aary;ﬁmta-th@%muldmnahi entertain, 18 tha

Defendant and frusts that Weinstein/Mrs. Austin are ethicel and wonld be bounded in their arguments

based on facts, 1fsuch is the case, Judge Wohliefl has-mude-a-serfous mistske; based- on—zmdrspmd
lievidence and'the PER, it s clear thal_: ‘Weinstein ind Mrs, Austin have made factunl representations and

and/or bias has led him to improperly tum a pure question:oflﬁw into & factual dispuie, so he cen then

Officer of the Court to “protect” his “fiends® = Welnstein-and/or-Mrs-Austin——from- a—malxelaus—-
prosecution action because he has a favorable “[b]_z_as «. toward a lawyer in the .pmcﬂedmg’,’ (cCP -

i5 simply ovét-byrdened and assumed that this mattec could not be as simple as: desﬁnbed by Dafendnnt :
(ie., onc email dispositively proves that Plaintiff is rr_qmmxttmg; fraud and Webnstein/Mrs, Austin |
brought forth a malicious prosecytion aetion), Thus, Judge Wohifell simply ignores the submissions by |

e SRS OF DISGOATICA TN PURSURN T O e AT RN e PSR
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argiinents they know to be false, While it is impossible for Counsel to truly understand the motives for
Judge Wohlfei I's rulings, being intimately familiar with every pieoe of avidence in this action, it is clear
Judge Wohlifeil has been remiss in his duties.

96.  Thus, whatever the reason, in the interest of justice, Judge Wohlfeil should immediately
recuse himself from any further actions in this matter. At this point, even if Judge Wohlfeil were tonow - o

understand the sheer simplicity of the evidence and facts at issue here, the objective standard has been

met. Furthermore, Defendant should not be put in 4 position in which be “hapes™ that throughout the
| remainder of the litigation Judge Wohifeil would bo capable of being impartial, On that note, assuming
there are future adverse rulings to Defendant, they would be overshadowed by the specter that Judge |
Wohifeil was ruling in retaliation for Counseél having: brought forth this Statement Seeking his “
|l disquatification in defanse of his client’s fights.

D.  TawsPETITION (STATEMENT OF DISQUALIFICATION) IS TIMELY'
| 97, - CCP §110:3(c)(1) providss thatw “[Staterment of Disqualification] shall be presented-at -

the enrliest practicable opportunity afier diécqve;;f of the facts constiluting the ground for
disqualification.”” In light of the facts and citdumstances set fq:th,bélow, the. t-imﬁii_n_s_;sss.nfﬁounse!"s
presentation of this Statement is statutorily complaint and consistent with relevant controlling case law.

98.  As discugsed above, Counsel first n]'ipear&'l in this case to represent Defendant on a

{{ limited scope for the sole putpose of drafting; filing-and argumg the LP Motion-atid the related-exparte—{

application fited in April- 2018 Thewaﬁarﬁanmaimmmwafmﬁa

89.  The trial court’s order denying Defendants LP Motion made numerous factually |-
Inaccurate and unsuppnﬁ'cd'statﬂnenm;- The trial caurt%]ld‘.v_ed thiat moﬁort to be 'heard on shortened |

time biut. damedﬂgfendant«theaoppemm)amnﬁ saseplyand poin

| papers. Counsel hoped it was simply a single instance of mistake by tha ttia) court and that he. could |

address the fssue again in a subsequent motion,

100.  On Aprll 27,2018, Counsel became attorney of record and represented Defendant on his |
1 Receiver Application on June 14, 2018, The trial court again stimmarily denied the relief requested,
impliedly finding the Navemiber Doctiment is a completely integrated-agreement,  But, agaif, because

29
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'{mtcrpretatwn of your position, I don't know what more to say,” and {Ii) “we'

information fror the August2, 2018 hearing wiere & cont ]
granted, Counsel dedieated substantial amount of time. to dratting & Jengthy Petition for Wit in this |

{ it was an ex parte gpplication, the issus of contract integration way not fully briefed (and never had bess—| ——

prior to then), .
10].  On June 20, 2018, Counsel filed the MIOP which filly briefed the issue of contract
integration for the first time, Judge Wohlfeil issued a tentative ruling denying the MIOP on July 12,

2018. Atthe hearing on July 13, 2018 before this court, Counsel and co-counsel attempled to focus on

the sole, dispositive issue of contract Integration: specifically, that the Novernber Document is not a -
completely integrated agreement. “Your Honor, the anly thing we really want clarification in the -

{| matter whether or not the couet deems the contract an integrated contract ar not’™* Judge Wohlfeil, in

an exasperated demearior that comes across in the transcript from the hearing, stated: (i) “You know, -

we've beer down this read so meny times, counsel. I'vé gxplained and reexplained the couet’s |
g’'ve ‘addressed that in |

| multiple motions. 1'm not going togo back over it again at this point intime>*

102, Judgs Wohlfell, dgain, hes NEVER sddressed the threshold and éase-dispositive fssug of | - —== =

contract intégration. And it did not become apparent to Counsel, until the July 13, 2018 hearing that }
Judge Woh}feil could reasonsbly appear to be _évdiding,;ﬂ;:_- issue of contract Intagration. |

103.  Asga practical matter, it is noteworthy that, immediately following Counse!'s discovery

|| of Judge Wohlfeil's fixed opittion svidenced in bis suling on the MIQP, Counsel was preparing for trial,
|| deafting other filings in this matter while sitaultaneously preparing this statettigrit which now includes |

HHARCE OF The AUgust 17, |

Fy

ratter with the Court of Appeals which was filed on August 30,2018,

& irfal was

104, Additionally,-Cour

23 ||
jap;_:ea! or his appcai would _be- iost.for_ever‘ This patition is currcn:tly undcr:review _wlth-the Cahfam?a :

24
25
26

28

Supremie Court, Counsel I8 primarily a criminal defenss attorney and therefore spends much of the |

regular business day in court and his only opportunity to research tind draft what are novel éivil law

45 Exhiblt B, n. 13; in. 19-21 (ernphns!s added).
A6 1 b o, 12-15 In. 2224
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i mustne migec at e par LESE redgSondoie Ope ity GUEL LS Aty becomesaware o the disqualifvine

{}issues, to him, take place in the evening and on weekends. As anexample; this Statement also réquired '-

substantial fime {o research, draft and prepare for filing as Counsel has neverhad to address the process.

11 for seeking the disqualification of a judge. Thus, this Statement is being provided at the cartiest time

p_raz:ticgi given Counsel’s other time sensitive obligations,
105. In Christie v. City of Kl Centro the trial-court set-aside-a-nonsuit-and dismissal-in-favor—|

| of the city and its: police department. The trigl court granted a new trial after finding that the previous
| judge who granted the nonsuit was disqualified. Tt held thatas & matter of law tie judge was disqualified
|at the moment he had & conversation with & previously disqualified judge in the same matter, Having
| Found the judge wha granted nonsuit disqualified to rule on- the maiter, the: frial court set aside the

resulting dismissal. The Court of Appeal affirmed that determination, emphasizing in its opinjon that

| “disqualification vccurs-when the facts creating disqualification: a‘a-‘is_g,-?-m‘rwﬁen—-—--dt;q;mly:‘mﬁm s

established™ Chrisile v. CHy of El Centro (2006) 135 Cal.App.4th 767, 776 (emphasis edded) (citing

| Fatum v, Southern Pacific: Co: (IQ&I}ZS 0 Cal. App. 2d 40, 43; Uriasv. Harris Farms, Jno. (1991)234

Cal, App. 3d 4135, 422-427. , _
106. Here, it was not until gfter Counsel had fully briefed the motlon {n the MJOP and Judge .
Wahlfeil incorrectly and in a frustrated manner stated he hed already addressed the threshold and case- |

i dispositive issue of contractzintegi'aﬁon,_ thet Counse! became aware of the “fhets® {f.e.; Judge Wohlfeil's :

fixed opinion/bias) ghving tise to this Statement. Counsel, now, respectfully submits this Statement at
discovering the ficts constituting the ground for disqualifieation.”’; North Beverly Park Hovieawners -
Ass'nv, Blsno (2007) 147 Cal. App.4th 762, te’hrg denied, rvw. denied (“The issue of dlsqualification |

£5

facts.”).
| V. CONCLUSION |
A court Is not required to determing whethier there is actual bius. As nioted, the objestive testis

|| whethier a reasonable member of the public at large, aware of ail the facts, would falcly entertain doubts |
|as to the judge’s impactiality. See Christie v, City of Ei Contro (2006) 135 Ca). App. 4th 767, 776; -
|| Housirig duthority of the County of Monterey v. Jores (2005) 130 Cal. App. 4th 1029, 1041=1042;
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V| Briggs v. Superior Court (2001) 87 Cal, App. 4th 312, 318-319; Ngv Supérior Court (1997) 52 Cal.

{lregulations when they omitied Plaintiff’s name as a party who liag an intérest in the Propecty and the :
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{ November Dacument is iot a completely integrated agreement.
Fourth, Judge Wohlfkll has, on no less than gighe occasions; implféﬁly and/or directly foundthat | - —
|| the November Document is.a completely integrated agreeﬁwnt'.
Fifth, Judge Wohlfeil-has nover provided-his legat reasoning forwhy” th&"‘ContTﬁ‘naﬁﬁn“Em’aﬂ B
| pursuant to contract Interpretation laws and well-sottled case Jaw, does not disprove PlaintifPs

}ns ceasoning for finding that the November Document is a completely mtegmted Hpree

“{| than wa gecnsions Defeadant has Hierally begged Ju‘.dgc Wohlfell fn m‘ilirrg andl Grally at hesrings to
.-;cxplam why-the Confirmation Enmail-does mot prove 1 ‘
integrated agreement, Seq, &.g., (T BEG the C.‘ourr *’)‘”
Seveitth, some of the purpnrtéd “facts™ referenced by ]udge Waohlfell in support of his rulmgs

. -

App. 4h 1010, 1024
Cunlatively; the facts and cases referenced above clearly meet this objective standard:
First; Plaintiff and his agents knowingly violated numerous City and State diselosure laws and

CuUp;
Second, the case-dispositive igsue Is whetlier the November Document is a completely integrated-
agreement. ]

contention that the November Document is 8 completely integrated agreement.
Sixth, Defendanthas, on no jess than gixa coasions, requestod that Judge Wohlfell please provide

sment: On mare

Third, the Confirmation Email and 6th_§r parol avidence is undisputed evidence that the |

|evidence prcvzded by Plaintiff and Defendant directiy contradict the factual ﬁndim upon which Judge
Wohlfeil premised his rufings.

|and/or maintatning a malicious prosecution action.

E.vghr, Judge Wohlfeil has stated, #nd the record in this action makes nutnerous references to, |
that he does not persanally befieve Weinstein and Mrs, Austin are capable of actingunethically by filing

MExtibic B, p. 22, In. 20<p, 23, In. 1

OCUTIENT 15 1ot a-complerely |
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Ninth, it is possible thatthis case was fifed end/or maintained without probable cause (e, could

——

| be a malicious prosecution action). '

Tenth, if this case was filed and/or maintained without probable cause, then that means that
| Weinstein and Mrs, Austin potentially acted unethicaily. |
Etzventh, the declaration of Hurtado declares that Mrs. Austin knows her representations to this
court are false, which {5 to say that she is mﬁng unethically {i.e., arguing the November Document,
| cxecyted in November of 2016, is a-mmplamly;nmgmmd agreement when she was working on the
actual final agresments to effectuate the sale in March of 2017) . Tudge WohlfeiP’s expressed opinion '.
that counsel for Plaintiff would not act uncthically is clearly “fixed” in light of the faots presented here

m e ~F @ W A W R

10 |!and highly prejudicial to Defendant.

I Twelfth, by allowing this matter-© continue, Judgs Wohlfeil has ratified Plaintiff’s aftempt to

12 i} pursue an interest in the Property and by extension the CUP ‘even though Plaintiff cannot legally own

* 13 |1 an interest in a-Marijuena-Outlet under-state-law. - A i R g B Y i

14 Thirteen, it Tudge Wohlfeil had addressed the theeshold jgsue of sontract intégration. and,apphed :

15 || PER properly; the anly fogical conclusion is that the Gonf' jrmation Email (admitted to in Plaintiffs 3

16 |[sworn declaration) prove the November Document is not a completely integrated agreement. The

{7 || consequence of such a ruling would be that Weinsteln and Mrs. Austin would: be open ta ¢ cause of |

e 18 | getion for malicious progeoution, See Case Hervera; fne. v Beydoun (2004) 32 Cal 4th 336, 349 (*[W]e-{. .. ...
s 1o W Hold - that-terminations-based-on-the-paroi-evidence-rule-are=favorable=for—malicious=proseortioN =l
20 || purposes. ”) 1

it gzl appe!la&&nuﬁnsua al court’s factusl and sredibility findines: [Gitat _
23 ||this time-honared standard of review is the assumption that such ﬁndmgs were made faitly and.
24 || impartially.” Hail v Harker (1999) 69 Cal.App.4th 836, _34.1,__ Hete, if nothing else, whether there exists
25 || prejudice or not, Judgs Wohlfeil has repeatedly and Inexplicably (1) avoided addressing the obvious

24 i fraudulent scheme that Plaintif¥ is engaged in via his agents in seeking to acquite a marijuana related -
27 CUP that he is prohibited from awning by law; (ii) falsely stated thet he has addressed the thresheld | -
g || issue of contract integration when in fiot he has not and has systemically refused to do 56 for-overa |

33
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{| year; and (iii) gotten procedural and material case-dispositive faots wrong that, toupled with his

| comments as to the cthics of Weinstein and Mrs, Austin, make it impossible for a third-party to believe
| that Judge Wohlfeil ean be Impartisl. Recusal is mandated.

not believe Judge Wohifeil has intended to specifically .ha_mi lj.efcnd'ant;,but, his actlons are unjustified

tracks and taking sctions to unjustly mitigate their liability to Defendant. That Judge WohlfetPs

| hyperbole ts why Counsel is gompelled to ﬁﬁ'n_g forth this Staternent in defense of his client's rights..

Counsel: respectfully notes that he is at a foss to understand Judge Wohblfei!’s actions, He does

and are resulting in severe prejudice to Defendant. Plaintiffand bis attorneys are intelligent individuals |

who, a3 a vesult of Judge Wohifeil’s actions, had and continuc to have the Tuxury of covering up their

bias/fixed-opinion leads hkim to belicve the preceding sentence is unfounded or some form of litigation- |
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VL. YERIFICATION
i, Jacob. P. Austin, hereby declars under penalty of perjury that Y drafted and have read the .

lforegoing Verified Staterent, and the facts stated herein are true and correct based upon my direct first-

hand personal knowledge and information which I obtained through my review of the pleadings and -

| documents filed in this matter on-September 12, 2018,

| y
DATED:  September 12,2018 | | / ol [k
}J’ACOBP AUSTIN

VERIFIED‘ STBTEMENT OF D[SQUAL[FICA'HON PUBSUMT 'I‘D L =i H‘?ﬁ.l(ﬂ](ﬂ(ﬁ){ﬁl} AND C-CI’ 5310.2(&}(5}[3}




Gmail - Re; Geraci v Cotfon

12/9/2019 (/_\ (\

Gm@ii Darryl Cotton <indagrodarryl@gmail.com>

'Re: Geraci v Cott.t.).n -

Darryl Cotton <indagredarryi@gmaii.com> Sat, Sep 7, 2019 at 5:36 PM
To: "David S. Demian" <ddemian@ftblaw.com>

Cc: "Adam C. Witt" <awitt@ftblaw.com>, pfinch@ftblaw.com, "Rishi S. Bhatt" <rbhatt@ftblaw.com>,
Ken.Feldman@lewisbrisbois.com

David,

It's been almost 2 weeks since my email requesting an FTB billing statement from you and I've heard nothing back. |
guess you're choosing to ignore me. The only reason | can think for that is because you know what you and others at
FTB did to me to sabotage my case against Geraci was illegal and your failure to provide me with billing statements that
you say is money | owe you, will be perceived as not wanting to confirm your illegal actions. Now that the trial is over |
am going to prove you conspired with Geraci's attorney Weinstein to sabotage my case when you purposefully dropped
the allegations that Geraci cannot own a CUP as a matter of law. Attached is Exhibit 1. You also tried to make it
appear that | told you that Geraci was my agent, good thing that Hurtado shut you down in those emails!

So now you have two choices - send me my updated invoice and affirm that ybu are requesting those funds from me and
are standing by your original amendments to my complaint. Or, you can choose to continue to ignare me. If you don't
provide my billing statements and affirm your position that you did not conspired against your own client, then just ignore
me. : : :

Adam, you told me you were not going to make partner and now you are. Is this the payoff for fucking over your own
client and staying quite? You were the one that told me that FTB had a shared client with Geraci. David never
disclosed that! You are just as much a piece of shit like David and his partner and your firm.

Rishi, your-name is on this; you know that you have an affirmative ethical obligation to inform the court of crimes that
have been committed. Is FTB going to guarantee your career for the rest of your life? Your interests are NOT aligned
with this firm. This will be your only opportunity to not be named in federal court as a co-conspirator in a conspiracy that
has threatened innocent families and children and used violence to prevent parties from testifying. BUT-FOR FTB's
amendments and dropping the conspiracy charges against Geraci and Berry, and the allegations that Geraci cannot own
a CUP because of his previous illegal marijuana activity, [ would not have appeared to be a "conspiracy nut.” A term
that your nationally recognized powerhouse firm Lewis Brisbois who you hired to represent you in your sham federal
response. : ‘ S :

it was not just any firm or lawyer you hired to represent you, no it was Attorney Kenneth C. Feldman, who is a certified
specialist in legal malpractice law, is Chair of the CA State Bar Legal Malpractice Law Advisory Commission AND
the author of the CA Legal Malpractice and Malicious Prosecution Liability Handbook! Rishi your firm hired Mr.
Feldman BECAUSE he leads a Malicious Prosecution team and lectures Federal Judges on Ethics. You knew you
couidn't afford to lose this case and you used the big firm guns to attempt to hide your illegal activities. | can only believe
that Mr. Feldman, in his representation and response may have not fully appreciated that, as a matter of law, the 11/02/16
document is not a contract and that Geraci, under B&P 26057 could not enter into a contract that awarded cannabis
licensing. Read the FUCKING B&P code! This was a sham pleading! : :

Now maybe maybe Rishi and Ken were not fully apprised of the situation, although based on their credentials | find that
hard to believe, but as of this email they can no longer make that claim. Before anyone reading this decides on how to
respond to this email, if choose to at all, the first thing that | would ask of them is to get familiar with the December 2017
emails you had sent to both me and Hurtado. - There was NEVER a MISUNDERSTANDING between us David. | never
authorized the removal of Berry from my complaint and Geraci was NEVER an agent! Now with the benefit of
hindsight and those emails | can see with absolute crystal clear vision that you were working with Geraci's Attorney
Weinstein since day one to undermine my case. -

Next | would ask you to visit my website @ 151 Farmers The Canna-Greed Story and drop down to section 11 and 11.1
in particular. There you will see the entire case laid out with links to the court filings. While'this court got it wrong by
letting this go to a jury trial whereby they Judge Wohifeil left the jury to determine a matter of law, my new lawyers are
preparing for a New Trial and the Notice of Intent has been fited.

So here is what | would like from both Rishi and Feldman. You should let Judge Wohifeil know what has happened to me
in this case and how there has been a miscarriage of justice. If not ! have to believe that there is no way that Feldman did

https:llmail.goog!e.comlmail!uﬁ ?i_k=505cbc':f‘{3f&view= pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-a% 3Ar-34607471031529804 35&simpl=msg-a%3Ar-34607471...  1/3
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not know | was a victim of a sham 1. _ation, but he too allowed for it to be perpel{/-\:d. | am attaching his biography
because | refuse to believe he did not know that Geraci filed suit to enforce an illegal contract and FTB acted either
fraudulently or at least were professionally negligent. If Feldman doesn't take corrective action now then | must conclude
that when he filed his sham motion in federal court, it served to deny me access to the courts and he too KNEW | was the
victim of an ongoing conspiracy.

| am telling ail of you now that innocent individuals have had their lives threatened and there are muitiple families and
individuals who are going through severe emotional and financial harm because of what has happened. DO NOT LATER
CLAIM ANY OF YOU WERE NOT MADE AWARE OF THE CONSEQUENCES OF YOUR ACTIONS!

David, | am going to make sure you, your firm, and everyone who touched this is exposed for the greedy, unethical
individuals criminals that you are. | have all the proof | need unless David and Rishi decide to provide false testimony that
provides support for the alleged "miscommunication” in which | said that Geraci was my agent. Complete and utter
buiishit. Hurtado was an idiot for thinking you guys were the right firm to represent me. You knew exactly what you were
doing and we trusted you. Hurtado coutd not fathom that our attorneys would conspire with opposing counsel to sabotage
their own case. You guys are going to make the record books!

But, because Geracl was greedy and decided to get reimbursed for Mcelfresh's services at my trial, | can now go to
Judge Curiel. McElfresh, same as you, KNOWS that Geraci could not legally own a marijuana CUP. her appeal for Geraci
was a sham. She referred us to you. And you amended my complaint twice, each time taking out the causes of
action and allegations that prevented me from trial.

Lastly, David don't think | won't mention your sick pedophile joke when we saw that young girt in your lobby at FTB
through the glass office meeting room we were in. Both Joe and | were there when you said it. A scumbag like you that
screws over his own clients is exactly the sick type of fuck that makes pedophile jokes and thinks its ok to break the law.

Adam and Rishi, you have until Friday to submit something to Judge Curiel explaining that you had nothing to do with the
amendments to my pro se complaint and that you never heard me tell David that Geraci was my agent. If you do not, | will
name you both in my updated Complaint. DO NOT LATER CLAIM THAT YOU ARE UNAWARE OF THE VIOLENCE
TAKEN BY YOUR CO-CONSPIRATORS AND THAT INNOCENT PEOPLE WHO HAVE BEEN SUPPORTING ME ARE
SUFFERING AS A RESULT OF FTB's FRAUDULENT AND MALICIOUS ACTIONS. DO NOT LATER CLAIM YOU ARE
INNOCENT AND WERE NOT AWARE. YOU ARE CHOOSING TO GAMBLE THAT | WILL BE PERCEIVED AS A
CONSPIRACY NUT AND YOUR CRIMES WILL NEVER BE KNOWN. '

Your deadline is FRIDAY, 08/13/19 by 3:00 pm to respond to this email. Do not bother replying or attempting to settle or
argue. Ferris & Britton tried to settle the case, (see attachment) right AFTER they had just WON a Motion on
Summary Judgement. Why the FUCK would they offer a settlement of ANY KIND at this point? Bécause they KNEW
this should never hit trial and now that it has, so all your all’s slippery lawyer deeds and the fraud you have
perpetuated upon the court are going to be exposed! This should have never made it trial and F&B knew it just so
that exactly what just happened in Judge Wohfeil's courtroom wouldn't have happened. Well it did. Judge Wohlfeil is
going to look like an imbecile and you David are to be held responsible. Had you done your job on December 7, 2017,
the first time we were before Judge Wohlifeil, and raised the Confirmation Email, Wohlfeil could have done HIS
JOB. Instead, you set in place a series of events that ended in a trial that made Wohlfeil ook like a complete imbecile.
That is all on you David and the vaunted law firm of Finch, Thornton & Baird! | am going to expose you all you greedy
corrupt fuckers for what you are! . :

Send me my billing statements. | owe overa $1,000,000 in other attorney fees now plus whatever the balance is for your
worthless services are. David, you are a disgusting human being. You fucked over your own client. And your boss hired a
national law firm to help cover it up. | don't expect much out of your and your firm but again this is one last chance to do
s0.

In closing check out this recent post by the FBI on marijuana corruption - https://www.fbi.gov/audio-repository/ftw-
podcast-marijuana-industry-corruption-081519.mp3/view ’ : .

On Tue, Aug 27, 2019 at 9:43 AM Darryl Cotton <indagrodarryl@gmail.com> wro.te:
i Mr. Demian;

Would you please forward me a one page FTB accounting that shows all invoices, payments and any balance you
show remaining for your legal services?

Thank you.

Darryl Cotton
https://mail.google.com/maiifu/ ?ik=505cbcﬁ’3f&view=pt&search=ali&permmsgid=msg¥a“/n3Ar-3460747103152980435&simpl=msg—a%3Ar—346074T1 . 238
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3 attachments

ROA 649.pdf
~< 10681K

-@ Feldman Kenneth Atty at Lewibrisbois {FTB).pdf
1134K

&= 06-10-19 Settlement Offer 2.pdf
778K

htips://mail.gooagle.com/mail/u/1 7ik=505cbcf7 3f&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-a%3Ar-34607471031 52980435&simpl=msg-a%3Ar-34607471... 3/3




2 e

F' L ET™ .
" ahib ¢ by Sepetor Gau

SEP 172018

By: ¢ Beuler, Deputy

E LARRY GERACY, an individual,
V.

| DOES 1 through 10, inlcusive,,

| AND RELATED CROSS-ACTION

E SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

% Case No: 2017-00010073-CU-BC-CTL

Plaintiff, 3 GRDEI; STRIKING DEFEN
3
)

¢ DISQUALIFICATION
OF JUDGE JOEL R, WOHLFEIL

DARRYL COTTON, an individual; and

" the pmeﬁmgs inthe abave—enntl&d case; f'j vwevet, the Statement of Disgual ﬁ afion was: n@t

The Court has reviewed the paperwork that was filed by Defondant Dasyl Cotton an i

Authority tn‘Smkethe.Cha]lenfe.

{11 All further references are 46 the Code of Cleil Procodure vnless othisrwise stated.

Order Striking Statement of Disqualification of Sudge Josl R, Wohlfei

| property served, is-untimely, and overall fails to state any legal basis fordisqualification & i |
’ face Therefore; the Statement of Disqualification i ordered stricken for'the reasons cited below. |
it
. Cha{lenges filed: ‘piirsusnt to Civil Cﬁde aof Prccedﬁre ssotion 170.1 are azdjudmaterl ‘uné&r :

| the: proceduresset forth in section 170.3. Pursuant to section 1703, if a judge whe shauld




~ -

disqualify hitnself or herself fails to do so, any party may file with the clerk a verified written |
statement setting forth facts constituting grounds for disqualification. The staternent seeking to |

| disqualify the judge “shall be presented at the carliest practicable opportunity after discovery of
i the facts constituting the ground for disqualification. Copies of the statement shail be served on

{{each party or his or her attorney who has appeared and shall be pessonelly served on the judge 1
1| alleged to be disqualified, or onhis or her clerk, provided that the judge is presertt in the courthouse _‘

| an the legal g

L or i charbers.” {§ 1703 (c)(l)) 1

. #26.) However, if the statement is unnmely filed, bas not been served, mo_;ﬂsfwequlesesm |

legal grounds for disqualification, the judge agamstwham itis Aled may strike it (§ 1704(b)) I |

‘striking a challénge the court is not passing on its

gro nds get: fnﬁ:hm Versﬁeﬂ S‘fﬂtﬁﬂl@ﬁfs _
Should the 10-day: “period after gervice: pass “With’ the Judge takmg no: acnm, ‘the ;;uﬁge is

! deemed. dlsquahﬁed and has no power'

the Judge b_amg chailmgedi or Bn-hi_Sf-Gr hﬁr »elark«pmmded.thax the 3@3@ :;s;presm;em._ghe_ 7 -

| courthouse or in chambers. Further, the 10-day period in wiich 1o tespond does ot begin to rat |

l unitil service is effeated. Here, Judge Wohlfeil was not petsonially served, e
26

27 4D

, nor washis clerk served |
t in the courthouse or in chambers Therefore, the Statement of
| Disqualification is stricken for lack of service; "
(T

{while he was presen

2

iking Statement of Disqualification of Judge Joel R. Wahifeil




Fhat

i

P

upen discovery of the ground for dpqualification conatitmes e forfuitare or waiver of the tight f6 |

BusctlonF10.30631) providen n part that the staterent seeking to disqualify the judge “shall |
b pragented sl the eirdical practicable opportunity after discovery of the fauty conitinsting the
praund for disqualification.” The fiilure W timely file & siatemont of disqualification promptly

seek disqualification. (Te Counties Hank v. Sup,C1, (Amaya-Ghichin) (2008) 167 Cal Appath
1332, 1347-38,5 In mﬂ«;iiiiﬁm ait aﬁiim@iy ﬁmqualiﬁmﬁaﬁ stutemorit miay be stricken by the judge |

of ah}mﬂiam Wi sliesn iRy bosirieken. o tmtiﬂwly,“i £ .[‘M meli‘as Bank W Sup ot (Amayw
Criercen), 1 suprey, 167 -i‘m!;,-ﬁppamh at:1338.)

Fhiswed based on nilings m

almost two monthy afler Defendant first beeame awdrs of the faets stipport

prastivable opportunity” “Therefore, the Statement ﬁf"ﬁiﬁquaiiﬁeaﬁzm,;-is; giricken ay untiniely |

VTV,

8 awm ﬁf’ gmndg i’g; _

Acording to the Staement of Disquialification, Defendant assens tha Judge Wohifeil is
righ geeurred o July

ade by the court ot severa) hearings, the fatest of which

13,2018, Yo, tho prosent Statement of Disqualificotion was not filed until September 12, 2018, |
ting the alleged bias. |

While. Defendant stiributes the. dolay to defense sounsel’s schiedule and other time sensitive

obligations, it s clear that the Siaterment of Disqunlification wes not “prescuted at the: earhesi

;mrg;mm to section 1AW, inaddition to the reasns set forth bolow,

it g uéﬁ__g,gﬁ Wohlfei 14 biased snd Sould be daqualificd from --z_ﬁg;_:jpn;-ggﬁt-

Do bisonhand s

achem Bogimse hwe gle”

fation.”
Cudgmient on the P iu;rimgu irid Request Tor Hudieial Nitine, made statemits mdmang that thie.

“various disupporied i %’x’s'gﬁ.ﬁ unxl“*;-'rrtme% iralby- Hiiproper Giderd i 'z%%%a:5"

" Speoilicatly, bealleggs that Judge: Woshifkit improperly deaied Defendants Motion Tor

%

Orpchr Siriking Stalerpenlof 1 i;s;‘q;mf;;ﬁl;éif%%cénﬁitim' uf Yudgedoul R, Wohlfeil




11

13

23

25

27

28

14 |
5
16
18 || the i
ol

| 170.1a)EXA ).
disqualification whers

s an-opinion based upon

her judic

| 1960) 55 Cal.2d 27, 35, the California Supt
24 |

App:3d 4t 106, fn.6) Lastly,in People v. Swienay |
t held that o statsment of disqualification

arty “miay be ignored ot stricken from the files by |

based upon the conclusions or speculation of a p
the trial judge.”
As summarized above, Defendant’s claims of bi

ate based sdlely on his disagreement |




s O

| Hogal basiy for divqualification. Every rullng requires the court 10 resolvé 1 confliet in faver of o .
| party and ngainst mhother, The opinion-formed doos not amoimi to bins wnd prefudice, (Moulton
Niguel Water Dist, v, Colombe (2003) 111 Cal. App, dth 1210, 1219:1220.5 T, it Is. clearly not

leggal evidence of bias that the Court mede decisiony regurding the evidenee o issues presented, or |

jruledin Et;p&rtic%ular W!_iy-*m_ﬁxia cnge oven ii‘thas‘e-ti@ﬁisitma werd, 4y Defendant c@nmaf in et

::af the cuprent pwecudxnga - dcx HOUCONSELE 4 babii 1c3r a hum or partmmy hotion tnless they |
3 | display a deep-seated ﬁwmtism or antagonism: that would make fair judgmens impomsibie.” |
Il | (Liteky'v. United States (1994) 51018, 540, 555.) Further, the facts and circumstances prompting. |
13 |14 challenge for cause mist be evaluated in the context.of the entire proceeding and not based solely |
14 f upon isolated conduct or remarks. (Fller v, Superior-Court (1994) 23 Cal. App.dth 165, 171-172.) |
15 f In the present case, all of the Court’s decisions and comments were made during court |
16 || proceedings, in the context-of the factual and evidentiary issues presented, the. court’s knowledge |
17 |jof the case, and its overall handling of the matters pending before'it. As the authorities above !
18 |l clearly indicate, a judge must be able to issue nulings and make statements in connection with the | |

19. il petformance of his ‘or her judicial duties, ineluding those conceming the sufficiency of the f

i Court expressing its views about the. lega] and factual issues befme it, andfhe expression of opinion
24 |lin the performance of the court’s judicial dutiey which cannot establish a-legat basis for |
25 [l disqualification.
21/ 1 ¢
2w
2w |lr £/

Chrder Suiliini Qtaterient of TG AT G0 0 Hidom Taal B Wkt



(" &

Further, the Statement of Disqualification i based solely on Defendant’s conclusions and |
| interpretation of the Court’s rulings and statements. Thus, it lacks sufficient factual or evideitiary

support and amounits to no more than miere speculation and conjecture, which likewise cannot form- |
2 legal basis for disqualification. |

In short, the allegations made by Defendant do:not show any bias on the part.of the fudge, |
nor do they support any reasonable and objective. corclusion that Judge Wohifeil is, or could |

RUREY- TR I o

| reasonably be believed to be, biased. Themfure, the Staferent-of E}xsquahﬁcamn is pmperfy

This crdsar eammtgs & _de.t;emimauqn gf.-m-.qumom:af¢Miﬁmﬁm of the trial judge |
pursuant to section 170.3(d),

15 IT IS SO ORDERED,

| N

3
e
N>
P
s
el
&
&
&

]

Order Striking Statement of Disqualification.of Judge Joel R, Wohilfeil




. Warning

As of: December 20, 2019 10:55 PM Z

e

‘Engebretsen v. City of San Diego

Court of Appeal of California, Fourth Appellate District, Division One
November 30, 2016, Opinion Filed
D068438

Reporter
2016 Cal. App. Unpub. LEXIS 8548 *; 2016 WL 6996218

RICK ENGEBRETSEN, Plaintiff and Respondent, v.
CITY OF SAN DIEGO, Defendant; RADOSLAV KALLA
et al., Real Parties in Interest and Appellants.

Notice: NOT TO BE PUBLISHED IN OFFICIAL
REPORTS. CALIFORNIA RULES OF COURT, RULE
8.1115(a); PROHIBITS COURTS AND PARTIES FROM
CITING OR RELYING ON OPINIONS NOT CERTIFIED
FOR PUBLICATION OR ORDERED PUBLISHED,

EXCEPT AS SPECIFIED BY RULE 8.1115(b). THIS

OPINION HAS NOT BEEN CERTIFIED FOR

PUBLICATION OR ORDERED PUBLISHED FOR THE ™~ - oo
A RO U ‘ ~Judges: HALLER, Acting P. J.; AARON, J., IRION, J.

PURPOSES OF RULE 8.1115.

Prior History: [*1] APPEAL from a judgment of the
Superior Court of San Diego County, No. 37-2015-
00017734-CU-WM-CTL, Jpél M. Pressman, Judge.

Disposition: Affirmed.

Core Terms.

lease, equitable estoppel, ministerial duty, property
owner, triai court, parties, City's, Tenant, conditional
use permit, statement of decision, deficiencies,
negotiations, holder, supporting evidence, mandamus
refief, terminated, financial responsibility, substantial
evidence, agency relationship, application process, writ

of mandate, possessed, waived

Counsel: Sharif Faust Lawyers, Matthew J. Faust for
Real Parties in Interest and Appellants.

Finch, Thornton and Baird, David S. Demian, for Plaintiff
and Respondent.

No appearance by Defendant.

concurred.
Opinion by: HALLER, Acting P. J.

Opinion

Plaintiff Rick Engebretsen sought a writ of mandate to
compel the City of San Diego (City) to recognize him as
the sole applicant for a conditional use permit (CUP) to
operate a medical marijuana consumer cooperative
(MMCC) on his property (the Property) and process the
application accordingly. Engebretsen alleged he was
the sole record owner and interest holder of the
Property throughout the application process. Aithough
real party in interest Radoslav Kalla was listed as the
applicant for the CUP, Engebretsen alleged that Kalla
was acting on Engebretsen's behalf as an agent, Kalla
never had an independent legal right to use the
Property, and Engebretsen had since revoked Kalla's
agency, The. City did not oppose Engebretsen's writ
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petition.

The trial court granted the writ, and in a statement of
decision, [*2] discussed its basis for finding that (1)
Kalla was acting as Engebretsen's agent in pursuing
the CUP; (2) Kalla did not have any independent
authority to pursue it or legal interest in the Praperty; (3)
Engebretsen, as the principal, terminated Kalla's
agency and became the only proper applicant; and (4)
the City had a ministerial duty to process the application

in Engebretsen’s name.

On appeal, Kalla and real party in interest Matthew
Compton contend the trial court's principal-agent finding
is not supported by sufficient evidence, mandamus was
not a proper remedy, and the court did not address and
consider their equitable estoppel defense in the
statement of decision. We conclude substantial
evidence supports the court's factual finding of an

agency relationship, Engebretsen established a proper

basis for a writ of mandate, and the court implicitly
rejected Kalla and Compton's estoppel defense.
Therefore, we affirm the judgment,

FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

Engebretsen's Property and the Initial Application for a
CUP to Operate an MMCC

Engebretsen's Property, on Carroll Road in San Diego,
is located in a City district where up to four properties
within the district may be used to [*3] operate medical
marijuana consumer cooperatlves Engebretsen was
the sole record owner of the Property in fee simple. In
early 2014, En_qebretsen retained Paul Britvar to submit
an application on Engebretsens behalf for a CUP to
operate an MMCC and seek out prospecttve parties to
lease or purchase the Property. The scope of
Engebretsen and Britvar's principal-agent relationship
is well documented and undisputed in this case.

The Land Development Code (LDC), within the San
Diego Municipal Code (SDMC), governs the City's CUP
application process and sets forth the individuals who
are authorized to file an application. (SDMC, §
112.0102.) On an initial CUP application form, Britvar
certified he was the "Authorized Agent of Property
Owner.” On a required ownership disclosure form, he
listed Engebretsen as the sole owner and interest
holder in the Property. Compton, as vice president of
Bay Front LLC, signed a separate form naming the
company as the financially responsible party io cover

the City's costs in processing the application.

Engebretsen Authorizes Kalfa fo Continue the CUP
Application Process

Up untit August 2014, Kalla and Compton were dealing
with Britvar over lease andfor  purchase
negotiations, [*4] but Kalla and Compton wished to
negotiate directly with Engebretsen. Engebretsen
began communicating primarily with Kalla. Thereafter,
Engebretsen terminated Britvar's agency and orally
authorized Kalla as his agent to continue the CUP
application process while they attempted to negotiate a
lease or purchase agreement for the Property. In
October 2014, unknown to Engebretsen, Britvar
assigned his "interest" in the CUP application to Kalla.

.On October 23, 2014, Kalla filed a revised application

form with the.City for the CUP to operate an MMCC on
the Property (the Application). As Britvar had done,
Kalla marked himself as the "Authorized Agent of
Property Owner" in the "Applicant" box on the
Application; Engebretsen is listed on the same form as
the "Property Owner." Kalla signed the Application and
certified the correctness of the supplied information.
Kalla did not indicate he was a property owner, tenant,
or "other . person having a legal right, interest, or
entitlement to the use of the property that is the subject
of this application.” With the Application, Kalla also filed
an updated ownership disclosure form signed by
Engebretsen, again showing Engebretsen as the sole
owner and.[*5] interest hoider in the Property.

Between November 2014 and February 2015, Kalla and
Engebretsen negotiated directly with each other on
possible terms-for the lease or purchase of the Property.
Engebretsen sent Kalla a letter of intent for the lease of
the Property (First LOI). The First LOI provides: "Tenant
agrees to pay for all costs and fees related to obtaining
the CUP." Further, the First LOIl states: "Lease
Agreement shall be contingent upon Landlord obtaining
CUP and Tenant obtaining any other governmental
permits and licenses required for Tenant's Use."! Kalla
did not sign the First LOIL.

In response to the First LOI, Kalla provided
Engebretsen with a letter of intent for a lease and

TWithin the exchanged documents, the "Landlord” or "Seller”
is defined as Engebretsen and the "Tenant” or "Buyer" is
defined as Kalla, Compton, and/or a company under their
control.




O

Page 3of 7

2016 Cal. App. Unpub. LEXIS 8548, *5

purchase option {Second LOI}). Kalla's Second LOI
states: "Lease Agreement shall be contingent upon
Tenant on behalf of Landlord obtaining CUP and Tenant
obtaining any other governmental permits and licenses
required for Tenant's Use." Engebretsen did not sign
the Second LOI. The parties continued to exchange
multiple letters [*6] of intent and proposed ieases in
good faith, but could not reach an agreement. In
general, Engebretsen preferred to structure the deal as
a lease while Kalla and Compton preferred an outright
purchase/sale.

Engebretsen Revokes Kalla's Agency, and the City
Refuses to Process the Application in Engebretsen’s
Name

Because negotiations with Kalla reached an impasse,
Engebretsen contacted the City in March 2015 to be

recognized as the sole applicant on the Application. The-

City responded that it did not consider Engebretsen to
be the applicant. Engebretsen next met with a City
representative to discuss removing Kalla's name from
the Application, but the City- refused. Subsequently,
Engebretsen repeatedly met or communicated with City
representatives, including through his- counsel, to
convey that he was the sole owner and. interest holder in
the Property, he had terminated Kalla's agency, Kalla
had no independent legal right to pursue the
Application, and Engebretsen would be the financially
responsible party. The City. continuously refused to
follow Engebretsen’s instructions.

In April 2015, the City informed Engebretsen that
Compton had designated Kalla as the new financially
responsible party [*7] for the Application, against
Engebretsen's wishes. The City would not accept
Engebretsen as the financially responsible party for the
Application without Kalla's' signature. Later that month,
the City's hearing officer approved the Application for
issuance of a CUP, with Kalla listed as the applicant and
prospective permit holder. The Application- was :the
fourth and iast one approved by the City for a.CUP to
operate an MMCC in the district where the Property is
located. A third party appealed the Application approval
decision for unrelated reasons, and the hearing on that
appeal was set to be heard by the City's Planmng
Commission on June 25 2015,

Engebretsen's Petition for Writ of Mandate

In May 2015, Engebretsen filed a verified petition fof

writ of mandate directing the City to: (1) recognize
Engebretsen as the sole applicant on the Application
and (2) process the Application with Engebretsen as
the sole applicant. The court set the matter for trial on
an expedited basis. The City filed a statement of
nonopposition to Engebretsen's peiition for writ of
mandate.

On June 16, 2015, the court conducted a trial and heard
testimony from Kalla and Compton. Kalla testified he
and Compton "believed [*8] [they] had a lease contract
on the property" based on Britvar's representations, but
admitted that negotiations with Engebretsen “fell
completely apart" and the parties never actually
executed a lease agreement. Compton confirmed he
and Kalla had no |lease agreement on the Property and
they agreed to be financially responsible for the
Application because they thought they "were going to be
able to lease" the Property. The City took no position at

trial.

After closing argurmnent, the court gave its {entative ruling
from the bench, granting Engebretsen's petition for a
writ of.mandate. -As part of the ruling, Engebretsen
would have to pay the City the amounts Kalla and
Compton. had paid for the Application's processing, so
the City could then reimburse Kalla and Compton. In
making its ruling, the court noted the undisputed facts
that Engebretsen was the record owner of the Property
and Kalla and Compton did not enter into a lease or
purchase :agreement -for the Property. The court
commented that Kalla and Compton had not shown they
had "any interest'in [the] property whatsoever," and had
"moved forward absent a . legally binding agreement
under any circumstances.” Kalla and Compton
requested -a [*9] statement of decision on several
disputed issues, and the court directed counsel for
Engebretsen to draft a proposed statement. Following
the trial, the court issued a minute order summarizing its
ruling.

On June 23, 2015, Kalla and Compton filed a notice of
appeal. The next day, the court ordered that the notice
of appeal would not operate as a stay of execution on
the judgment and writ to be issued.

On July 20, 2015, the court filed its statement of
decision {SOD). Kalla and Compton did not object to the
SOD, propose any revisions, or otherwise inform the
trial court that the SOD failed o address an issue. On
August 18, 2015, the court rendered its judgment, which
attached and incorporated the SOD by reference, and
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issued the writ of mandate.?

DISCUSSION

i, Standard of Review

When an appellate court reviews a frial court's judgment
on a petition for a writ of mandate, it applies the
substantial evidence test to the trial court's findings of
fact and independently reviews the trial court's [*10]
conclusions on questions of law, which include the
interpretation of a statute and its application to the facts.
(Kiajic _v. Caslaic_Lake Waler Agency (2001} 90
CalApp.4th 987, 995, 109 Cal. Rplr. 2d 454 (Klajic).)
The substantial evidence test applies to both express
and implied findings of fact. (Rey Sanchez invesiments
v. Supetior Court (2016} 244 Cal App.4th 259, 262, 197
Cal. Rptr. 3d 575.) "Substantial evidence' is evidence of
ponderable lega! significance, evidence that is

reasonable, credible and of solid value." {Roddenberry-

v. Roddenberry {1996) 44 Cal App.4th 634, 651, 51 Cal.
Rpfr. 2d_907.) When reviewing the trial court's factual
findings, we ask whether it was "reasonable for a trier of
fact to make the ruling in question in light of the whole

record.” (/d._at p. 652.)
Il. The Tnal Court Froperly Issued a Wit of Mandate

Kalla and Compton contest the court's finding of an
agency relationship, the propriety of mandarmus relief,
and the court's implied rejection of their equitable
estoppel defense. '

A. The Court's Finding Regarding the Existence of an
Agency Relationship Is Supported by Substantial
Evidence

Kalla and Compton argue insufficient evidence
supported the trial court’s factual finding that Kalla acted
as Engebretsen's agent in pursuing a CUP application
and the court placed undue weight on the application
form submitted by Kalla to the City.

"An agent is one who represents another, called the
principal, in dealings with third pefsons." [*11] (Civ.
Code, § 2295.) "Any person may be authorized to act as
an agent, including an adverse party to a transaction.”
(Michelson v. Hamada (1994) 29 Cal.App.4th 1566,
1579, 36 Cal. Rptr. 2d 343.) Agency may be implied

2We denied Kalla and Comipton's request for judicial notice
dated February 19, 2016, of a separate lawsuit filed by
Engebretsen against them. Accordingly, that matter is not
part of the record on appeal.
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from the circumstances and conduct of the parties.
(Ibid.) Indicia of an agency relationship include the
agent's power to alter legal relations between the
principal and others and the principal's right to control
the agent's conduct. (Vallely Investments., L.P. v,
BancAmerica_Commercial Corp. {2001} 88 Cal.App.4th
816,826, 106 Cal. Rptr. 2d 689.) "The existence of an
agency relationship is a factual question for the trier of
fact whose determination must be affirmed on appeal if
supported by substantial evidence." (Garlock _Seafing
Technologies, LLC v. NAK Sealing Technologies Corp.
(2007) 148 Cal.App.4th 937. 965, 56 Cal. Rptr. 3d 177
(Garlock).)

Here, substantial evidence supports the court's finding
that Kaila was acting as Engebretsen’'s agent in
completing the Application. Kalla certified on the
Application form that he was Engebretsen's authorized
agent, thereby representing and binding Engebretsen
in dealings with the City regarding the CUP application.
Kalla had no other basis or authority to complete a CUP
application for the Property—he was neither a property
owner nor a legal interest holder. In addition,
Engebretsen declared under penalty of perjury that he
orally ‘authorized Kalla as his ‘agent to continue the
application “process initiated by agent Britvar. Other
evidence suggests [*12] that Kalla understood the CUP
was for Engebretsen's benefit as the Property owner
until Kalla executed- a lease or purchase agreement.
Furthermore; Engebretsen consistently believed he
was able to terminate Kalia's agency with respect to the
Application at any time, as a principal is entitled to do.
(See Malloy v. Fong (1951) 37 Cal.2d 356, 370, 232
P.2d 241 ["The power of the principal to terminate the
services of the agent gives him the means of controlling
the agent's activities."].) Kalla and Compton essentially
ask us on appeal to reweigh or draw alternative
inferences from the evidence, which we may not do.
(Garlock. supra, 148 Cal.App.4th at p. 966.) The court's
agency finding was reasonable.

B. Engebretsen Established a Proper Basis for
Mandamus Relief

Kalla and Compton contend that Engebretsen did not
establish a basis for mandamus relief because the City
did not 'have a ministerial duty to recognize

Engebretsen as the applicant and Engebretsen
possessed a plain, speedy, and adequate legal remedy.

1. Writs of Mandate Generally

Under_‘ Code _of .CiVif Procedure section 1085,
subdivision (a), the trial court may issue a writ of
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mandate "o any . . . person . . . to compel the
performance of an act which the law specially enjoins,
as a duty resulting from an office, trust, or station, or to
compel the admission of a party to the use [*13] and
enjoyment of a right or office to which the party is
entitted, and from which the parly is unlawfully
preciuded by that . . ., person.”

"A traditional writ of mandate under Code of Civil
Procedure seclion 1085 is a method for compelling a
public entity to perform a legal and usually ministerial
duty. [Citation.] The trial court reviews an administrative
action pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 1085
to determine whether the agency's action was arbitrary,
capricious, or entirely lacking in evidentiary support,
contrary to established public policy, unlawful,
procedurally unfair, or whether the agency failed to
follow the procedure and give the notices the faw
requires, [Citations.} 'Although mandate will not lie to
control a public agency's discretion, that is to say, force
the exercise of discretion in a particular manner, it will
lie to correct abuses -of discretion.  [Citation.] In
determining whether an agency has ‘abused its
discretion, the court may not substitute its judgment for
that of the agency, and if reasonable minds may
disagree as fo the wisdom of the agency's action, its
determination must be upheld." (Klajic, supra, 80
CalApp.dih at p. 995, fn. omitied; California Public
Records Research, Inc. v. County of Stanisfaus {2016)
246 Cal App 4th 1432, 1443 201 Cal. Rptr, 3d 745.)

2. The City Had a Ministerial Duty

Kalla and Compton argue the City did not have
ministerial duty in this case because [*14] (1) there is
no City procedure for amending a CUP application, (2)
allowing amendments may allow "dangerous or
untrustworthy” people to operate an MMCC, and (3) a
writ of prohibition was the appropriate remedy to stop
the City from processing the Application in Kalla's name,
We reject these arguments.

To obtain mandamus relief, Engebretsen was required
to demonstrate that the City had a "clear, present,
ministerial duty" to perform the requested action.
(Afliance for a Better Downtown Milfbrae v. Wade (2003)
106 CaiApp.4th 123, 129, 133 Cal. Rptr. 2d 249.) "A
ministerial duty is an act that a public officer is obligated
to perform in a prescribed manner required by law when
a given state of facts exists." (Ibid.) An act is not
ministerial when it involves the exercise of discretion or
judgment. (County of San_Diego v. Stafe of California
(2008) 164 Cal. App.4th 580, 596, 79 Cal. Rpir. 3d 489.)
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Courts have concluded that city and county employees
are engaged in ministerial acts when ascertaining
whether procedural requirements have been met. (E.g.,
Billig v. Voges (1990} 223 Cal.App.3d 962, 968-969,
273 Cal. Rptr. 91 [clerk correctly rejected referendum
petition because it did not comply with Elections Code];
Paimer v, Fox (1953} 118 Cal App.2d 453, 455-456, 258
P.2d 30 [compelling county engineer to process building
permit application where plaintiffs submitted all required
paperwork], see also Shefl Qi Co. v. City and County of
San _francisco (1983) 139 CalApp.3d 917. 921, 189
Cal_Rptr. 276 (Shell Oif) [compelling city to process a
lessee's application for a conditional use permit
because lessee was [*15] an "owner" under the city's
relevant ordinance].)

In this case, Engebretsen showed that the City must
process and issue applications for conditional use
permits consistent with relevant laws and procedures.?
(SDMC, § 112.0102, subds. (a) & (b)) The City's
ordinances provide that the persons "deemed to have
the authority to file an application [are]: [] (1) The
record owner of the real property that is the subject of
the permit, map, -or other matter; [{]] (2) The property
owner's authorized agent; or [{] (3) Any other person
who can demonstrate a legal right, interest, or
entittement to the use of the real property subject to the
application." (SDMC, §§ 112.0102, subd. (a), 113.0103
[defining applicant].) The City's ordinances thus ensure
that conditional use permits will only be granted to
individuals- having the right to use the property in the
manner for which the permit is sought. (SDMC, §§
112.0102, subd. (a), 113.0103; see Sheil Oif, supra, 139
CalApp.3d af p. 921, see generally 66A Cal.Jur.3d
Zoning And Other Land Controls § 427 [summarizing
California cases].) Any other interpretation would raise
serious constitutional questions concerning property
rights. (Shell Oil, at p. 921; see also County of Imperial
v. MeDougal (1977} 19 Cal.3d 505, 510, 138 Cal. Rptr.
472, 564 P.2d 14 [holding that conditional use permits
"run with the land"].)

Engebretsen demonstrated he was the only person
who possessed the right to use the Property, Kalfa
never independently possessed such a right, Kalla was

3"[A] conditional use permit grants an owner [*16]
permission to devote a parcel to a use that the applicabie
zoning ordinance allows not as a matter of right but only upon

issuance of the permit." (Neighbors in Support of Appropriate

Land Use v, County of Tuolumne {2007) 157 Cal.App.4th 997,

1006, 68 Cal. Rotr. 3d 882.)
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acting for Engebretsen's benefit in completing the
Application (Civ. Code. § 2330), and Engebretsen had
terminated Kalla's agency. Under the circumstances, the
City had a ministerial duty to process the CUP
application for Engebretsen, the Property owner.

Regarding Kalla and Compton's remaining arguments,
there is no evidence in the record that requiring the City
to process the Application in Engebretsen's name
would lead to dangerous MMCC operations.* Finally,
Kalla and Compton have not cited any authority to
support their position that a writ of prohibition was an
available remedy. A writ of prohibition "arrests the
proceedings of any tribunal, corporation, board, or
person exercising judicial functions, when such
proceedings are without or in excess of the jurisdiction
of such tribunal, corporation, board, or person." (Code
Civ. Proc., § 1102, italics added.) A writ of prohibition
may not restrain ministerial or nonjudicial [*17] acts,

(Whitten v. Cafifornia State Board of Optometry {1937} 8
Cal2d 444, 445 65 P.2d 1296, F.E. Booth Co. v.
Zellerbach (1929} 102 CalApp. 686. 687, 283 P. 372.)
The trial court did not err in concluding the City had a
ministerial duty to ‘process  the Application in

Engebretsen's name,

3. Engebretsen Did Not Have an Adequate Legal
Remedy

Kalla and Compton next argue that Engebretsen
possessed an adequate legal remedy of filing and/or
pursuing a new CUP apphcatnon precluding mandamus
refief.> This argument lacks merit,

A writ of mandate generally will not issue when the
plaintiff possesses a "plain, speedy and adequate
remedy in the ordinary course of law." (Powers v. City of
Richmond {1995) 10 Cal.4th 85, 114, 40 Cal. Rptr. 2d
838, 893 P.2d 1160.) Here, Engebretsen showed he
did not possess such a remedy. The City refused [*18]

*As Engebretsen also points out, a different section of the
SDMC requires background checks for people operating or
working at an MMCC (SDMC, § 42.1507), which is unaﬂ’ected
by provisions of the LDC

SKalla and Compton also assign error to the frial court's
omitting to address the issue of alternative legat remedies in
its SOD. As we discuss, infra, they waived the argument by
failing to object to the SOD or pointing out the alleged
deficiency to the frial court. Regardless, any error was
harmless because Engebretsen sufficiently stated a baS|s to
obtain writ relief.

to process the Application in Engebretsen's name, and
it approved the Application with Kalla named as the
prospective permit holder. Also, the City would not be
issuing any more conditional use permits to operate
MMCC's within the same city district. (SDMC, §
141.0614.) If the CUP was granted to Kallg,
Engebretsen had no other immediate means to obtain
a CUP for his Property from the City. Moreover,
Engebretsen showed that the parties needed a
determination in time to respond to an unrelated appeal
of the City's decision to approve the Application. The
court did not err in granting mandamus relief.

C. The Court Did Not Commit Reversible Error in
Connection with Kalla and Compton's Equitable
Estoppel Defense

At trial, Kalla and Compton opposed the issuance of a
writ of mandate under a theory of equitable estoppel.

. . P 0y . i H . ifi - gy i T
including an administrative decision to grant'a permit.. .}_Spemﬂ.catlx their Cfo,u'?sel argued that _g__.'?'n ebretsen was
estopped from obtaining the CUP in his name because

Kalla and Compton relied on Engebretsen's promises
to sign a lease. Under Code of Civil Procedure section
632, Kalla and Compton requested a statement of
decision on the court's "finding and reasoning as to the
application of equitable estoppel” in the case.

The SOD did not explicitly address equitable estoppel,
but instead [*19] sets forth in significant detail the
factual background supporting the court's implicit
rejection of the theory. Kalla and Compton did not object
to the SOD below or argue it was deficient for failing to
address an issue. On appeal, they contend the ftrial
court erred in not addressing their equitable estoppel
defense in its SOD and that the evidence supports their
defense. We conclude they waived the argument
regarding a deficient SOD and substantial evidence
supports the court's implied rejection of their defense.

1. Kalta and Compton Waived or Forfeited Their Claim
Regarding the Court's Failure to Address Equitable
Estoppel in the Statement of Decision

In a court trial, "first, a party must request a statement of
decision as to specific issues to obtain an explanation of
the trial court’s tentative decision (§ 632); second, if the
court issues such a statement, a party claiming
deficiencies therein must bring such defects to the trial
court's attention to avoid implied findings on appeal
favorable to the judgment (§ 634)." (In_re Marriage of
Arceneaux {1990} 51 Cal.3d 1130, 1134, 275 Cal Rptr.
797, 800 P.2d 1227 {Arceneaux).) Code of Civil
Procedure section 634 "clearly refers to a party's need
to point out deficiencies in the trial court's statement of
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decision as a condition of avoiding such implied
findings, rather [*20] than merely to request such a
statement initially as provided in section 632"
(Arcensaux, at p. 1134.) "[IIf a party does not bring such
deficiencies to the trial court's attention, that party
waives the right to claim on appeal that the statement
was deficient in these regards, and hence the appellate
court will imply findings to support the judgment.” (id,_at

pp. 1133-1134.)

Here, Kalla and Compton did not bring any alleged
deficiencies in the SOD to the trial court's attention, If
they had, the SOD could have been corrected and
made part of the record on appeal. Accordingly, Kalla
and Compton have waived or forfeited their argument
relating to the court's alleged failure to address
equitable estoppel, and we will imply all necessary
findings to support the court's judgment. {Agri-Systems,
inc. v. Foster Poultry Farms (2008} 168 CalApp. 4th
1128, 1135, 85 Cal. Rptr. 3d 917.) '

2. The Court's Impfied Rejection of Kalla and Compton's
Equitable Estoppel Defense Is Supported by Substantial
Evidence

Substantial evidence supports the court's implied
rejection of Kalla and Compton's equitable estoppel
defense. (See Acguire /i, Lid. v, Colton Real Estate
Group (2013) 213 Cal. App.4th 959, 970, 153 Cal, Rptr.
3d 135 ["the appellate court applies the doctrine of
implied findings and presumes the trial court made all
necessary findings supported by substantial evidence"}].)
“Generally speaking, four elements must be present in
order to apply the [*21] doctrine of equitable estoppel:
(1) the party to be estopped must be apprised of the
facts; (2} he must intend that his conduct shall be acted
upon, or must so act that the party asserting the
estoppel had a right to believe it was so intended; (3)
the other party must be ignorant of the true state of
facts; and (4) he must rely ilpon the conduct to his
injury." (Golden_ Gate Water Ski_ Club v. County of
Contra Costa (2008) 165 Cal.App.4th 249, 257, 80 Cal.
Rptr. _3d 876 (Gaolden Gate)) The defense does not
apply when even one element is missing. (/bid.)

Here, it was virtually undisputed that the parties
engaged in arm's-length, . good faith negotiations for
several months, but they simply could not reach a
suitable lease or purchase agreement. The record
supports that Kalla and Compton pursued the
Application despite knowing they had not yet signed any
agreement with Engebretsen, the Property owner. As a
result, Kalla and Compton were not "ignorant of the true
facts.” (Golden Gate, sunra, 165 Cal.App.4th af p. 259.)

Similarly, Engebretsen only sought to be recognized as
the sole applicant when he realized that the parties
coutd not reach a mutually acceptable agreement.
Consequently, Kalla and Compton failled to establish
that equitable estoppel prevented the City from
recognizing Engebretsen as the CUP applicant.

DISPOSITION

The judgment[*22] is affirmed.
recover his costs on appeal.

Engebretsen shall

HALLER, Acting P. J.
WE CONCUR:
AARON, J.

IRION, J.

¥ind of Document



12/19/2019 Gmail - ACH Payment

O
Darryl Cotton <indagrodarryl@gmail.com>
ACH Payment
1 message
Darryl Cotton <indagrodarryl@gmail.com> Wed, Nov 6, 2019 at 12:35 PM

To: Kelly Woodruff <kelly@kwoodrufflaw.com>
Cc: Joe Hurtado <j.hurtado1@gmail.com>

Hi Kelly,

| apologize for the delay but a payment of $5K has been wire transferred to your account today. If there are any issues
with you receiving it please let me know. Thank you.

Darryl Cotton

&y 11-06-19 Wire Transfer Cotton to Woodruff (5K).pdf
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1, Seivice.

The terms arid provisions.in this Wire Transfer, Agreement
{'Agreemerit’y dascribe our wire transfer service; ncluding what
you €an expect from us (PMorgan Chase Bank: N:A)ant! the
security praocedureswewill Eakewtien yousend awirefransfer,
Wthereis a conflict between #ng: settiariofyour Sepem gealnt
Agreerient and this Agreamednt the prows:ons of this Agreement
will appiy

The faliowing types of wire.transfers, when completed by a.branch
hanker ar by a Chase Private Glient banker, afe: governed By this.
Agraement!

s DomesticWire Transfer: A witeltransfer senttoa-hank
withinthe L5, includingits: territories;

International Wire Transfer; Awire transfer sentin
either LS. or foreign.currencies; in luding using our
Chase Global Transfer senvice, 1o bank outside thelLS,
Conisumerinternational Wire Transfersare wires'that
areesent fromy anaécdunt tsed pi manly for persenai
fatrily, or househald purpeses..

By pm\ndmg ‘your signature as-authorization, as part-of our
securlty procedures, you agreeto theseterms.and conditions ane
authotize Us'to pravide you DomesticWir 'T nEfars o
inwerhatonal Wire Transfars Wire'tra : completed using:
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_,pese stricter
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@) Far Chase Branch\Wire Transfer‘
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and show va!id |denttf“catmn You. atkru;w ed',g' tha semrsty? '
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: wire transferissued in your
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althezatoreform,.
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111612019, . Re: Engagement: Gefaci v, Cotton - indagrodarryl@gmailcom: Gmafl

1

Q. Search mail

0 85T * In anticipation of your reply | remain.
i Ll s :

D“arryl‘ Cotton

-T_h_:a;ﬁk}"y"ou, Joe. I'm very sorry for what you're geing through.

Andrew :t is ntce to: meet you through E’malf and thank you fqr your hejp Can:

Darryi attached is an engagement agreement and a W-9 for tax purposes. Ple:
mformatxon is as follows:

Kelly:A. Woodruff, Attorney

- First Republic Bank
Atforney Trust Account
Account No.:. 80006034245
Rotting Number: 321081669

- ook forward to working with you!

. Kally

' 'mank youl | Youtoo.  Thanks.

Reply - Replyall  Forward
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Wire Transfer Agreement . cantinued

5. Future Dated Wire Transfers:

You may requast a futue dated (one -timej domestic wire
teahidfer, up to 10 business days from the turrent business-day's
Lutoff time. You cannot cancel a future datedwiratransfer ance
it has been requested,

6. Foreign Exchange Transfer,

it is'our discretion’in which: forgign currendies we dill Send wire
transfers; andithese cany change at enyrdime: If yoli send 3 wire
transfet in & foreign curfency, vouauthorize us to deduct the
amountfromyouraccountat tie exthange rate weoffered at the
timve you raguestedit. The' fDFEIgﬁ" Exchangérates we ise are.
determitied by usin giir sale discretion,

Thd'ekchange rate'we use will includera spread and may nchude
cammissions or pther costs:that we, our affilistes, or ouf vendors
may charge in providing forelgn currehey e hange Toyal; The
exchange rate may Vary AiMang custim, ependmg oRytLr
relationship, products with.us or the type of transactionbeing
conducted, the dollar amaunt,. typeof clrrency, and ﬂwedate and
the fime of the exthiaige. Youl shiould exgeg
beless favorable-than rated quated snling.or in

fr‘ the funds ara: returned of payrﬁan Wk e made for _ny

cancei!anon sf & Cansurner lntemana I Fursds Transterwithin 30
fhinutes after.you authonzed usio.sendif and i causes alossor
cosktousywe may subiract furitis fréiyour steount to coverthess
Tosses, W your initial refjuest iy veturngd.tancelled 'or ¢hanged, ’ym.n'
new wire trafisfer reqliest will be sUbjéctto anew exchange rate.

if the wireitransfer is notinthe. currency ¢f therecipients: account
the recipient's bask or-another processitig Hank may rejet iir
transfer. or Convert it. If Convertad; you agrée the w @.transfer may
be canverted'td a different.currency.at their, exchange rate angmay
subtract addrt;onal feas,

your account agreemem JOF proguct infors
may-apply; We'nay use any funtds (ransfér sys
reasonatle to compiete your reques_ i regardiess
nstructions you might:gives; if weadlsa. dre-the re
wemay comipiete your request-usinig ariir

aré responsiblefor &l fées and't
fees tharged by othas fuids trans
in the transfer..

.mﬁ or Barks mvoived

4. Wire Transfer System Rules and Laws,

The:Usp ¢f this service jssubject:to all:applicable-ts, federal and
state:laws, fegulations, rules.and wire trarisfer arranggments,
including the respective:state’s Uniform Comimercial Cade Afticle
44, as may be applicable, If you tmake a Consuhet International
Wire Transfer; {tis also subject to-addit ional faderal laws and
repslations which, in die event of aconflice Wrth thlS Agreement,
will govern.All of: yaurwure transfer i

; ons admmlstered by
1 reasury: Deparimant's Office. of fforalgn Asset Contyol
anad;other applicable faws,

dur actmné 'c'xr sefwces in this
g egingence or wmful

10, Fatture a7 Perform le;tatrpn aof Lmhiiity
‘We:are. onIy res sibile for perf

ster equ:pment 0!’

; ystam Failiires; labor diSpUte WATS O riots. We dre.ndt liabie for
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Modesto church opposed nearby cannabis outlet.
| - The county vote was unanimous

7 BYKENCARLSON

* DECEMBER 11,2019 06:19 AM
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12/19/2019 Cannabis outlet opposed by church in Stanislaus Counly | Modesto Bee
From an outlet on Lone Paln(j:ifenue tucked away in an industrid. _one in Modesto, the People’s
Remedy has provided cannabis products for adults and patients with medical needs.

Co-owner Mark Ponticelli has made a public stance for doing things right and making cannabis a
legitimate enterprise in Stanislaus County. But the People’s Remedy ran into a stumbling block in
seeking one of the 61 commercial cannabis permits allowed by the county.

The dispensary is next door to or just 89 feet from a church and K-12 private school. A county
ordinance and state law require at least 600 feet distance between a cannabis business and a

school.

TOP ARTICLES

Public can attend vigil, funeral for former Modesto
Councilman Dave Lopez

County s_upet-'vislors-,‘ Oﬁ.a 5-0vote Tuesday, essentially turned down the People’s Remedy request
for a waiver of the 6qo—f0'bt-rule, but gave the dispensary until late January to find another

location.
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“I don’t know how it got this far (in the county permitting process),” said Board of Supervisors
Chairman Terry Withrow, noting he would never support a dispensary near a school.

Under the medical co-op provisions of state law, the dispensary has operated since 2015 in an
older industrial area off Woodland Avenue, just east of Highway 99. Originally, the owners didn’t
realize a school was operated in the New Harvest Christian Fellowship in a metal building next
door, and they tried without success to contact church leaders about the permit application,
county staff said.

The People’s Remedy made a case to waive the 600-foot rule by trying to show it has not created
hassles for the church and school.

Only three times in four years were sheriff deputies called to the site — twice for accidental ‘panic
button” activations on the store’s security system and once for a burglary attempt before the store
had onsite security.

Proponents said the store’s 24 /7 security today has a posmve 1mpact for ne1ghb0r1ng businesses.
Four of them signed létters supporting the dispensary.

Alan Layman, a nearby business owner, countered the marijuana outlet does not have enough
parking for its employees and customers.

Levi Romero, an assistant pastor for New Harvest Christian Fellowship, said he works with
church members who are former addicts and it’s not compatible to have a marijuana outlet next
door.

Romero said he has seen dispensary customers urinate on the side of the church building. Other
customers smelling of marijuana have asked to use the restrooms during school hours, he said.

In addition, a dispensary employee started attending church services and tried to solicit business
from church members, the assistance pastor said.

According to its website, the People’s Remedy has three other stores — on McHenry Avenue in
Modesto, in Oakdale and in Patterson.

https:/iwww.modbee.com/news/local/article238249049. himiPfbclid=IwAR1 cOhZYYOGiCYuIF'ﬁwOQQiuZybdIKiIYT_K5t1 DBNH_G4x_D8&pLQWIEXc 31
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Since 2004, the school attenChce at New Harvest Christian Fell\ ./ship has ranged between eight
and 40 students, and 19 attended the school in 2018-19.

People’s Remedy staff said the dispensary has helped people who suffer from Parkinson’s disease,
anxiety and depression and post traumatic stress disorder. Almost 30 families would be affected if
the store closes and employees lose their jobs.

The owner of the store building said that, with the rental payments from People’s Remedy, he is
able to meet payroll for his small trucking business.

Modesto attorney George Petrulakis, representing the dispensary, said the permit application met
the standards for parking and the business has been a good neighbor.

Supervisor Kristin Olsen said she wished the church neighbors had come forward earlier to
discuss concerns.

By giving the dispensary more time to find a location that meets requirements, Petrulakis said, his
clients won’t have a blanket permit denial on theirrecord, though they may have to consider
possible sites inside the city.

A development agreement for the Lone Palm store could have provided $3.5 million in fees to the
county over five years just from the retail sales. Fees tied to distribution activity could have
generated $150,000.

KEN CARLSON . o Yy J 209-578-2321

Ken Carlson covers county government and health care for The Modesto Bee. His coverage of public health,
medicine, consumer health issues and the business of health care has appeared in The Bee for 15 years.
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Boy describes school bus ride that led to DUI arrest in Diablo Grande
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CRIME

Passenger killed in Modesto cr;ziSh following
pursuit is ID’d. Driver faces murder charge

BY DEKE FARROW

- DECEMBER 19, 2019 09:30 AM:
vy f & ~»

The woman killed in a crash early Wednesday on Oakdale Road .in-_Modesto after a high-speed police pursuit
that began in Ceres has been identified as Kendra Sanguinetti of Sonora. The driver faces a murder charge. .
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" Actnow to get a full year of unlimited digital
access — just $49.99!
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Modesto residents check on progress Suspect arrested in unprovoked

toward ‘a dynamic, vibrant downtown’ ¢+ shooting of Merced County Sheriff’s
' deputy, officials say
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Update: Student describes dangerous
bus ride leading to driver’s DUI arrest
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A Personnel Flowchart for Competing Licensed Marijuana Outlets at 6176 and 6220 Rederal Boulevard
‘Team Geraci’ is: Larry Geraci, Tax & Financial Advisor, Enrolled Agent, Real Estate Agent, Ownet of

, San Diego, CA 92114
Tax and Financial Center

Abhay Schweitzer, AlA

The Enterprise ]

6176 Point of Contact
|

Rebecca Berry, Office Mgr

The Enterprise o
€176 CUP Proxy for Geracl

Jessica McElfresh, Esq 265209

The Enterprise u
Represented Cotton and Geraci

Jim Bartell. Consultant

The Enterprise
6176 CUP Lobbyist

Gina Austin, Esq 246833

The Enterprise
Represents Geraci & Magagna

Darryl Cotton, Owner
6176 Federal Elvd.
151 Farms & Inda-Gro

Judge Gonzalo Curiel
9th Circuit

i’

Ken Malbrough, Chairperson Chollas Valley Communj

Ken and the CPG would be the one party {CPG Bylaws) that had a respansibility to both Cotton, as the Property Owner and
GeracifBerry as the CUP applicant. As can be seen by this 3/14/17 letter from DSD to Geraci’s representative, Barbara Harris

albrough ceases all communigation with Cotton, thus under the Brown Act

Planning Group (CPG

u_\ " Permitting Services, the CPG contact requirements are clearly spelled out for Team Geraci. but as the property awner,
M

Cotton has no access or rights within the CPG.

Michael Weinstein, Esq - 106454
Scott Toothacre, Esq - 146530
Elyssa Kulas, Esq - 317559
Ferris & Britton Law
Representing Geraci
9/23/15 Cppaosition to New Trial

Judge Joel WohHeil
Superior Court Tips from the Bench
03/21/17 Geraci v Cotton
5/12/17 Cotton's Cross Complaint
6/30/17 1st Amended X Complaint
8/25/17 2nd Amended X Complaint
11/06/17 Qverrules Demurrer

Michael Phelps, Esq - 258246
Jana Wells, Esq - 211064
Defendant’s Attorney

05/21/18 Appellate WOM

Mark Skeels, Esq 209766

~ Plaintiff's Attomey
h. - City of San Diego v Cotton

1/18/18 Denies Sealed Do¢ Request

1/25/18 Denies WOM
4/03/18 Denies 3rd Party Receiver

4/05/18 Denies Motion to Stay
4/13/18 Denies Remaval of LP

6/27/19 Denies Flores MO

7/03/19 Denies Non-5uit

4/29/19 Denies Motion to Bind
5/23/15 Denies MSI
7/01/19 Denies Fraud Charges
7/10/19 Denies Directed Verdict
7/13/19 Cotton's Motion for New Triat

9/23/19 Geraci's Objections
9/30/19 Cotton's Reply to Objections
10/25/19 Denies Motion for New Trial

Bianca Martinez, Agent
Bartell and Associates
6176 CUP Lobbyist who worked
for Bartell and Geraci had been
promised an equity interest in
the new Marijuana Outlet.

Federal Court
18CVv0325 GPC MDD

18CV2571 W AGS

Aaron Magagna, Applicant Joseph Hurtado
Competing 6220 CUP Cotton’s
T ation Investor
1
John Ek, Property Owner
" perty David Demian, £sq 220626
Competing 6220 CLP Finch Thorton & Baird
06/01/18 Email ne
Represented Cotton from

Matt Shapiro, Esq 292542

Magagna Attorney
Civil Conspiracy Emails

06/30/17 thru 12/08/17

K. Feldman, Esq 120699
Lewis & Brisbois
Represents FTB

Jacob Austin, Esq 290303
Represents Cotton from
04/04/18 thru current

Firouzeh Tirandazi, Senior Manager
Cherlyn Cac, Praject Manager
City of SD Development Services Dept.
{DSD} for both of the 6176 and 6220
CUP applications

1 -

D. Pettit, Esq 160271
Pettit & Kohn
Represents Gina Austin

Cynthia Reed, Esq 204235
Vanst Law - Attorney/Lobbyist
Represents Magagna @ the

Andre Flores, Esq 272958
Purchases 6176 Property
6/27/19 Denied MO

E. Deitz, Esq 222565
T. Dupuy, Esq 246705

Michelle Sokolowski, Deputy Director
Pl Fitzgerald, Asst. Deputy Director
Martha Blake, Senior Planner
Laura Black, Program Manager
City of SD - DSD
Gerry Braun, Chief of Staff
City of SD City Attorney’s Office
Cheri Hoy, Assistant to the Chief of Staff

City of SD Mayors Office Staff
Ken Malbrough, Chairperson
Chollas Valley Community Planning Group

07/25/18 Emails & 07/27/18 Emails

Corina Young, Fact Witness
Testifies to statements made
by Bartell, Shapiro and Nguyen
re 6176 CUP Processing

Evan Schube, Esq

Tiffany and Bosco
Represents Cotton in

Motion for New Trial

Natalie Nguyen, Esq 246753
Represents Carina Young.
Refuses to allow Young to

Testify under Subpoena

Emails re Young Deposition

Salam Ruzuki, Businessman
. An Austin & Bartell Cannabis
Cabal Client Soliciting Murder
United States v Razuk|

Gordon & Rees
Represents Weinstein




Ninas Milan, Razuki Partner @ Balboa Collective
An Austin & Bartell Cannabis Client and the target of the Razuki murder for hire plot. Chris Williams, Entrepreneur
Represented by Austin and Schweitzer. Made

an offer to buy Cotton’s Property after Austin

e told him that there was no final contract I
between Geraci & Cotton. Williams will testify John Ek, Property Owner Joseph Hurtado
he saw Austin and Hurtado meet and speak at Competing 6220 CUP ™| Cotton’s Litigation Investor
acannabis event sponsored by Williams. i

. Banca Martines, Ag Rebecca Berry, Plaintiff :
ianca Martinez, Agent D " — -

Works for Bartell and Associates with ties to; Geraci , Cotton, Hurtado, Duane and 1 Cross Defendant _.\“””de_.“”"._ﬂmn.m:mummn._ wMMMMMb E.”..Mm MMM_-,“H.”_ME_

Sherlock. Geraci promised her, if approved, an equity stake in the new dispensary. Larry Gerad, Plaintiff I ! M_ — p . ._um. . . :
yssa Kulas, Esq - 317559 ast Ties to: Gina Austin, Demian, | .
Cross Defendant — Works for Ferris & Britton and Weinstein whereby he shows |:
Corina Young, Potential Buyer for Cotton’s Property and a Material Fact Witness @ . Council for Geraci ,Berry and Tirandazi bias mmm_.:%n no#oz‘m n_mi_m __
——  Client of Austin, Shapiro, Nguyen and an assaciate of Magagna who would testify W.. nm_ R
to threatsand conspiracy allegations being Smn.m by Cotton. .lm %m Jessica McElfresh, Esq_265209
oy g d Cott Geraci Referred Cotton
Ahbay Schweitzer, Owner of TECHNE DESIGN ...m H...M Firouzeb Tirandazi, DSD Senior Manager mmuamm.ﬂw. Mmﬂ:ﬁm.m:mﬂ_wnﬂm”mm%oﬂwﬁ_m.m Case onte
_\ ’ < Design and Engineering services for the 6176 CUP Bﬂ% L City of SD Development Services Department I -
fi_ Represents Geraci, Magagna, Razuki and Williams for Design Services P Represented by Scott Toothacre David Demian, Esq 220626
i : I ¢ Michael Phelps, Esq — 258246 ’ Works for Finch, Thornton and Baird
: ) Jim Bartelf, Owner of Bartell and Associates .%. . Office of the City Attorney Represented Cotton from 06/30/17 thru 12/08/17
= Palitical Labbyist and 6176 CUP Consuttant - Representing Geraci and Razuki q Had an affirmative duty to inform the court that the Referred to Cotton by McElfresh
While representing Geraci, Bartell told Young and Shapire to not consider q. 11/02/16 document was an illegal contract. |
investing in the 6176 CUP because ‘it was not going to be approved’. P Had Toothacre appear on behalf or Tirandazi. Matt Shapiro, Esq 292542
I 7 Mark Skeels, Esq 209766 Represents Magagna, Young and referred Young to
Salam Ruzuki, Undisclosed Interest in the Balboa Collective. An Austin & Bartell Office of the City Attorney Nguyen. Spied on Cotton in court and lied about it.
=  Cannabis Client wha is currently charged in a federal complaint for soliciting the Filed an illegal Lis Pendens against Cotton's Property so I
murder of Ninas Milan making the ‘suicide’ of Michael Sherlock highly suspect. | | as to cloud itle. Natalie Nguyen, Esq 246753
Michael “Biker’ Sherlock, Businessman, Razuki Partner at Balboa Collective mmu_.mmmmw :MHMM_MMM“M:MQM mm ”_HMMMM_ mﬂﬂﬂ__“mﬁ.o keep
Pro BMX Biker who had an interest in a Razuki owned dispensary and refused to sell that Gina Austin, Esq 246833 I -
It Represents Geraci, Magagna, Razuki & Milan. Lied under oath re B Cynthia Morgan Reed, Esq 204235
her role in the CUP application process. Vanst Law; Specializes in Land Use Law
| Represents Magagna and lies @ the 6220 Public CUP Hearing,
I - =
Aaron Magagna, Applicant Darryl Cotton, 6176 Property Owner |
Competing 6220 CUP 1 Defendant and Cross Complaint
| I

interest when asked to do so. Supposedly committed suicide shortly after the refusal.

Unnamed Associate of the Enterprise
Informant that establishes, under seal, the evidence that proves an attempt to

monopolize the industry by Austin and Razuki

- Logan Stellmacher
Geraci Operative who working with Duane threatened Cotton to settle
Sean Miller, Paralegal
Hurtado interviewed Miller for case paralegal help and Miller threatened Hurtado to have Cotton settle
the case as ‘he knew Geract’ and it was ‘in his best interest’ to do so. Miler also calted Cotton direct and
told him that he was looking for his lawyer, Hurtado. Cotton told Miller that Hurtado was not his lawyer.

= ] I
Duane (last name unknown)
Geraci Operative who working with Logan threatened Cotton to settle
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